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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company’) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Appointed on 14 May 2019)

Associate Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Re-designated from the Chairman to
the Associate Chairman on 14 May 2019)

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
Mr. Ho Leung Ting

Non-executive Director

Dr. Lam Lee G.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred (Appointed on 22 March 2019)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (Resigned on 1 January 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Yick Him (Appointed on 6 December 2019)
Ms. Sun Shui (Resigned on 6 December 2019)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chow Kai Weng
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

Room 1514-1515, 15/F
Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza
No.1 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICES

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chow Kai Weng
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred (Appointed on 22 March 2019)
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (Resigned on 1 January 2019)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred (Appointed on 22 March 2019)
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (Resigned on 1 January 2019)

Nomination Committee

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) (Appointed on 14 May 2019)
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred (Appointed on 22 March 2019)
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Chow Kai Wang (Ceased to be a member and

the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 14 May 2019)

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (Resigned on 1 January 2019)
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LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda laws)
LCH Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong laws)

AUDITORS

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Hang Seng Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

GROUP’S WEBSITE

http://www.nationalarts.hk

STOCK CODE
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BERETLEBMERAT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
THRRERREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to you
the 2019 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”).

Following years of investments and development, the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio became an all-round landmark of
culture and entertainment and attracted increasing number
of tourists and shooting crews, which was reflected by
the increased revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Nevertheless, the debts arising from the vast investments of
the Group in prior years casted significant financial burden
on the Group. The adverse effects of debt financing towards
the Group were revealed and made 2019 a challenging year
for the Group. To mitigate the financial risk of the Group, the
Group commenced a debt restructuring exercise in 2019 and
as of the date of this report, the exercise is in good progress
and it is expected the exercise will be completed in the near
future. Upon completion of the debt restructuring exercise, it
is expected the financial burden of the Group will be greatly
relieved through principal and interest reductions.

BERE:
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement TR E B K &=

Looking forward, the expected improving financial situation
of the Group arising from the debt restructuring exercise will
enable the Group to devote even more resources for its future
developments. On one hand, given the rapid development
of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the
“Greater Bay Area”) and the support of local governments, the
Group will from time to time leveraged on its past successful
experience in the film and entertainment industry to continue
developing its core business by collaborating with various
parties and in various means, including but not limited to the
expansion of Xigiao National Arts Film Studio and developing
new film-related projects with the aims to bring additional
income to the Group and further enhanced the Group’s
reputation as a southern studio center.

On the other hand, the Group will strive to expand is business
by proactively participating in various new projects and
investments so as to broaden its revenue sources beyond its
current business. The improved financial situation together
with the sound reputation of the Group as an all-round
entertainment and cultural enterprise shall enable the Group
to seek for new investors and partners to further fuel its future
developments.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to the Company’s
shareholders for their continuing support and the Board
members and staff for their dedication and contributions.

Thank you for your support.

Chow Kai Weng
Associate Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BERETLEBMERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR DA

BUSINESS REVIEW
Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the Group’s
Xigiao National Arts Film Studio (the “Studio”) and National
Arts Resort Hotel (the “Hotel”) (collectively the “Xigiao National
Arts Film Studio Project”) has the view of Mount Xigiao which
is known as one of the national 5-star tourist attractions
and has total developed land area of 444,000 square
meters. There are unique film shooting areas throughout
the Studio along with theme parks, hotel and performing
arts complexes. The Studio incorporates sightseeing and
recreational facilities which make it the most international
vacation resort in Guangdong Province. During the year
under review, the Studio opened a new theme park named
“The Snow Queen Theme Park”, and successfully organised
a number of events, including “ 8 7 2 & & B £, B8 &
HWIEE S, “The 6th Wing Chun Competition”, “International
Youth Film and Culture Internship Programme” and “Christmas
Carnival’. Overall, the total attendances of the Studio in 2019
were approximately 1,200,000. In addition, the Group also
established the National Arts Brilliant Emperor Cinematic
Action Stunt Training Center (B 18 (2 T & ) (B 5 55 31|
/Ix), which combines films, culture and tourism and teaching
activities, aiming to nurture the next generation of movie stars.
Meanwhile, the Group has participated in several charity
groups on education. The Studio cooperated with charitable
organisations such as Caritas and Po Leung Kuk to organise
study group events for students to participate and to explore
different culture and film production in the Studio. The Groups
believes that the events held by the Group will effectively
improve the brand awareness of the Studio and will push the
Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project to the peak.

S0 o] i
B LB B R E

AEENFEELBEZEZREMN ((FEE]) KEEER
BIE(ZBE]D (FRIAELBEZESR®RIER )
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 32 & 77

Travel

National Arts Travel Limited (“NA Travel”) has been established
and commenced its business since 2015. It provides one-
stop travel services especially for major organizations,
associations and tourists with diversification, professionalism,
and internationalism as their principles, and formulates flexible
and comfortable travel plans and personalized products. To
enhance the comprehensive customer support and increase
the Group’s market competitiveness, NA Travel has updated
its inquiry and sales system in 2018. In addition to optimizing
traditional group tours, travel insurance, international flight
and hotel booking, it also organises customized group tours,
providing extraordinary experience for travelers, including
private tour business, business trainings and activities,
honeymoon and wedding plans, cruise ship holidays,
professional and special tours, etc.

Annual Report 2019
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis & I /& 51 &%

In addition, in order to diversify the current product lines, NA
Travel established “Skyyer Travel” in 2018 through the Travel
Industry Council of Hong Kong. “Skyyer Travel” presents a
fresh brand image with the slogan “What Travel means is...you
decide to go and take action! (k%% 5t & ... 78 E9 = FLEI)”. It
specializes in designing “Tailor-made tours for sport, hobby
and industry” and invites various celebrities as guests and
creates star-class tourism. The subjects includes golf, yoga,
bicycle, basketball, darts, martial arts, painting, dragon boat,
diving, photography, religion, music, food, wine appreciation,
tea ceremony and marathon, etc., providing customers with
unique experiences of in-depth tours. In 2019, to make NA
Travel’s products more international and specialized, NA
Travel expanded beyond Asia and entered regions in Europe
and the Middle East, including Bordeaux, the famous red
wine producing city, Dubai and Abu Dhabi, where guests
can visit some of the most prestigious buildings in the world.
Meanwhile, NA Travel organized “themed activities and
travels”, including international dart tournament, wing chun
tournament, Hung Kuen tournament, concert and beauty
contest. NA Travel also participated in a sports exposition and
held “Skyyer Travel Brand and Outstanding Athelete Award
Ceremony” for the first time in order to promote its brand.

In order to align with the current teaching blueprint of
“broadening horizon and life-long learning”, NA Travel
established “National Arts Cultural Study Tour Expert (B £
XAz B E K)” through the Travel Industry Council of Hong
Kong, which specializes in assisting elementary and middle
schools, social groups, and institutions to plan and organize
different cultural exchange and education activities with
foreign counterparts. Under the mission that “study tours are
provided to broaden horizon, increase knowledge, and have
real experience” and the philosophy of “exploring the world,
making friends and enriching life”, it provides professional
itinerary advice and considerate services, coupled with new
elements, including trainings for language, interests, history,
arts, science, leadership and teamwork. Study tours cover
Foshan, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Shanxi in China, Taiwan,
Korea, and Singapore, etc. The goal is to make sure that
every participant will have an unforgettable experience.

NA Travel is also committed itself to social responsibilities,
including the 1st Hong Kong Youth Festival —Sports Carnival
and Record-setting Darts Event (5 — BB 5 F&1—€ 5
SEEET ARZAI4LER), and Sowers Action — Boundless
Teaching Charity Concert (i Bl {TE)— B A EBA Z F 4
), etc. In the future, it will continue to take active part in
charitable activities and pay back to society.
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Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio Project. It covers 374,000 square
meters of land, including a lake of 120,000 square meters and
numbers of indoor and outdoor studios which are equipped
with excellent and comprehensive ancillary facilities in order
to provide the Southern China and foreign shooting crews the
most realistic and delicate scenes.

By virtue of the extensive choices of scenes, supreme
geographical location and multifunctional ancillary services,
the film shooting base has been heavily used by the
production crews. During the year of 2019, over 100
domestic and overseas production crews filmed in the film
shooting base. Since 2017, the Group has taken the role of
rental agent by entering into several rental agreements with
a number of companies renting film shooting equipment.
The partners provide the plentiful props, attires and high-
tech shooting equipment including lots of ancient costumes
of Ming and Qing dynasties, antique furniture, simulated
ordnance and other performing props. It generates substantial
revenue to the Group. Besides creating enormous synergistic
effect for the Group, it also enhances the Group’s capability
of provision of ancillary services in respect of film shooting,
and also facilitates centralization of the industry as well as
strengthen the Group’s competitiveness among its peers.
On 4 January 2018, Foshan Bureau of Culture, Publication,
Radio, Film and Television (the “Bureau”) approved a few
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company to assist the
Bureau in the operation and expansion (i) that would facilitate
film enterprises from various regions moving into Foshan,
policy presentation, solicitation of investment and funding
as well as shooting, etc.; (i) of digital studio and film location
construction projects; and (i) in respect of diversification of
props and equipment portfolio, leasing and consolidation of
props leasing business.

With the rapid increase in the demand of film industry in recent
years, the Group is actively developing the second phase
development of the Studio (the “Second Phase Project”). The
Second Phase Project includes the building of indoor studio,
which could raise the Group’s current position in the film
industry and enable the Group to develop into a world-known
film shooting base in the foreseeable future.

The Group is the first enterprise designated by the Foshan
Government to help building Foshan as the largest hub for
props and equipment in Foshan, with focus on film and
television industry, which boosted the reputation of the Group
in the industry, thereby further consolidating the presence of
the Studio in the film and television industry in Southern China.

EYHRER
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis & 32 [ 37 3 &

Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned domestic
wedding photography chain group in the fourth quarter of
20183 to develop its new wedding photography business.
Through which, the Group leased the Studio with an area of
approximately 20 mu (13,333.33 square meters) for a term
of 12 years and the wedding photography company invested
RMB10 million for the construction of scenic spots in different
styles such as European, Korean and Japanese styles
and guarantee there will be at least 28,800 couples taking
wedding photos in the scenic spots per year. The annual
income of this arrangement will be no less than approximately
RMB1.2 million starting from 2016. During the year of 2019,
there were 8,816 couples taking wedding photos in the scenic
spots.

In addition, the Group is negotiating with several jeweler,
Chinese and western bakery, Chinese style wedding gown
and wedding planning company in order to provide one-
stop service for wedding couples. The Studio is expected to
become a comprehensive wedding hot spot.

Hotel

The 5-star Hotel located next to the Studio provides 350
suites facilitated from deluxe suites to signature rooms. The
Hotel offers a wide range of dining choices and high-quality
food services, it has 6 specialties restaurants with Chinese
and foreign styles, offering high-class food and wine from
around the world. The Hotel is also equipped with a variety of
recreational facilities such as SPA, gym room and tea house,
allowing travelers to enjoy themselves within the Hotel in all
respects including dining, drinking and entertainment.

Apart from the recreation, the Hotel also provides catering
services and commercial services such as business centre,
meeting rooms and lecture halls, thereby satisfy essential
needs and wants of the customers. To boost high quality
service, the Hotel wishes to build strong communication
among its staff by organising group activities such as sport
day, in order to educate the staff of the importance of team
work and to raise spirit in the corporate environment. Besides,
the Hotel was awarded “19th Golden Horse Award of China
Hotel — Best Theme Hotel Resort of Greater Bay Area” which
recognized the corporate management quality and service
quality of the Hotel.

With the development of the Hotel and the Studio becoming
mature and its popularity having increased, the number of
tourists continuously grows. The Group expects to build
boutique hotel in the foreseeable future, offering customers
with more new experiences.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 /& 51 3 &2 2 #7

Film Production

The Group spared no effort in promoting entertainment
culture for many years such as production of and investment
in movie, microcinema and online TV programme to promote
the culture and the spirit of entertainment.

During 2016, the Group invested in the production of a charity
film named “Our Days in 6E” (F{"I&) 6E ). The theme of “Our
Days in 6E” is in line with the current social status, laden with
educational significance as part of its social responsibility. In
2019, the Group has invested in the production of a modern
romantic film, named “Romantic Marriage?” (#& i &) % % ?).
The Group expects to invest more in production of films of
various themes, thus, stepping forward to the diversified film
market.

In addition, the Group held various courses from time to
time to cultivate next generation film producers and actors
in order to encourage the development of film production
and contribute to the betterment of the film industry. With
regard to the prospects of film production of the Group, the
Group will step forward in respect of Hong Kong-Mainland
film production and maintain a position in the film industry in
Southern China.

Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
collaborated with its joint venture for the development of
cinema business in a large shopping mall in a transportation
hub area of Zhuhai, Guangdong, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC” or “China”).

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than 730
seats, and have commenced its operation since May 2014
which supports further comprehensive development of the
Group’s entertainment and culture business.

Artiste Management

To enhance the popularity of the Group’s artists such as Rose
Chan and Brian Yuen, the Group has arranged a variety of
performance opportunities including the participation in the
charity movie, “Our Days in 6E” (F /1 & 6E ), the romantic
movie, “Romantic Marriage?” (#& i &) & 3% ?), the online TV
series “OCTB” (& &), brand representative dramas such
as “Guardian Angel” (T # 18 Z {R B2 8 &) and being the
show host of the Lunar New Year Celebrahon, and the guest
performers for the “New Year is A Game” (K It 4 It) and
“Cooking Beauties’ (2 Z BT &=).
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Besides, the Group also explores the PRC market for its
artists and makes arrangement for them to participate in live
reality show and online drama to enhance their popularity.

With the huge market of domestic movies, the Group will
continue to recruit artists with potential in the future to cope
with the demands in the vast market and expand the artiste
management segment, hoping that it will become one of the
major income sources of the Group.

FUTURE PROSPECT

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 7
February 2020, the operation of the Studio and the Hotel has
been temporarily suspended since 24 January 2020 and 29
January 2020 respectively due to the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus (2019-nCoV) epidemic. In view of the relief of
the Epidemic in the PRC, the operation of the Studio and the
Hotel has resumed from 16 May 2020.

Benefiting from the opportunities brought by the construction
of the “One Belt One Road Initiatives”, the development of
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, as well
as the opening of the Hong Kong section of the Guangzhou-
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link and the Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, the China National Tourism
Administration is able to bring more convenience to overseas
visitors to pass through the Greater Bay Area, strengthen
market supervision, promote marketing and cooperation, and
support the industry to develop more “one travel with multi-
stops” tourism products. Hong Kong may become a “transit
station” to the Greater Bay Area, and travel agencies are
expected to design more intra-Bay tourism products, such
as Foshan Arts/Martial Arts/Film Tourism in response to the
development of the Greater Bay Area.
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The gross tourism revenue in Guangdong Province in the PRC
increased from RMB8.31 billion to RMB13.61 billion from
2013 to 2018, ranking among the leaders in China.
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Gross tourism revenue in Guangdong Province
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Overseas travelling by Hong Kong people (including through
airports and other departure ports) rose from 84.41 million
to 92.21 million between 2013 and 2018, representing an
increase of 9.2%.
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With aging population, more senior people choose to travel
abroad after retirement. Travel agencies will design more
medium to short itineraries, and expand the cruise market to
provide a more diverse travel experience to cater the needs
of the senior people. As young people pay more attention
to tourism and cultural experience, in-depth travelling is
increasingly popular among them. Therefore, the travel
agencies will design tours with more characteristics, such as
boxing dance tourism, tea art tourism, yoga tourism, cycling
tourism, and Michelin cuisine tourism, in order to attract
young travelers.
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The demand for business travel is increasing, and the opening
of the two major infrastructures, namely, the Hong Kong
section of the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail
Link and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, has greatly
enhanced the advantages of connection between Hong Kong
and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
Travel agencies are expected to expand tourism in related
fields, cooperate with the Group’s resort hotels and studios,
and launch corporate training and communication experiences
and theme activity tourism to meet the needs of the corporate
customers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

During the year under review, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$182.09 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$28.26 million as compared to that in
2018. The revenue was mainly derived from the entrance fee
income, and the crew rental income from the fim production
crews using the Group’s fim shooting base, while part of the
revenue was generated from sales of goods, filming, ancillary
services, the Hotel in the PRC, and the artiste management
and event coordination business in Hong Kong.

Staff costs for the period under review increased to
approximately HK$58.02 million from approximately HK$51.63
million in 2018, representing an increase of approximately
HK$6.39 million.

Other operating expenses for the period under review
increased to approximately HK$126.01 million from
approximately HK$92.21 million in the corresponding period
in 2018. An increase of approximately HK$33.8 million in
other operating expenses during the period under review
was mainly due to the increase in cost of scene setting and
advertising in the Studio.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
an operating profit of approximately HK$11.51 million as
compared to operating profit of approximately HK$14.05
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease
in operating profit was mainly due to the increase in staff costs
and other operating expenses.
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Finance costs for the year under review increased to
approximately HK$244.43 million from approximately
HK$227.33 million in 2018. As facilitated by the Company’s
financial restructuring, interest on bonds, interests on
promissory note, interest on loans from shareholders and
interest on unsecured other borrowings have been calculated
up to 14 June 2019. Nevertheless, should all conditions
precedent of the Creditors’ Scheme are satisfied, the interest
expenses of approximately HK$95,205,000 included in the
interest on bonds, interest on promissory note, interest on
loans from shareholders and interest on unsecured other
borrowings from 15 June 2019 to 31 December 2019
which have been provided for in accordance to the relevant
accounting standard will be reversed.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
a net loss of approximately HK$511.96 million as compared
to net loss of approximately HK$415.56 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The increase in net loss was
mainly due to the increase in impairment loss of financial
assets and the provision for restructuring cost.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
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Current ratio as at 31 December 2019 was 6.7% (2018:
22.2%). As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total negative
cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$2.11 million (2018: positive cash and cash equivalents
approximately HK$13.47 million).
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$1,815,887,000 and the Group continued to incur a
loss for the year of approximately HK$511,957,000. These
conditions indicate that there may exist a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Notwithstanding the existence
of these indicators, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate for the consolidated financial statements to be
prepared on the assumption that the Group will continue to
operate as a going concern. In order to improve the Group’s
financial position, immediate liquidity and cash flows, and
otherwise to sustain the Group as a going concern, the
Directors have adopted several measures, including the
following:

(@) Proposed financial restructuring plans

To facilitate the Company’s financial restructuring, on
14 June 2019, a winding up petition together with
the application for the appointment of Mr. Osman
Mohammed Arab and Mr. Lai Wing Lun, both of RSM
Corporate Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, and Mr.
Roy Bailey c/o EY Bermuda Ltd as joint provisional
liquidators (together “JPLs”) of the Company on a light
touch approach for restructuring purposes (the “JPL
Application”) was presented and filed with the Supreme
Court of Bermuda (the “Bermuda Court”) by the
Company’s Bermuda Counsel, Conyers Dill & Pearman
at the request of the Company (the “JPL Application”).

Under the JPL Application, the Board shall retain
all of its executive powers in relation to the ordinary
course of business of the Company, subject to the
JPLs’ supervision, for the purpose of developing and
proposing a financial restructuring, of the exercise of
such powers. This would allow the Company’s current
management to work with the JPLs to oversee the
implementation of a financial restructuring proposal.

The Bermuda Court made the orders as sought by the
Company under the JPL Application, inter alia, the JPLs
have been appointed on 14 June 2019.

On 10 July 2019, the Company invited all known
creditors of the Company (the “Creditors”) to make
an offer to the Company for possible restructuring
transaction, which has received substantial support
from most of the Creditors.
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On 26 August 2019, the Company put forward the
proposed scheme of arrangement pursuant to Section
99 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and Section
670 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong
Kong.

The appointment and the powers of the JPLs were
recognised by the High Court of Hong Kong on 15
August 2019.

As part of the Company’s financial restructuring plans,
the Company invited the Creditors to make an offer to
the Company to subscribe for:

(1) 1% annual coupon rate convertible bonds
due 2024 to be issued by the Company (the
“Convertible Bonds”) in the principal amount
equal to 60% of the outstanding principal amount
of debts due and owing by the Company to each
of the Creditors (where applicable, together with
interests accrued thereon and calculated up to
14 June 2019 at the respective annual interest
rate of the relevant debt(s)) and convertible into
fully-paid ordinary shares of the Company listed
and traded on GEM at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.55 per conversion share (the “Conversion
Shares”) (the “CB Subscription”); and

new shares of the Company at the issue price of
HK$0.38 per share (the “New Shares”) the total
value of which equals to the remaining 40% of the
outstanding principal amount of debts due and
owing by the Company to each of the Creditors
(where applicable, together with interests accrued
thereon and calculated up to 14 June 2019 at
the respective annual interest rate of the relevant
debt(s)) (the “Share Subscription”) (the CB
Subscription and the Share Subscription together
referred to as the “Restructuring Transaction”), as
full and final settlement of all outstanding debts
(where applicable, together with interests accrued
thereon and calculated up to 14 June 2019 at
the respective annual interest rate of the debt(s))
due and owing by the Company to the Creditors,
subject to the execution, and the final terms and
conditions, of the subscription agreement, the
bond instrument, any scheme of arrangement
proposed by the Company and/or other
agreements the execution of which is desirable
for the implementation and consummation of the
Restructuring Transaction, as the case maybe.
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The offer by the Creditors to participate in the
Restructuring Transaction also includes an agreement
that the Creditors will participate in, support and vote
in favour of a scheme(s) of arrangement proposed by
the Company, where such scheme(s) is/are deemed
necessary and appropriate by the Company and the
JPLs of the Company appointed pursuant to the Order
of the Bermuda Court dated 14 June 2019.

As at 12 August 2019, the Company has received
substantial support from the Creditors regarding the
Restructuring Transaction.

On 10 October 2019, the Restructuring Transaction
was approved by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the special general meeting of the
Company (the “SGM”).

On 8 November 2019, the creditors’ scheme, which the
Company will issue the New Shares and the Convertible
Bonds to the Creditors to discharge and release the
debt owing by the Company to the Creditors in full (the
“Scheme”), was approved by the requisite statutory
majorities of the Creditors.

On 6 March 2020, the Scheme became binding and
effective.

On 7 May 2020, the notice of decision on adjudication
of claim of the Scheme Administrators pursuant to
the Scheme (the “Decision”) were dispatched to the
Creditors.

On 27 May 2020, the application for review of the
Decision expired and no application was received.

On 9 June 2020, the Scheme Administrators informed
the Company the final result of their adjudication
of claims pursuant the Scheme and instructed the
Company to issue the New Shares and Convertible
Bonds to the Creditors pursuant to the Scheme.

In the opinion of the directors and the Scheme
Administrator, the Scheme is expected to be completed
and the New Shares and Convertible Bonds will be
issued to the each Creditor by the end of June 2020.

Extension of the Group’s other borrowing

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group has renegotiated the maturity date of other
borrowings of approximately HK$81,780,000 with
accrued interest of HK$15,869,000 as at 31 December
2019 to 30 June 2023.
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(d)

A.

Credit facilities obtained after the end of the reporting
period

At the date of this report, the Group has various credit
facilities of aggregate HK$175,000,000 with the interest
rate carrying from 6.5% to 12.0% available for the
Group’s working capital and its financial obligations.
Those credit facilities are matured after next twelve
months from the date of this report. The lenders of such
loan facilities are 3 licensed money lenders in Hong
Kong and Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, a substantial shareholder,
chairman and executive director of the Company.

Possible fund-raising activities

On 13 March 2020, the Company entered into an
agreement (the “SSF Agreement”) with GEM Global
Yield LLC SCS (the “Investor”), pursuant to which the
Investor has agreed to grant the Company an option
to require the Investor to subscribe for the shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) (the “Share Subscription
Facility”) and the Company has agreed to issue
383,000,000 warrants (the “Warrants”) to the Investor.

Under the Share Subscription Facility, the Company has
right to request the Investor to subscribe for the Shares
at a price which is 90% of the average closing price of
last 10 trading days immediately following the delivery
of subscription notice by the Company to the Investor,
but not lower than HK$0.23 per Share (the “Option”).
The Option is exercisable by the Company for 3 years,
commencing on 13 March 2020. The aggregate
subscription price under the Share Subscription Facility
is HK$2,350,000,000.

The Warrants carry a right to the Investor to subscribe
for up to a total of 383,000,000 Shares at a price of
HK$0.23 per Shares for 3 years, commencing on the
date of the satisfaction or the fulfilment of conditions
precedent to the SSF Agreement.

The issuance of the Shares under the Share
Subscription Facility and the Warrants is subject
to the approval from the Stock Exchange and the
Shareholders.

Various cost control measures

The management plans to improve the Group’s financial
performance by taking steps to reduce discretionary
expenses and administrative costs.

On the basis of the foregoing, and after assessing the
Group’s current and forecasted cash positions, the Directors
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full the
Group’s financial obligations as they fall due for the period
of twelve months from 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on the going concern basis.
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Dividend

The Directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of the Company
comprises only ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2019,
4,948,170,452 ordinary shares were issued and fully paid.

A

RE

SETRMENRE-E—AF+-A=+—RI
ERMFRBRE(ZE—N\F &) -

EXARBREELE

ARNBRNHRZZEZT=F+ A+t BEHZFTGEM
Mo ARRBRAERSEBR -R_T—LF
+=A=+—H " H4,948170,452 % 31T R 81 2
A& SR AR o

2019 2018

—F-NF AL
Amount Relative Amount Relative
<8 iz Gkl GiEES)
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
THET % FHET %
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 5,778 0.3% - 0%
Loans from shareholders RERHER 589,457 32.7% 601,031 28.7%
Borrowings BE 227,040 13.4% 193,059 9.2%
Bonds E*H 1,153,283 68.3% 1,023,319 48.9%
Promissory note A B 115,197 6.8% 106,477 51%

Lease liabilities/Finance lease HEaE KR aERE

obligation 29,763 1.8% 24,199 1.2%
Total borrowings BB 2,120,518 125.5% 1,948,085 93.1%
Equity i (431,283) (25.5%) 145,175 6.9%
Total capital employed FrERAMELRBE 1,689,235 100% 2,093,260 100%

The Group’s gearing ratio (i.e. the total borrowings to the
total capital employed) was approximately 125.5% as at 31
December 2019 (2018: 93.1%)).

Once the restructuring completes in 2020, it is expected that
all bonds, promissory notes, some shareholders’ borrowing,
loans and accrued expenses will, according to the plan, have
60% of its total value converted into five-year convertible
bonds worth approximately HK$1,210,918,000, while the
remaining 40% converted into new shares of the Group worth
approximately HK$807,279,000. Forecasts based on the
2019 consolidated statement of financial position of indicate
that, the Group’s debt ratio can reach 80.9% in 2020, thereby
greatly improving the group’s capital structure and debt ratio.

RZZFE—hF+-A=+—H AEENEELEX
(BMEFRAAZBRR APTE AR E AN4EE) 495 125.5% (=
Z—)\F :93.1%) °

HEAR_FT_TFANEKNE B 2HESHF -
EHEE - BOBRENER BEUAREFTER
BEERtEBEBAEETORERMKBLL
1,210,918,000 8 T A F EAAT MR EH - U KRBT

BT EUN_E—NFRAPBRRKRTED - B85t
R-ZE-FF AEENEEL REEEFS0.9% -
FENAANEANETERALELBELR -
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in HK$. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, most of the transactions,
assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in HK$
and RMB. During the year under review, since the Group had
both HK$ and RMB receipts and payments, the net RMB
exposure was not significant. The Board considers that the
Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk was not significant;
therefore, no hedging transaction was made during the year.

MNER B

AEBUBTIEREREE -RBE_T—NF
TZA=Z+—BLFE AKRERBIRS - BE
REEOUBTRARBEZ - ODEFEA  BARX
SERFABTRARBURFMER  BARBE
REFEBUYAEX -EFERR Z’KE.@EWE{]ER
I TER - SR F AL BT IR

Capital Commitments EXRRE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had the following capital —NEFE+—A=Z+—H8 AEEBUTER
commitments: A
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Contracted but not provided for: RTHVB R -
Construction of properties LE 3= 78,389 63,514
Authorised but not contracted for: EHEBRTH
Construction of properties (Note) ISR (MFE) 334,411 341,686

Note: Capital commitment for construction in properties related to
capital commitment for construction of film studio and hotel in
Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount was approved by
the Directors according to the land lease agreements signed
between Lux Unicorn Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and the local authority in Foshan, the PRC,
in relation to the leasing of lands for development of tourism
and related entertainment business and hotel operations. The
completion of constructions and commencement of operations
of the projects shall be within three and four years respectively
from the signing of the lease agreements.

PYRE - W) AR AR A0 B AN AR B0 FR B B L) B B2 AR I RO
EREREEER REBBERAR (ARAZ
2EMBRR) @hBEE LTI T EEAREE L
BRIMRE G A MBI BT ROB R R AT
MtEERR EFCHELTEE - GHER
AN RINERIHE R QBT =F ROFARKT
TN
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Future Plans for Substantial Investments or Capital Assets

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 December 2017, Foshan Guohao Theme Park
Management Company Limited (LTI 2 S R EE G R
A A]) (“Guohao Theme Park”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has entered into a subscription agreement with
Guangdong Hongtu Guangdian Investment Co., Ltd. (& &
sAB BB E B R A A)) (“GD Hongtu”), pursuant to which
GD Hongtu will make a capital injection of RMB20 million into
the Guohao Theme Park, in respect of joint cooperation of
the development of the Second Phase Project. The Second
Phase Project is planned to have indoor studio and boutique
hotel to be constructed next to the first phase of the Studio
and the Hotel.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any plan for
substantial investments or capital assets.

EMPLOYEE AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 505 (2018:
578) staff based in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performances,
experiences and the prevailing industry practices. In addition
to basic salaries and mandatory provident fund, staff benefits
including medical coverage scheme and share options are
offered.

The Group’s remuneration policy was reviewed periodically by
the remuneration committee and the Board’s remuneration
is determined by reference to market terms, company
performance, and individual qualifications and performance.
The Group aimed to recruit, retain and develop competent
individuals who were committed to the Group’s long-term
success and growth. Remunerations and other benefits of
employees were reviewed annually in response to both market
conditions and trends, and were based on qualifications,
experience, responsibilities and performance.

The current remuneration of directors and key management
is determined by reference to the individuals performance and
market trends.

During the year under review, the Group did not experience
any significant problems with its employees or disruption to
its operation due to labour disputes nor did it experience any
difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced
staff. The Directors believe that the Group has a good working
relationship with its employees.

ARERREFEAFHEEE

BRAARBAMAR - ZE—tHF+_-_A+T=BHR
T ARFEENBFARMGLTHEZSRERS
Rrrl((HEFE)EEERLBEEREGRA
Al ([ERCLAE ) RET T REWHE - B ERLE R
MEZSEIEARK20BET ARBRARA
EREF _HAE - —HMARRERIBEEANR
FWMRIEREE  BREZTRM —BMZOEE
Fig o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, aged 62, was appointed as the
chairman of the Company and an executive Director on 31
May 2010. Mr. Sin was re-designated from an executive
Director to a non-executive Director on 26 October 2010.
Mr. Sin resigned as the chairman of the Company and a non-
executive Director with effect from 4 May 2018. Mr. Sin was
then appointed as an executive Director and chairman of the
Company on 14 May 2019. Mr. Sin is also the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Board. Mr. Sin has over 30
years’ banking experience in various departments including
internal audit, finance, risk management and business. Mr. Sin
is an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Banker,
and he holds a Master Degree in Business Administration
from Oklahoma City University, USA, a certified diploma in
Accounting and Finance from the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a graduate Diploma in Law Course
from City University, London, UK and a Bachelor Degree of
Laws (LL.B.) (Hons) from Manchester Metropolitan University.
Mr. Sin was the chairman (since November 2011) and an
executive director (since March 2009) of First Credit Finance
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8215), a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, until he resigned from both positions
on 7 February 2018.

Mr. Chow Kai Weng, aged 35, joined the Group in January
2010. Mr. Chow holds a Bachelor Degree of Business
Administration with previous experiences in media and
financial industries. Mr. Chow was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 March 2011 and as the vice chairperson of the
Board on 5 August 2016. He was subsequently appointed
as the chairman of the Company on 4 May 2018 and the
chief executive officer and the compliance officer of the
Company on 13 June 2018. On 14 May 2019, Mr. Chow
was re-designated from the Chairman of the Company to
the Associate Chairman of the Company. Mr. Chow is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun, aged 29, joined the Group in August
2013 and has been promoted as the financial controller
of the Group since November 2016. Before joining the
Group, he worked in an accountancy firm for two years. Mr.
Cheng is primarily responsible for the financial and treasury
management of the Group and the overall management of
the operations of the Group. Mr. Cheng was appointed as
an executive Director on 4 May 2018. Mr. Cheng is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Ho Leung Ting, aged 32, joined the Group in December
2014 and has been promoted as the financial manager of
the Group since November 2016. Mr. Ho holds a bachelor’s
degree in professional accounting. Mr. Ho is primarily
responsible for the financial and treasury management of the
Group and the overall management of the operations of the
Group. Mr. Ho was appointed as an executive Director on
15 November 2018. Mr. Ho is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Lam Lee G., aged 60, was appointed a non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2017. Dr. Lam is currently an
independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8148), CSI Properties Limited
(Stock Code: 497), Elife Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 223),
Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (Stock code: 337),
Haitong Securities Company Limited (Stock Code: 6837,
600837 on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Hang Pin Living
Technology Company Limited (Stock Code: 1682), Huarong
Investment Stock Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 2277),
Kidsland International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2122),
Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (Stock Code: 391), and
Vongroup Limited (Stock Code: 318). He is a non-executive
director of China LNG Group Limited (Stock Code: 931),
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (Stock
Code: 8228), Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 188), Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited (Stock
Code: 455) and Mingfa Group (International) Company
Limited (Stock Code: 846, re-designated from independent
non-executive director on 23 April 2020) and the shares of all
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Lam is also
an independent non-executive director of China Real Estate
Group Limited (Stock code: 5RA), JCG Investment Holdings
Ltd. (Stock code: VFP), Thomson Medical Group Limited
(Stock Code: A50) and Top Global Limited (Stock code: BHO),
and is non-executive director of Singapore eDevelopment
Limited (Stock code: 40V) all of which are listed companies
on the Singapore Exchange. Dr. Lam is independent non-
executive director of Sunwah International Limited (Stock
code: SWH), whose shares are listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange, AustChina Holdings Limited (Stock code: AUH),
whose shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange
and TMC Life Sciences Berhad (Stock code: 0101), whose
shares are listed on the Bursa Malaysia, and non-executive
director of Adamas Finance Asia Limited (Stock code: ADAM),
whose shares are listed on the London Securities Exchange.

Dr. Lam was a non-executive director of China Shandong
Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 412), Green
Leader Holdings Group Limited (Stock Code: 61 which he
was appointed in June 2019 and resigned in July 2019)
and Roma Group Limited (Stock Code: 8072), and an
independent non-executive director of each of Hsin Chong
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 404) which shares were
delisted on the Stock Exchange in December 2019, Glorious
Sun Enterprises Limited (Stock Code: 393), Xi’an Haitiantian
Holdings Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 8227), all of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange; and an independent non-executive
director of Rowsley Ltd. (Stock Code: A50), a company listed
on Singapore Exchange, and Vietnam Equity Holding (Stock
Code: 3MS), a company listed on Stuttgart Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert, aged 63, holds a Bachelor Degree
in Commerce and is a practicing Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong. Mr. Chui was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2009. Mr. Chui is currently the
chairman of each of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Board. Mr. Chui is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Chui is
currently an independent non-executive director of Tse Sui
Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (Stock Code: 417), Wing
Lee Property Investments Limited (Stock Code: 864), and Asia
Cassava Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 841), the
shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and F8 Enterprises (Holdings) Group Limited
(Stock Code: 8347), the shares of which are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of PPS International (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code:
8201), a company which shares are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, until he resigned in July 2018. He is also a
director of a number of private companies and associations.

Mr. Li Kit Chee, aged 65, has more than 30 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and secretarial services.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor Degree of social sciences (with
honours) in The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Li is also a
fellow member of The Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants. Mr. Li is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
managing director of Arthur Li, Yau & Lee C.P.A. Limited.
Mr. Li is a director of Cheong Yip Secretary Limited, which
is principally engaged in corporate service related business.
Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive director
of Tyson Holdings (Stock Code: 687), a company which
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Immediately prior to his appointment as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2014, Mr. Li was an independent
non-executive director of First Credit Finance Group Limited,
a company which shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8215) until he resigned in May
2014. Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director of
Zhongcheng International Holdings Group Limited (Stock
Code: 859), a company which shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, until he resigned in February
2018. Mr. Li is currently a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Board.
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Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred, aged 59, holds a bachelor
degree of Law with honours from The University of Hong
Kong. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and a
consultant lawyer of WT Law Offices and Lam, Lee & Lai
Solicitors & Notaries. He is a Civil Celebrant of Marriages and
he also holds a professional qualification of Estate Agent’s
(Individual) License in Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is a Justice of
Peace of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and
was awarded the Queen’s Badge of Honour in January 1997.
He is also a Deputy Commissioner (Administration) of the
Civil Aid Service and the former chairman and current general
secretary of Kwai Tsing District Community Development
Fund.

Mr. Lam was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 13 May 2009 and re-designated
as a non-executive Director from 3 February 2010. He was
then appointed as the vice-chairman of the Company from
5 August 2010. Mr. Lam subsequently resigned as vice
chairman and non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 11 July 2014.

Mr. Lam was appointed as an executive director of Hong
Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (“Hong Kong
Resources”) (Stock Code: 2882), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 17 August 2011. He
was re-designated as a non-executive director of Hong Kong
Resources on 1 July 2015, and has been re-designated
as an executive director since 12 April 2017,and has been
subsequently re-designated as an consultant and ceased to
be an executive director on 12 June 2019.

Mr. Lam was appointed as a non-executive director of
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chinese Strategic”)
(Stock Code: 8089), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 2 September 2013. He was re-designated as an
executive director and appointed as the chairman of Chinese
Strategic from 1 January 2014 and has been re-designated as
a non-executive director while remaining as its chairman since
1 December 2018.

Mr. Lam was a chairman and an executive director of Lamtex
Holdings Limited (formerly known as China New Energy
Power Group Limited) (Stock Code: 1041), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from 15 June 2015
to 13 March 2016, and then was appointed as a consultant
of the company until March 2017. Mr. Lam was a non-
executive director of Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency
Limited (Stock Code: 145), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange from 21 October 2011 to 20
October 2017. On 21 March 2019, Mr. Lam was appointed
as an independent Non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Lam is currently a member of each of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Board.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
—ABOUT THE REPORT

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) are pleased to present
its Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
report (the “ESG Report”). This Report summarizes
the environmental and social impacts, policies and
initiatives of the Group during the financial year of 2019
which began on 1 January 2019 and ended on 31
December 2019 to demonstrate the Group’s long-term
commitment in ensuring that the Group’s business is
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable.

In preparing this ESG Report, the Group has complied
with the “Comply or Explain” provisions in accordance
with the Environment, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20
to the Rules (the “GEM Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and in
accordance with the practical circumstances of the
Group.

The scope of the ESG Report covers the Group’s
travelling and entertainment business in Hong Kong
and the hotel and film shooting business in Foshan,
Guangdong province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC).

The board of director of the Company (the “Board”)
acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the integrity
of the ESG Report and to the best of its knowledge,
this ESG Report addresses all material issues and fairly
presents the ESG performance of the Group and its
impact. The Board confirms that it has reviewed and
approved the ESG Report.
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The Group’s ESG Approach

The Group’s ESG approach is to ensure that the Group
continues to create long-term value for its stakeholders
includes retaining the economic and social advantages
of its operations while taking the necessary steps to
protect and support the local community, the natural,
historic and cultural heritage.

The Group understands that environmental conservation
and community engagement is more than a moral
imperative, it also makes good business sense.
By upholding its commitment to corporate social
responsibility, the Group strives to forge itself into an
environmentally friendly enterprise that cares about its
employees’ development and protects their rights and
interests. The Group adheres to the principle of equality
and integrity for its operation, and complies with
business regulations and ethic codes.

The Group is well aware of its impacts on the
environment as well as the society, and therefore it
insists on putting its ESG policies as set out in the ESG
Report into practice. By proactively upgrading and
optimizing its equipment, the Group endeavours to
meet the energy saving and emission reduction targets.
By strict implementation and continued improvement of
its employment policy, the Group provides a safe and
healthy working environment and a fair development
platform for its employees. The Group believes that by
offering an outstanding service experience and creating
long-lasting memories for its guests, its travellers, its
audience, its artists and the film crew members, the
Group can achieve a sustainable development.

How we manage ESG

The Board is responsible for evaluating and identifying
the ESG risks of the Group and ensuring that the
Group sets up an appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control system.

Therefore, the Group has established an ESG executive
committee to specify the responsibility of implementing
its ESG management and objectives. The executive
committee will drive and monitor the initiatives taken in
various aspects of the Group’s ESG practices that are
integrated with the Group’s business operation.
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2. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 2.

The Group actively communicates with its stakeholders,
establishes multiple channels of communication to
understand the topics they cared about, and regularly
reviews the effectiveness of relevant actions taken to
improve the communication channels in order for the

B

opinions of the stakeholders to be reflected fully. The
topics concerned by different stakeholder groups in the
reporting period are listed in the table below.
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Stakeholder Engagement Method Topics Action
F AR TRER £ ] 7%
Shareholders Investor relations — Financial performance The Group provides information
= communication B RIR on strategies, policies, and
wEEBR — Corporate governance  performance through its quarterly
Shareholder meeting TEER reports, interim reports, annual
RERE - Risk management reports and announcements.
[\ fx B TR SERBFERE  PHBRER
- Business transition FRIBEBARARRE  BEMN
E it BRHER -
Employees Meeting and staff interview — Career The Group provides diverse
8T SgMEI@H =X training programs, streamlines
— Health and safety the promotion process, provides
fREMT e decent wages and a safe and
—  Workplaces condition respectful workplace.
TERIR SERHEZTET - GERBE
BREE REBELIE %2
MZESHTIEST -
Tourists Business relationship/ — Travel quality The Group provides quality travel
HE feedback REE= package. The Group delivers what
BEL LSS —  Price it has promised to its guests and
B ensures its service satisfaction. All
tour guides employed by the Group
are registered and well trained.
SERHEBENIRTEE - &F
E B R E A RS - W
REMRBMEE - REEER
A SEHBRRBIINREE -
Viewers/Audience  Box office ranking, — Rich content The Group selects screenplay that
BR feedback and comment 2EMAR have a purpose to the society. The

REHE  REERAN

= =A
AT Af

Quiality
ZE8
Responsible content

BEENAR

Group invites and recruits well-
known directors and artists to act
in its films and dramas.
FEESRHHEAEENEIR -
EEBFEMBEANEEENES
EEMLBEEZMERE -
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Stakeholder Engagement Method Topics Action
MBS TRAR ES-| 7%
Government Notice — Travel and hotel service  The Group works closely with the
B mE IRITAVE S 27 municipal government to achieve
— Responsible content turning Foshan into a film culture
BEANARA center.
- Tax SE BT BT A R T TE
BOERT BREAR AL AL ©
The Group is a member of Travel
Industry Council of Hong Kong. The
Group ensures its travel and hotel
businesses comply with Travel
Agents Ordinance of Hong Kong
and the Travel Act of the PRC.
FEEREBREXZGNEE -
REEBREE S RIT LA
EBRE (B ERITRIEE G
AR E AR MBI R EEE) -
Suppliers Business relationship — Fairness The Group ensures its suppliers
e EEL RS N FERR provide the service up to the
— Long-term commitment  standard it requires. The Group
RHAG keeps its suppliers regularly
—  Trust informed and up to date on its
Bz plans so that they know where they
fit in and how they can help.
RNEBEERE B HER RS
BAREEERNRERT - £F
eTEMmHERBREENTE
A £t i 7 38 N ] B IR LB BY o
Artists Business relationship — Protect the artist rights The Group ensures its artists’ rights
2 A BESEES HEE AR and production are fully protected.
- Artist Privacy SEREREANENRIEREE
EUN VN FRORE °
Community Meeting/community — Community development The Group actively engages in
Fa = gathering R ER the local communities and work
@ HEEg —  Charity event with them to promote community

BERD

development.
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3. MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has identified 15 ESG issues pursuant to
the Group’s actual business situations and industry
characteristics. Based on the results of stakeholder
engagement, the Group prepared the materiality matrix
(see picture 1 for details).
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Picture 1 The Group’s ESG Materiality Matrix
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to reducing its energy
consumption, greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, water
consumption and waste footprint by high efficiency
and green development concept. The awareness of
environment protection is integrated in the strategies
and all the operation steps of the Group.

The Group believes that what gets measured, gets
managed. The Group has therefore joined the World
Wild Fund (“WWF”) Low Carbon Manufacturing
Program (“LCMP”) and established energy and
emissions improvement goals. The Group’s hotel, office
and film studio also have individual short-term goals
which are reviewed and adjusted annually. In the future,
the Group plans to continue increasing its operational
eco-efficiency, developing continuous improvement
plan that considers science-based targets required to
curb GHG emissions.

During the reporting period, no penalties had
been imposed upon the Group for violation of any
environmental laws and regulations. The Group did
not receive any complaints in relation to environment
protection raised by the customers or any other person.

4.1 Emissions

As the Company is an investment holding
company and its principal subsidiaries in Hong
Kong mainly participate in film production and
distribution, provision of management service to
artistes and provision of travel related products, it
does not have significant air emissions, discharge
into water or land in relation to its operations in
Hong Kong. No substantial hazardous waste
was produced by the Group during the reporting
period.

In relation to the operation of National Arts Resort
Hotel (the “Hotel”) and Xigiao National Arts Film
Studio (the “Studio”) in the PRC, the air emissions
from our hotel boilers and company vehicles,
waste-water discharge, GHG and waste are the
major emissions of the Group.

The Hotel and the Studio have obtained the
official approval of environmental impact
assessment (the “Environmental Impact
Assessment”) documents as required by the
legislation in the PRC. The Group’s Environmental
Impact Assessment documents and official
approval covers all activities in the Hotel and
Studio.
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The pollution prevention equipment and
procedure cited in the Environment Impact
Assessment documents are inspected by the
local environmental protection authority in the
PRC. The Group’s pollutant-discharge permit is
valid and effective and the Group has declared
the pollutants produced to the local authority in a
timely manner.

All of the Group’s transport vehicles bought and
used for company affairs have conformed to
national emission standards.

The Hotel has implemented appropriate checks
for air-pollutant leakage and has set up targets
to improve air-emission reduction. Except
for Scope 2 Indirect GHG emission due to
the increase of electricity usage, the Group
recorded improvement in GHG emissions in
2019 when compared with last year. The Hotel
also has an appropriate emergency plan for
potential emergencies that may result in negative
environmental impact, which include procedures
to handle identified non-compliance, with
applicable corrective and preventive action.

During the reporting period, the Group had
strictly complied with the emission standard of air
pollutants and the relevant laws and regulations
on environmental protection.

Fuel Type
vk kil

Energy Consumed (MJ)
SRR (CKEE)
NOx emission (kg)
REIDHR(DT)
SOx emission (kg)
RECDHR(DT)
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Intensity Intensity
(Consumption/ (Consumption/
Amount Headcount) Amount Headcount)
HE BECER/AY) Y8 ZECEE/AZ)
6.29 million MJ 12,455 MJ 7.14 million MJ 13972 MJ
BEXEE KEE REXEE KEE
135.9kg A fr 0.3kg2Afr 1543 kg AT 03kg AT
169kg A f 0.03kg 2 7 19.2kg AT 0.03kgAfT
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4.1.1 GHG Emissions

The Group’s responses to the challenges posed
by climate change are based on the Group’s
ongoing efforts to reduce the GHG emissions.
For the year under review, with the help of WWF’s
LCMP, the Group has an accurate picture of its
direct and indirect contribution to GHG emissions.
For the Scope 3 GHG emission, the Group has
covered the following activities: business travel,
fresh water used, water discharge and paper
usage.

The consumption of electricity at the Hotel is the
primary source of the Group’s GHG emission.
The second primary source is the consumption of
natural gas for the boilers at the Hotel.

During the reporting period, the Group’s GHG
emissions equated to a total of approximately
2,006 tonnes of CO2 equivalent (“tCO2¢e”) and
the detailed summary of the GHG emission is
shown as below:

B ER B

SEEERIRECHBNBNIZENT
EETHORDRERBHFBNE S -1
CEFEEAN  EEREAES FERKE
EAENED T KEMAT [#E3]
BRERBHENGE ENEEREBE
) 7 HE R 8 15 55 (B B S R TS B AR AR B2
EEREREHMNEENEZER -
BANEREREHREE  HET
TEE AT AKER - BEKAH
MARGEER -

BEMNREEESBREREBHMNET
BRI - BREREEMME —EEER
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2019 2018
ZE-RE —Z-N\E
Intensity Intensity
(Consumption/ (Consumption/
GHG Emissions Amount Headcount) Amount Headcount)
BERBHR HE BE(HE/AH) #E BECER/AZ)
Scope 1 Direct GHG emission 418tC0.e 0.828 tCO.e 4941CO. 0.967 t1CO
EEMEEREHR(BR1) B-EtHEE W_StHEE M_StRE: B_ERE:S
Scope 2 Indirect GHG emission from
the generation of purchased energy 1,550 €O 3.07tC0. 1,366 tCO. 2.671C0£
@ IERENWRELNMEEN B-E{HEE W-E(HEE W_ELKEE WBoAkREs
REREHN(EE2)
Scope 3 Other Indirect GHG emission
not included in Scope 2 38C0.e 0.08 tCO.e 421C0e 0.08tC0e
REREBE2NEUREN B-EthEE W-StREE H_StREE B-EtREEs
RERBIN (ER)
Total GHG Emission 2,006 tCOe 3.971tC0e 1,903 tCOs 3.721C0
RERBIMLEE B-EtHEE W-StREE H_SHEs B_SltiEs

The increased total amount and intensity of GHG
emission was attributable to the increased Scope
2 GHG Emissions. The increased Scope 2 GHG
Emissions was mainly attributable to significant
electricity used in the PRC during 2019 due to
the increased occupancy rate of dormitory.

During the reporting period, the Group strictly
complied with the relevant laws and regulations in
relation to GHG emissions.
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4.1.2 Waste

Waste is generated by many activities in the
Group’s travel, hotels and entertainment business,
including food preparation, guest waste, events
waste and cleaning. The Group pro-actively
seeks ways to reduce waste which goes to
landfill or incineration. The waste reduction
and management system is one of the most
important environmental protection procedures
followed during the operation of the Group’s hotel
business. The Group educates its employees
annually about the procedure which should be
followed regarding the waste produced, the
separation of each waste and recycling. The
Group has rolled-out food waste reduction
training through its hotel chefs. The Group’s
program resulted in reduction of food waste. The
remaining food wastes were used for farm feed.

For the Studio, the Group has mapped out a
few waste categories, including film equipment,
glass, aluminium, metal, wood, paper, costume,
landscaping waste, batteries, used appliances
and printer toners. For each of these waste
streams, the Studio has identified disposal
methods based on local available options. These
methods include recycling, reuse, rental, donation
and composting. Approaches vary across waste
streams with significant strides made thus far to
reduce paper and waste.

For the Group’s Hong Kong head office, the
Group has implemented various programs to
encourage employees to participate in waste
reduction management, including:

. Encourage double-sided printing and reuse
of waste papers;

o Purchase green and environmental printing
paper;

o Encourage to use electronic channels
for internal correspondence and
communication;

. Waste papers are collected by recycling
collectors; and

o Used printing supplies boxes and toners
are returned to printing supplies companies
for recycling and reuse.

B

N
| Report 2019
SR
X F&
3
RS

R
RS
RN

®&

4.12 BEEY

FERY W R BAOIREE OB E MREEE
BORZEBTELD BRERMER -
EREENLENL  SHEBHMER
BREENIE Bt AEEERS
SO AR R SR B R TR BE R WA T
EeoRIVBERMEEEEGEREERE
EEBEEREPREENRRTEZ
—  AEEEFRE INAMELNE
RY) - BABEERYN D AR BN A T
FEERME - REREE S BT AR 3
AR A R f R B IR F o bt A E E R
LT RERE - FBNRMIFEAR
BIZEE

HREBNFZRM  AEECHRH D
BN BESTARN W 88
BB AH AR IRE EMAR(CREY
B — FREMITENRRE - HRE
gy SEMNFZRNBREE NN
AREERETRENE - BLER
EEW - BFAE - HE BRI
BEREMRNEETESETHER 29
R A MR MEZEY TS T ERE
B o

HREBNFBERR  HREKI  K
SECHTZERAE ZEET2HERE
BEEIE B

s TREEEINMERER -

o EBERRRRNIIENM

e HEBENETREETAE
BB

o HEMKEKERER &

o EABEMIEHEMERER X
EIZIENFEM AR EIR A o

37



38 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Environmental, Social and Governance Report 3235 - H 8 RER R &

4.1.3

4.2

Through the above mitigation measures, the
Group believes that it will change the behaviour
of the use of resources in its workplaces and
achieve the goal of waste reduction in the coming
years.

During the reporting period, the Group has
strictly complied with the Solid Waste Pollution
Prevention Law of the PRC, the Urban City Space
and Environmental Sanitation Management
Regulations and other relevant laws and
regulations on waste handling in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

Waste-water

The Group’s hotel waste-water is treated and
discharged in accordance with the local Foshan
municipal regulation “Wastewater Quality
Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers”
(5 7K BE A SR T K 38 K E 12 ). The Group
applies wastewater treatment procedures
including the activated sludge process and the
bio-film process to its sewage before discharge.
Throughout the year under review, the Group
strictly complied with the given standards and
relevant laws and regulations and the results are
satisfactory.

Use of Resources

The Group strives to use resources effectively and
minimize the discharge of wastes. In the ordinary
course of business, the Group has implemented
various energy saving and emission reduction
measures. Apart from the waste reduction actions
mentioned above, the other relevant examples
are as follows:

Reduce

o Less print out for client communications
and corporate materials.

o Office supply purchase across departments
to avoid unnecessary purchases and
disposals.

o Installation of water filtration systems to
avoid use of bottled water.

4.1.3

4.2
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4.2.1

Reuse

. Donations of used items including
mattresses, linens and towels to the
communities, suppliers and business
partners.

. Composting and donating food and
landscaping waste for farm feed.

o Reuse of film shooting equipments.
. Reuse of film shooting costumes.
Recycle

. Waste stream segregation.

o Staff training and behavioural change.

. Engagement with local municipalities and
waste management partners.

° Local partnerships to recycle e-wastes,
metals, lamps and batteries.

Energy Consumption

Electricity consumption was increased significantly
in 2019 when compared to 2018. The reason
for such increased was due to the increased
occupancy rate of dormitory during 2019.

The natural gas consumption has decreased
in 2019 as compared to 2018. The decreased
is mainly attributable by the removal of buffet
from the menu of the Group’s restaurant which
reduced energy usage for cooking and food
heater.
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The Group has 13 small vehicles and 7 light
goods vehicles in Hong Kong and the PRC used
in its daily business operation. The vehicles are
the third largest contributor to our emissions
profile. During the reporting period, the vehicles

AEEBREBRPRAE13W/NARE
L7HEAEE - HARBTATER
EERE ZEAEARMEEBIERD
FEZRRR - RREBM  ZEREH
24,716 FH M M 1,302 FH 40/ o

consumed approximately 24,716 litres of petrol
and 1,302 litres of diesel.

AEBCEREHITER B - AR T
HERE o AT IS B AR AT R
1T - TR A IR N E M B B
WETRE  BRBALETRERS
ERMRR T ENTRIA AR S/ URERE -
HRFEKNEE  AEEE_F— A
FARERDFEHE

The Group has implemented a fuel-efficient action
plan to trim petrol use. The plan encourages
drivers to plan the journey before driving, adopt
a gentle style of acceleration, and conduct
regular servicing of vehicles including monthly
tyres check. Tyres in poor condition will raise fuel
consumption. The successful implementation of
this plan enabled the Group to lower its petrol
consumption significantly in 2019.

2019 2018
“E-RE ZZ-N\F
Intensity Intensity
(Consumption/ (Consumption/
Amount Headcount) Amount Headcount)
BEE BECEE/ AR BEE BECEE/AH)
The non-renewable energy
FUBERR
AA Natural Gas 164,108 32497 186,435 36484
' ’ KRR cubic meter cubic meter cubic meter cubic meter
d v5 b TH TH
Petrol 24,716 48.94 31,995 62.61
b litres AF litres A7 lires A F+ lires A7+
= Digsel 1,302 2.58 6,498 12.71
L litres A% litres A7 lires AT+ lires A7
Electricity Purchased
BENESD
‘ Electricity 5,700,000 11,287 4,900,000 9,589
g kWh TR kWh TE kWh 1 kWh T
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4.2.2 Water

Water is a serious issue to the Group’s business.
The availability of clean and accessible water
is essential to the services it provides and
critical to the health and economic vitality of
the communities where the Group operates.
As part of the operations of the Hotel, there are
bathroom in every room and swimming pool in
the premises. Therefore, water forms an integral
part of every guest experience. Proper water
management is essential to ensure that water is
used efficiently and also eliminates the possibility
of water pollution. The Group received consistent
water supply during the reporting period.

During the reporting period, the Group does
not have issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose.

To reduce its water footprint, the Group executes
a series of water conservation strategies including
investing in water efficiency technologies,
stimulating process improvements and reusing
and recycling water. The Group’s Hotel is actively
identifying and implementing water efficiency
technologies and process improvements to
conserve water, in areas like kitchens, laundry
areas, gardens, toilet, swimming pool and cooling
systems. The Group also continues to retrofit
motion sensors and low flow fixtures in common
areas, install dual flush toilet to reduce water
consumption.

In 2019, the Group’s water consumption
including hotel swimming pools and guestrooms
water usage, Hong Kong head office, and Foshan
film shooting base, was 130,253 tonnes, a 2%
decrease compared to the prior year.

Water
X

Water Consumed
AkE

42,

2019 2018
“E-hE “T-N\F
Intensity Intensity
(Tonnes/ (Tonnes/
Amount Employee) Amount Employee)
BE (§,/E8) ERE  ZE0E/EE)
258 132,765 259
Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes
¥ i ]

HHE

130,253
Tonnes
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4.2.3 Packaging Materials

Due to the nature of the business, the Group
does not have any material use of packaging
materials. Therefore, the Group considered the
number of packaging materials used insignificant.

4.2.4 Paper Usage

43

Apart from printing paper for our office use, the
Hotel also provides toilet paper for guest use.
The paper usage of the Group was approximately
983 kg during the reporting period.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is working on various sustainable
development activities to ensure the resources are
used effectively and responsibly while providing
its service. It is an important responsibility for the
Group to bring less impact to the environment.
The Group is always considerate to the
sustainable development and it will keep focusing
on community environmental conservation.

The Group has also initiated to promote tree
planting activities around the studio, which helps
to build an eco-friendly working environment and
safeguard the ecosystems of local communities.

Committed to mitigating the impact of its business
on the environmental and other natural resources,
the Group did not cause any serious pollution or
damage to its surrounding environment during
the reporting period, including air, land, water and
ecological system. Policies and measures on the
use of resources and emissions are already set
out in details in the above sections.

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance relating to use of resources and
the Group had complied with all relevant
environmental rules and regulations in Hong Kong
and the PRC during the reporting period.

423 BEHH

HREEERBOEE - AEBEE MM
RETTEZEMEE - Bt - AEER
RABEMHNBERMTRE -

424 #E

BT HAEEMITEIRI  BEER
BEARMERA - EAREPTAERE - K
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5. EMPLOYMENT

5.1

Labour Practices

The Group has always considered talents as its
most valuable resource and asset. The Group
respects and protects the statutory rights and
interests of employees, provide a fair career
development platform, cares about its employees’
physical and mental health, and join hands with
employees to realize sustainable development.

The Group has developed sound employment
policies covering the requirements and standards
of recruitment, promotion, remuneration,
resignation, treatment and so on, and regulates
each requirement and standard to ensure the
efficient management of human resources.

The human resource department of the Group
develops recruitment plans in accordance with
the recruitment needs of various departments,
and continuously introduce talents to join the
Group through social recruitment, campus
recruitment, internal referral and other channels.
The human resource department of the Group
strictly implements the recruitment evaluation
program, adheres to the selection principle
of fairness and selection of high calibre, and
provides equal job opportunities in accordance
with their competence and abilities. The Group
enters into employment contracts with the
employees in accordance with the requirements
of the Labour Law, covering matters such as
wages, benefits working hours, rest periods,
safety and sanitary conditions in the workplace,
and grounds for termination.

The Group is committed to implementing the
remuneration distribution principals based
on performance, efficiency and fairness. On
top of labor basic salary, the Group may pay
performance bonuses in accordance with
employees’ performance and the Group’s
business performance. In order to maintain a
competitive remuneration package, the Group
carries out evaluation and adjustment on
remuneration every year with reference to the
average wage, the consumption level and the
industry rate of the relevant city, so as to attract
and retain talents.
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The Group adheres to the principles of fairness AEBTRERERE  HE K-
in the provision of employment opportunities, EETEAMEAFEERERAFTNRA
compensation, training, performance evaluation NEEERMR - Fik - Bk "8 K
and promotion without any forms of discrimination AL EWEAR o REBBAREIER T
such as gender, age, ethnicity, religion and MEEH) TIEIRIR ©

culture. The Group is committed to creating a fair
and harmonious working environment.

The Group has not discovered any material non- WEE AEETRERTMEHEET
compliance or any violation of employment and AROBERNEMNERERRS TIHSA
labour related regulations during the reporting EIREVIER ©
period.

5.1.1 Employee Profile 51.1 BT
The Group commitment is to support the local AEERNABTHRBEREMLE IR
community by hiring local employees. As at 31 TEREMWHE BE_T-NFT+=A
December 2019, the Group employed a total of =T—H £EHXEFSBET - £E
505 employees. The vast majority of the Group’s BRZEE TR A o 12 K52 ME
employees are local. It is especially important ET¥E EREMEILESZ -ER
in the travel and hospitality industry to hire local —RERHEEFENEE  AEERM
employees. As an employer in support of equal REBESEZENA-BRETX SEE
opportunity, the Group efforts are leaning towards ERBBEHR LM 1554%, ™ B M58
hiring the most talented people. As per the below DT8% 5T 46% °

table, more than half of the Group’s employees
are females and they account for 54%, whereas
males account for 8% less, at 46%.

Total
Mt
Total Employees BTHEH 505
By Gender =15l
Total Male Employees FET 231
Total Female Employees ZET 274
Below 25 years old /NPA 25 5%, 78
25-34 years old 25-34 755, 2 [ 187
35-44 years old 35-44 5%, 2 [ 113
45-54 years old 45-54 1% 2 8 93
Above 55 years old 5557 A 34
By Employment Mode ZERER
Full time i 505
Part-time 0 0
By Level R B
Management EIR 88
Non-management FERE 417

By Location & it 75

PRC H 469
Hong Kong BB 36
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5.1.2 Employee Turnover Rate

Employee turnover rates can vary widely across
different sectors of business. The Group’s
employee turnover rate during the reporting
period is 46.85%.

The reason for the high turn-over rate is because
in hospitality industry, the rate is normally
higher due to the requirement to work shifts
after probation. Another reason is because
the location of the Hotel is far away from the
downtown of Foshan city. As the occupancy rate
of the Group’s dormitory increased in 2019, the
Group’s tumn-over rate has been improved when
compared with 2018 to improve the turnover rate
and attract more local labour.

The Group is investing more time and money to
develop training programs to help in retaining
employees. Table below shows the Group’s
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TRTENEIBEEERZRRAN - H
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FRERENREL EEETE B
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employee turnover rate by gender, age group and BEE.
geographical region.
No. of employees
ETHE
Employee Turnover Rate ETEHEX 46.85%
Employee Turnover Rate by Gender RUEBBIPNEIFEER
Male Employee Turnover Rate FEIFEEX 58.82%
Female Employee Turnover Rate ZEITFER 36.30%
Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group RERMARNSINEIEER
Below 25 years old /INRA 25 5%, 91.28%
25-34 years old 25-34 7%, 2 & 35.58%
35-44 years old 35-44 755, 2 [ 47.22%
45-54 years old 45-54 155, 2 [ 24.31%
Above 55 years old 55 5% A = 37.74%
Employee Turnover Rate by Location RiBUBEINEIEER
PRC AR HAME 95%
Hong Kong B 5%

QXX
QR
R

45



46

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Environmental, Social and Governance Report 3% 3% - #

5.2

Health and Safety

Health and safety in the workplace is part of our
duty of care for employees. As a responsible
employer, the Group is committed to reducing
accidents, illness, and risks in the working
area as far as possible, promoting the health
of its employees, and thus also reducing the
absence rate and employee turnover rate. The
Group focuses on three major areas to minimise
occupational hazards and health and safety risks:

1. Fire Safety Inspection — testing and
maintenance of all fire safety related
installations in the Group’s film shooting
base, hotel and workplace. Fire drills
exercise for the Group’s employees
annually.

2. Occupational Health & Safety — Health
and safety classes in the workplace, film
shooting base, and the Group’s artist
performance venue.

3. Security — Security of guests, the artists,
film crew and property.

The guests of the Group spend a considerable
amount of time in the Studio and the Hotel. They
trust the Group to provide an environment that is
not only comfortable and aesthetically beautiful,
but also safe during their visit. It is also critical that
the Group’s employees are provided with a safe
working environment. Hence, the Hotel is audited
annually to monitor its compliance with relevant
safety guidelines. The annual audit process
ensures that the management teams of the Hotel
and the Studio focus on health and safety issues
and are prepared to manage crisis and business
interruptions.

For the Group’s travel, fim production and artiste
management business, the Group ensures all
employees, artists, crew members and guests
are given sufficient information about safety. As
the Group’s businesses are mainly project or
event based, before they get started, they will be
insured. As each project or event carries different
risks, the types of insurance needed and the
level of premium will vary. The Group will insure
all its employees, artists, guests against the risks
of injury, accident, sickness, and damage to
equipment.
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5.3

During the reporting period, the Group complied
with the Work Safety Law and Fire Prevention
Law of the PRC and the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance of Hong Kong. The Group has
achieved zero work related fatalities and the lost
days due to work injury are 15 days during the
reporting period. The Group did not discover any
material non-compliance of occupational health
and safety related laws and regulations during the
reporting period.

Development and Training

The Group cares about the development of its
employees and expects to promote its business
growth by unleashing the development potential
of their talents. The internal training policies of
the Group has been formulated with an aim to
improve the staff's personal skills and bring out
their best value for the development of the Group.

The human resources department of the
Group provides the new recruits with a unified
induction training covering its corporate culture
and development direction, while the relevant
departments provide them with trainings required
for their respective positions. The Group also
organizes various types of trainings for all staff
throughout the year to improve the interaction
between employees from different departments.
Regular trainings in sales skills, market
information and hospitality skills are provided to
frontline personnel to assist them to deliver quality
services to customers and motivate them to work
aggressively towards the annual sales target. The
Group also provides training allowance for non-
frontline staff to encourage them to participate in
job-related external trainings so as to enhance
their own value and working skills.

Every newly appointed director of the Company
will be given a set of induction materials to
ensure that he/she will have an appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and
the directors’ duties (in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements). In addition,
the Company encourages all directors of the
Company to participate in continuous professional
development courses and seminars to develop
and update their knowledge and skills.
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During the reporting period, for the Group’s
hotel business, the Group’s employees have an
average of 14 training hours annually and 100%
of the employees undertook the training. For the
head office and the Studio, its employees have an
average of 3 and 48 training hours annually and
100% of the employees (including senior-level
employees) undertook the training. The training
plan includes the skills required for upcoming
tasks and company-wide management training.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the relevant
employment and labour laws and regulations
and has never employed any child labour under
the age of 16 or forced labour. It has formulated
clear policies to prevent compulsory labour and
employment of child labour, making sure that
its employees enjoy their fundamental rights
related to labour and has insisted on monitoring
the recruitment process frequently to prevent
the occurrence of illegal conduct. The Group’s
code of conduct and employment contract sets
out the Group’s general approach regarding
the labour standards. In addition to the Group’s
code of conduct, the Group’s human resources
policy also covers the labour standard. The policy
provides the framework of rules applicable to all
human resources activities within the Group’s
operations. The Group did not discover any
material non-compliance of labour rights and
labour related laws and regulations during the
reporting period.

Supply Chain Management

The Group’s supplier code of conduct (the
“Supplier Code of Conduct”) provides a
framework for how the Group manages its
relationship with suppliers and contractors.
Critical areas include product quality, warranty,
corruption and compliance with local laws and
regulation. The Group is currently strengthening
this approach through a dedicated program
which will improve our supplier management.
The Supplier Code of Conduct sets out the
procurement policies, processes, selection, and
the minimum standards. The Group expects its
suppliers to meet the standards prescribed in the
Supplier Code of Conduct and are working with
them to achieve this.
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5.6

For the Group’s hotel and travel business, the
Group implements stringent supplier admission
reviews to overcome any potential challenges
along the supply chain. The Hotel prioritises
suppliers that are recommended by peers,
have third-party certification and are of good
reputation. The Group has established a qualified
suppliers’ list in which the performance of the
suppliers are evaluated.

The Group has strict requirements for food safety.
Therefore, it is especially important for it to make
sure that all of the food suppliers meet the food
safety standard. Suppliers are required to have
the relevant food safety system in place such as
ISO 22000, HACCP certificate. The Group has
developed a supplier performance rating system
which covers quality of product, price, packaging,
and delivery time. Continuous poor performance
will lead to termination of contract.

Product and Service Responsibility

In delivering the Group’s travel and hospitality
services it is very important to meet its guests’
and travellers’ expectations in order to ensure
continuous improvement and growth of its
business. In a highly competitive tourism market,
understanding its guests’ and travellers’ needs
and expectations is imperative for sustainable
growth. The Group’s actions and commitments in
order to satisfy its guests and other stakeholders
include:

o Commitment to ensure its product quality.
° Commitment to ensure its product safety.

o Commitment to satisfy its customers’
needs, requirements and expectations.

o Commitment to satisfy its tour operator
partners.

o Managing service quality by following
international standards.

. Maintaining open communications with its
employees, customers and suppliers.

o |dentifying, evaluating and monitoring all
food safety risks from production to delivery
through the implementation of food quality
standards in all the resorts and hotels.
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In addition, the Group’s employees are well
trained and the Group’s equipment for managing
the health and safety of its guests and travellers
is comprehensive. Each of the Group’s business
units is committed to continuous improvement
and satisfaction of the Group’s guests are
assessed and ratings thereby are used to identify
specific areas for further improvement.

The Group is devoted to putting its guests’ and
travellers’ preferences and choices as its first
priority. Refunds of travel packages is possible,
subject to company policies. The Group also
values the feedback from its guests and travellers
as they act as catalyst for advancement in its
services. Guests and travellers can give their
comments and reviews on the Group through
different channels such as through a designated
phone call where they will all be directed to and
handled by the Group’s dedicated customer
service team.

During the reporting period, the Group complied
with Trade Descriptions Ordinance of Hong Kong,
Food Hygiene Law of the PRC and the relevant
laws and regulations relating to health and safety,
advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating
to the Group’s services. The Group continues
to review and enhance its communications to
ensure that the Group provides its guests and
travellers with the latest information. The Group
takes seriously its commitment to keep its guests
and travellers informed about the services it
offers. The Group avoids providing its guests
and travellers any false or misleading service
information especially on the tour package. The
Group’s employees are required to maintain
transparency in communication and marketing.
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5.7

5.8

Protection of Customer Privacy

The Group attaches great importance to customer
information security, to maintain a sound
corporate reputation and establish a cooperative
and trusted business relationship with customers.
The Group is committed to improving information
confidentiality management system, and limiting
employees’ access to confidential information
of customers through the implementation of a
number of information security measures and
strict authority management in order to guarantee
that the information is for authorized use only.

The Group has educated its employees the
following:

. Preserving the guests’ trust by safeguarding
and handling their information in a private
and confidential manner.

o The importance of guest privacy.

. Exchanging confidential information is
prohibited.

During the reporting period, the Group complied
with Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong
Kong and the relevant laws and regulations
of the PRC. The Group did not discover any
circumstances of consumers’ personal data
being stolen, altered, damaged or leaked during
the reporting period.

Anti-Corruption

The Group maintains and effectively implements
a comprehensive system of internal control
and stringent policies for anticorruption, and is
committed to preventing and monitoring any
malpractices or unethical practice.

The Group has strictly complied with ethical
requirements and there was no occurrence of
corruption, bribery, fraud and money laundering
throughout the reporting period. The Group will
adhere to its corporate ethics and uphold its
reputation to prevent corruption.
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The Group anti-corruption awareness training for
employees ranges from on-boarding and yearly
reminder programs. The purpose of the program
is to help all employees understand the Group’s
values and the policy. Integrity is vital part of the
Group’s business. The Group’s management
is committed to sending a clear and consistent
message to all employees and business partners
that corruption and bribery are unacceptable.

Employees can report to the management of
the Group with respect to any noncompliance
such as receiving bribes, abuse of power by
mail, electronic mail or phone. All business units
have the responsibility to conduct regular risk
assessment of their anticorruption procedures
and implement remedial measures to mitigate
risks.

During the reporting period, the Group had
complied with Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the other relevant laws and
regulations of relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

6. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporates citizen, the Group uses its
expertise and resources to support the communities
in which it operated in various ways. The Group
continues to focus on the following areas for community
investment:

Provide helping hands for people in need;

Foster a healthy and green living environment in
the community;

Support local charitable events; and

Provide training opportunities for young people.

During the reporting period, the Group maintained
its status as a Caring Company and participated in
various charitable events as well as made donations to
secondary schools.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board
is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the
year ended 31 December 2019. This report highlights the key
corporate governance practices of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year of 2019, the Company has adopted and
complied with all code provisions (the “Code Provisions”,
each a “Code Provision”), where appropriate as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the “Corporate
Governance Code”) then in force with an aim of maximizing
the shareholders’ interest and enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability, except for the followings:

As Mr. Chow Kai Weng has served as both the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company from 13 June
2018 to 13 May 2019, such practice deviates from the code
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both the chairman
and the chief executive officer in the same person can
facilitate the execution of the Group’s business strategies
and enhance effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the
Board considers that the deviation from the code provision
A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code is appropriate in
such circumstances. Following the appointment of Mr. Sin
Kwok Lam as an executive Director and the chairman of the
Company and the re-designation of Mr. Chow Kai Weng from
the chairman of the Company to the associate chairman of
the Company with effect from 14 May 2019, the Company
has complied with the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance with sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices and procedures during the year ended
31 December 2019, including below practices:

Board Meetings

o The Company held four regular Board meetings and five
general Board meetings during the year under review.
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Re-election of non-executive directors

o Non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. One Non-executive Director
and one Independent Non-executive Director were re-
elected at the annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) held in June 2019.

Establish a nomination committee

o The Company has established a nomination Committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority
and duties. During the year under review, Prof. Wong
Lung Tak Patrick resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director and ceased to be a member of
Nomination Committee with effect from 1 January 2019
and Mr. Chow Kai Weng ceased to be the chairman
and a member of the Nomination Committee on 14 May
2019. Mr. Lam Kwok Hing was appointed as a member
of the Nomination Committee on 22 March 2019 and
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam was appointed as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee in place of Mr. Chow
Kai Weng on 14 May 2019. As at 31 December 2019
and the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises two Independent Non-executive Director and
one Executive Director, and is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board.

Present annual and interim reports

° The Group presented its unaudited interim report
and audited annual report of the financial year 2019.
In addition, the Group also presented its unaudited
operational information for the first and third quarters of
the financial year 2019.

Risk management and internal control system review

o The Group adopted a systematic and sustainable risk
management and internal control system during the
year under review. The Board reviews and considers
the nature and extent of the significant risk in its
business and the external environment, and the scope
and quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control system annually.

The other key corporate governance principles and practices
of the Group are also outlined in this corporate governance
report.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices within the Group and
devotes considerable efforts to identify and formalize best
practices. The Board believes that sound and effective
corporate practices are fundamental to the smooth, effective
and transparent operation of a company and its ability to
attract investment, protect the rights of its shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value.

It is the Group’s mission to create and preserve the cultural
heritage, develop film and media industry by telling purposeful
story and cultivating entertainment and travel community that
is vibrant and relevant to audiences.

The Group’s Values

The Group has five core values, which are:
- Respect

- Innovation

- Teamwork

- Communication

- Challenge

The values express what the Group stands for and are core to
its business. As a values-led-organization, the Group’s values
shape its people’s decision and actions. They guide how the
Group’s employees work together.

The Group corporate governance framework plays an integral
role in supporting the business and helping the Group to
deliver its strategy. It provides the structure upon which the
Group’s strategies and business objectives are set and the
performance is monitored. It includes a clear framework
for decision making and accountability across the Group’s
business and provides guidance on the standards of behavior
the Group expects of its management and employees. The
Group is committed to excellence in corporate governance,
transparency and accountability. This is essential for the long
term performance and sustainability of the Group, and to
protect and enhance the interests of the Group’s shareholders
and other stakeholders.

The Group regularly reviews its corporate governance
arrangements, to reflect developments in market practice,
expectations and regulation as appropriate.

This section provides an overview of some of the important
aspects of the Group’s corporate governance framework.
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Set out below is the current corporate governance framework
of the Group.

TEHIAEERITOEEREARE

Shareholders

B3R

Nomination
Committee
REZAE

Company

Remuneration
Committee
THEEE

Audit
Committee
ELEAS

Internal Audit &
Risk Management

External

Secretary
NGIEDSS

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance with sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices and procedures with an aim of
maximizing interests as well as to enhancing the transparency
and accountability to the stakeholders. The Company had
adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific
enquiry of all Directors, and the Directors have confirmed they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and its
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
executive Directors which represents a mixture of experts
specializing in management, law, accounts and finance.
All Directors possess comprehensive qualifications and
experience as well as exposure to various different industries
which are crucial to the growth of the Group.

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, formulating and overseeing the Group’s business
strategies and monitoring the financial performance, risk
management and internal control of the Group’s business and
operations.

To oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees (the “Board
Committees”), namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee. The Board has
delegated to each of the Board Committees responsibility
for maintaining an appropriate financial reporting, risk
management and internal control system, reviewing its
directors’ remuneration policy and reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and accountable to Board.
The details of each Board Committees are set out in the
section headed “Board Committees” from page 65 to page
71 of this annual report.

The Board has delegated to the management the
responsibility for (i) the day-to-day management of the
Group’s businesses; (ii) implementation of the strategies
approved by the Board; and (jii) providing all such information
to the Board as is necessary to enable the Board to monitor
the performance of the management. The Board also gives
clear directions to the management team as to their powers of
management, and circumstances in which the management
team should report back. The management would report
back to the Board and obtain Board approval before making
certain decisions.
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All Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board to
ensure its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
company secretary and the management of the Company.
The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves its authority for making decision on
all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies and
budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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Board Composition

The details of the executive Directors, the non-executive
Directors and the independent non-executive Directors,
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at the
date of this annual report are set out below:
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Date of first appointment Date of last re-election

Name of Directors to the Board as Director
BEpg BREZEZESENAS BE-REERESNAN
Executive Directors
HirEZE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) 14 May 2019 28 June 2019
REMEE (k) ZE-AERATEA ZE-AERAZTAR

(Appointed as Chairman and Executive Director

on 14 May 2019)

(RZZ-NERATRARZAARER)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Associate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 25 March 2011 28 June 2019
Bl5¢ (BETERTEEH) “E-—F=f-1+1A ZE-AERAZTAR

(Re-designated from Chairman to Associate Chairman

on 14 May 2019)

(RZF-NFRAtRERTIRBEABRLR)

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
LIEN 3t

Mr. Ho Leung Ting
fRExs

Non-executive Directors
FHITEF

Dr.Lam Lee G.
HEEEL

Incependent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

oAk

Mr. Li Kit Chee

PRz EE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (Resigned on 1 January 2019)
EREAR (RZZ2-NE-A—RE{E)

Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred (Appointed on 22 March 2019)
MEELE (R=Z-NE=R=+-REZ)

4 May 2018 28 June 2018
“Z-\F¥RAEA “Z-\ERAZTNR
15 November 2018 28 June 2019

“E-\ET-ATER ZE-AERASTAR

30 June 2017 28 June 2019
ZZ-t45A=TH ZE-NERAZT\H
13 May 2009 28 June 2018
ZZZNFRAT=H ZZ-\EXAZT\H
1June 2014 28 June 2018
ZE-WERA-H ZE-\EXAZT\H
3 February 2010 24 June 2016
—E2-ZE-JZH ZE-RERAZTHEA
22 March 2019 28 June 2019

“E-NF=A-tZH “E-AFRAZTN\H

The biographical details of each of the Directors and the
relationships between them (if any) are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” from page 25 to
page 28 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As required by Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the role of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual to ensure a clear division between their
respective independence and accountability and to maintain
a balance of power and authority. Mr. Chow Kai Weng served
as both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer for the
period from 13 June 2018 to 14 May 2019, such practice
deviates from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The deviation was mitigated since the
appointment of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam as the Chairman on 14
May 2019.

Non-executive Directors

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term and subject to re-election. The existing Non-
executive Director has been appointed by the Company for
a specific term of two years and is subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Following the resignation of Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick,
with effect from 1 January 2019, the Company has only
two independent non-executive Directors, with at least one
of them having appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. This
falls below the minimum number requirement under Rules
5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The situation was
mitigated following the appointment of Mr. Lam Kwok Hing
Wilfred as an Independent Non-executive Director on 22
March 2019. From 22 March 2019 to 31 December 2019,
the Company complied with Rules 5.05 and 5.08 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board is responsible for the appointment of new
Directors and the nomination of Directors for re-election by
shareholders of the Company at the AGM. In accordance with
the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power from time
to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board, whom is subject to retirement and re-
election in accordance with the Bye-laws.

All Executive Directors are engaged on service contracts with
the Company for a term of three years.

The Company has also entered into a letter of appointment
or re-appointment with the Non-executive Director and each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors for a term of
two years subject to retirement, re-election and removal in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of shareholders of
the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

Pursuant to the Bye-law 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-laws, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Such retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election
and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting
at which he retires.

Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER

21 EENRERES

EEg R ETRRERESHARAKRRRN
ARBIBRRBEFAELEE - REQARMA - EF
BRI REETIHENALIRES  NEMES
SHREBTRANBEBEFTEHNKE  EELBARE
NEMA SRR EE -

ARBBRTEETHRARRITLEHR=FN
RIEEHK

ARBFEEEATEFTREBUIIFNTERIL
ZEREHMEZEE ZEFHRAME  LAREAE
BERMANLARMARE BRETRER -

RIBAARHAGMAFESSQE  TREESEESE
FEABREERONES  ETHBEERETE
MARRERERRERAE AL WERZAS LEE
HT MEMNEZESSZTEABREEETSIIEN
BMER HAHE=TERRAFAE AL I
A fE BB A B R EAT -

BRIBEARRBHQFMEIEL41) R84Q) & NEE
BREBFASLER=—"DZ—NWESAHRERT
MEREEERLE-FHERT X - GRERT
EEYFLERBRET YRERTHRE L4
EHTEE-

61



62

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Corporate Governance Report 1 ¥ & 34 8 &

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

The Directors’ ongoing training is very important to the
maintenance of high corporate governance standards in the
Company. The Company has adopted a policy on induction
and continuous professional development to encourage
all Directors to update themselves, on a continuous basis,
on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime
and changes in the business and market environment in
which the Group operates to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

To assist the Directors in their continuing professional
development, the Company recommends that they regularly
attend relevant seminars and courses at the expenses of
the Company and the Directors are required to provide the
Company with his/her annual training record to ensure the
enhancement of their knowledge and skill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors have
participated in the continuous professional developments in
relation to regulatory updates, duties and responsibilities of

the Directors and the business of the Group in the following

manner:

Name of Directors

EEpE

Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER

HEZZ-NF+T_A=+—BILFE 28E=F
VME2EAHEESRE EFZRBEBRENAE
BEB HBEEREREY  FBR0OT

Types of Training
ZAER

Executive Directors
HiTEE

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam
B A

Mr. Chow Kai Weng
ERIER 5

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
LGN e

Mr. Ho Leung Ting
AR ERE

Non-execultive Directors
HHTEF

Dr. Lam Lee G.
MEREEL

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHHTEE

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
EECEE

Mr. Li Kit Chee

TR AE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
EREHEK

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

(Chairman)

(£/E)

(Appointed on 14 May 2019)
(RZZ-NEFRRTHARZE)

A&B

(Associate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) A&B

(B 2 RITHARZE)

(Re-designated from Chairman to
Associate Chairman

on 14 May 2019)

A&B

(RZB-NFRER+HAREFERER

R EE)

(Resigned on 1 January 2019)
(RZZE-NF—HA—HEE)
(Appointed on 22 March 2019)

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

N/A

A&B

R B 5 A (RZE-NF=A=Z+ZAEZHF)

Remarks: e

A Attending internal briefing session in relating to corporate A ZNEBERCEEBNANIGHREH
governance

B: Reading materials in relation to regulatory updates

B: MEBMEE

EEZRFHBHER
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019, the Directors have consistently selected
and applied appropriate accounting policies and standards,
make judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group incurred a net current
liabilities of HK$1,815,887,000.

The Group’s net current liabilities condition indicate that
there may exist a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Notwithstanding the existence of these indicators,
the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate for
the consolidated financial statements to be prepared on
the assumption that the Group will continue to operate as
a going concern. In order to improve the Group’s financial
position, immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise
to sustain the Group as a going concern, the Directors have
adopted several measures to resolve the debt condition.
After assessing the Group’s current and forecasted cash
positions, the Directors are satisfied that the Group will be
able to meet in full the Group’s financial obligations as they fall
due for the period of twelve months from 31 December 2019.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on the going concern basis. For
further details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Liquidity
and Financial Resources” in “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report and note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 135 to 143 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and
to enhance the function of the Board, the Company has
established three Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Each Board Committee was established with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties and are reviewed from time to time.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 2002 with its
written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules. From 1 January 2019 to 21 March 2019, the
Audit Committee comprised two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman) and Mr.
Li Kit Chee. From 22 March 2019 to 31 December 2019, the
Audit Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr.
Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

Following the resignation of Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
with effect from 1 January 2019, the Company has only two
Independent Non-executive Directors on the Board and in
the Audit Committee, which falls below the minimum number
required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
situation was mitigated following the appointment of Mr. Lam
Kwok Hing Wilfred as Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee on 22 March 2019.
From 22 March 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Company
complied with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the
Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of 3 members,
have at least one of whom is an Independent Non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise and be
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to: (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal; (ii) review and monitor the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems; and (iii) review the Company’s financial information.

Annual Report 2019
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit
Committee held four meetings for the reviewing of the
Group’s annual, half-yearly and quarterly results, assessing
and evaluating of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management procedures and internal control system. The
Audit Committee has also made recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of the external auditor after
reviewing the scope of services offered and the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor. The
attendance record of these meetings is set out in the section
headed “Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance”
on page 71 of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005
with its written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. From 1 January 2019 to 21 March 2019,
the Remuneration Committee comprised two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
(Chairman) and Mr. Li Kit Chee. From 22 March 2019 to 31
December 2019, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui
Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred and
Mr. Li Kit Chee. The Company has complied with Rule 5.34
of GEM Listing Rules that a remuneration committee should
comprise a majority of independent non-executive directors
and should be chaired by an independent non-executive
director.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include: (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
(ii) reviewing and determining the remuneration packages
of each individual Executive Director and management
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments; and (iii) ensuring that none of the Directors or their
associates will involve in deciding his own remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee adopted the approach under
Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) to make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and the
management of the Company.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year under
review are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings in relation to
the overall remuneration policy and structure and making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages
of each individual Executive Director and the management
in assessing their performance and approval of the relevant
terms of service contracts; and reviewed the proposed
director’s fee of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, Mr. Chow Kai Weng,
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun, Mr. Ho Leung Ting and Mr. Lam
Kwok Hing Wilfred (newly appointed as Independent non-
executive Director on 22 March 2019) and recommended
the same to the Board for approval. The attendance record
of the meetings is set out in the section headed “Board and
Committees Meetings and Attendance” on page 71 of this
annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012 with its
written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules. From 1 January 2019 to 21 March 2019, the
Nomination Committee comprised one Executive Director and
one Independent Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chow
Kai Weng (Chairman) and Mr. Li Kit Chee. From 22 March
2019 to 13 May 2019, the Nomination Committee comprised
one Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Chairman), Mr. Lam
Kwok Hing Wilfred and Mr. Li Kit Chee. From 14 May 2019 to
31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee comprised
one Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman), Mr. Lam
Kwok Hing Wilfred and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are
mainly (i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
identification of suitable, qualified individuals for selection and
appointment as Directors; (i) to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company; and (iii)
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment or re-designation of, and succession planning
for the Directors (in particular the Chairman) and the Chief
Executive Officer.

Annual Report 2019
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in
September 2013 concerning diversity of the Board. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
are based on merit, and candidates are considered against
various objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee discusses
and determines the measurable objectives for implementing
diversity on the Board and recommends the same to the
Board for adoption on an annual basis. The Nomination
Committee will review the policy on a regular basis and will
discuss any revision that may be required, and recommend
any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings and (i) reviewed the structure,
size, composition and the diversity policy of the Board;
(i) assessed the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors; (iii) reviewed the training and continuing
professional development of the Directors; (iv) evaluated the
Directors’ time commitment and the contribution required
from the Directors to discharge their responsibilities; and (v)
reviewed the biography of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and Mr. Lam
Kwok Hing Wilfred and recommended them to the Board
for approval to be appointed as the Executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Director respectively. The
attendance record of the meetings is set out in the section
headed “Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance”
on page 71 of this annual report.
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Nomination Policy and Procedure
The Nomination Committee would use the criteria listed below

as reference for the selection, appointment and reappointment
of Directors:

Integrity and reputation;

- Professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

- Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

- Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service; and

- Any other criteria as the Committee may deem fit to
consider in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

The above criteria are for reference only, and not meant to
be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

Candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information, including the information as required by the
Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a Director and to the
public disclosure of their personal data on any documents or
the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their
appointment as a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered
necessary.

Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER

REBRREF

REZBERERTIREES ZHE
EMEENLE

CEER

— AEREE:
— RAFEBREEAEOEEAN K
MARAER

— WUREERABASNES

-  JFHEMZEN  BRETRRER - Fie (18
BEAL) XLEHBEER Bk FELR -
ee - MBRRBER R

- ié\guﬁ}:ﬂ%fﬁ'ﬂfﬁﬁmﬁﬁ+ NG
BRI RERRORENS

NEREEHSE - I
BEeRENBRATMAL -

BMIPREN  REE

RIEABWERREIMENBEAELS - BIEGEM £
MRANE170Q KR EMNER  UERFEFERR
ERTTAEENAZARSEAES ZEMNMAME
A BEERE A AFREEEEAER - MEKE
REZE S ERREARMEBEINGE R R F -

MAME RAZARTEREEAREEGE
BR XM -

69



70

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Corporate Governance Report 1 ¥ & 34 8 &

Any Director may nominate a candidate for appointment,
election or re-election as a Director by the Board or at a
general meeting. Upon obtaining the required information
from the candidate, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
whether such candidate is qualified to be appointed, elected
or re-elected into the Board based on the criteria as set out
above and the relevant GEM Listing Rules and the policies of
the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting to
discuss and consider the recommendation of the candidate to
the Board for appointment, election or reelection as a Director
by the Board or at a general meeting.

Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance

The Board is scheduled to meet at least four times each
year on a quarterly basis to discuss the Group’s business
development, operations and financial performance. Notices
of not less than 14 days in advance together with the formal
agenda are addressed to all Directors for all regular board
meetings. For additional Board meetings which require
discussion and resolution of significant issues arising from
the operation of the Company, notice is given in a reasonable
time in advance. To enable the Directors to make informed
decisions, the Board papers together with all appropriate and
relevant materials and information in relation to the matters
to be discussed and considered at the Board meeting are
sent to all Directors. Proper minutes of Board meetings and
Committees meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
of the Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
Directors for comments and records respectively within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for inspection on reasonable notice by any Directors.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board
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meetings, the Board Committees meetings and the general tREESgeR EFZECTERARERGZRE
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out BRIV
in the following table:
Remuneration Audit  Nomination
Date of Appointment/ Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Name of Directors Resignation Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting  Notes
F¥HER®  EHEE R4zEf
j £33 E/BERE fE3 4] &3 &3 g8 RRAE ME
Executiee Directors HiTEF
Mr. SnKwokLam (Chaiman) ~ REMES(£E)  (Appoitedas Chaiman  (R=F-AF A 59 - - - 022 1. Mr.Sin Kwok Lam was appointed as FEMEER
and Executive Director THREZEATR Chaimman, Execuive Director and the -hERRTHAE
on 14 May 2019) E9ES) (Wit Chairman of the Nomination Comittes REATE 20E
(Note 1) on 14 May 2019, HIAZREIR
Mr. Chow Kai Weng fdssociate  BIETSE 4 (Re-designated from (R=F-N51A 99 - - K] 02 2. Mr.Chow Kai Weng was re-designated BRRRER-F
Chaiman and Ohief Executive ERfiE  ChamantoAssocete  THA#TEEEH fromthe Chaiman to the Associate -NERATEAR
Offcer) Chairman on 14 May ZEEBRER) Chairman and ceased to be the IREENZEAY
2019) Note 2) (Hf3E2) Chairman and a member of the R FBRELT
Nomination Committee on 14 May B RIREEE
2019, gHE-
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun Balits 99 - - - 2R
Mr. Ho Leung Ting ARELE 99 - - - 2%
Nor-executiee Diectors FiEE
Dr.LamLeg G. WREET 99 - - - 2
Indlgpendnt Non-executire BUHHTEE
Directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert EECRE 99 33 af - -
Mr. LiKit Chee EX v 99 33 44 23 22
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick ~~ EEE#R [Resigned on 1 January - - - - - 3. Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick resigned EREARR_Z
2019 (Note 3) as an Independent Non-executive -NE-B-REfE
Director on 1 January 2019, BuknES-
Mr. Lam Kok Hing Wired MEREE (Appointedon 22 March ~ (H=F-15=A 79 113 34 113 202 4. Mr. Lam Kok Hing Wifred was 3
2019) (Note 4) =} £33 appointed s an Independent Non- -nE=A=+ZA
(GED) exeauive Director, a member each of BEERBIHFHT
the Aut Comitteg, the Remuneration £2 BHZEE
Committee and the Nomination WEEgRREEE
Committee on 22 March 2019, gHE-.
Total number of meeting(s) g2y 9 3 4 3 2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions performed by the
Board include: (i) formulating and reviewing the corporate
governance policies and practices of the Company; (ii)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and the management;
(iii) reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company in compliance with the relevant laws and regulatory
requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors; and (v) reviewing the compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code by the Company and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sun Shui (“Ms. Sun”) resigned and Mr. Pang Yick Him
(“Mr. Pang”) was appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company since 6 December 2019. Mr. Pang is not a
full time employee of the Company. The primary person at
the Company with whom Mr. Pang has been contacting in
respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. Cheng Wang
Chun, an executive director.

Mr. Pang has over 10 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, finance, treasury management and corporate
compliance. Mr. Pang holds a bachelor degree of business
administration from the Hong Kong Baptist University and is
a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and & Certified Financial Risk Manager
admitted by the Global Association of Risk Professionals. Mr.
Pang is currently also a director of a local audit firm in Hong
Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has
access to the advice and services of Ms. Sun and Mr. Pang at
all times in accordance with Code Provision F.1.4 of Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules. Ms. Sun has taken no less than
15 hours of professional training during the year under review
pursuant to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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THE AUDITORS

With the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Company engaged Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite
Partners”) as the external auditors for the financial year ended
31 December 2019. Elite Partners is independent and there
are no relationships between Elite Partners and the Company
that are likely to impair its independence. The roles and
responsibilities of Elite Partners are stated in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 135 to 143 of this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Elite Partners, the independent
auditors, in respect of audit services and non-audit services

for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out below:

Type of services provided by the independent auditors
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Fees paid/payable

BAREMREHNREES g ERERAAR

HK$

BT

Audit services BT RS 1,000,000
Non-audit services IERET RIS

— Other —Hftb -

TOTAL: B 1,000,000

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with effect from 1
January 2019. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and
in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia:

(i) the financial condition of the Group;

(i) the prevailing economic climate;

(i) the Group’s earnings and cash flow;

(iv)  the Group’s expected capital requirements;

(v)  statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment of
dividends by the Company;

(vi)  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group; and

(vii)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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Declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
also subject to the Bye-laws, the laws of Bermuda and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time by the Board and there can be no assurance that any
dividend will be proposed or declared in any given period.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
conducted annual review of the effectiveness of such systems
through the Audit Committee. The Group’s risk management
framework sets out the process of identification, evaluation
and management of the principal risks affecting the business,
please refer to “Risk Management Report” of this annual
report for details. The Group’s system of internal control is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage and
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfilment
of the business objectives. The internal control system is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board in order to make
it practical and effective in providing reasonable assurance
in relation to protection of material assets and shareholders’
interests.

Internal Control Policies

The Group’s internal control has put in place by the Board,
management, and other personnel of the Group, designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of
objectives in the following categories:

o Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

o Reliability of financial reporting

o Compliance with applicable laws and regulations
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The internal control covers every activity and transaction in
the Group, while the Group emphasized that everyone is an
important part of internal control systems. The internal control
policies of the Group comprises five aspects:

e Separation of Duties

Separation of duties involves splitting responsibility
of particular experienced employees for personnel
administration, planning, performance monitoring,
marketing and accounting and requiring critical tasks to
be reviewed by the management of the Group.

e Access Control

Controlling access to different parts of data and/or
system via passwords, lockouts and electronic access
logs can keep unauthorized users out of the data and/
or system while access tracking can also serve to deter
attempts at fraudulent access in the first place.

e Approval Authority

Requiring specific managers to authorize certain types
of transactions such as large amount orders, significant
transaction, etc and approval for particular activities
such as recruitment, marketing plans, large payments
and expenses, etc to prevent unscrupulous employees
from making large fraudulent transactions.

e Documentations

Standardizing documents used for particular activities
(e.g. Hotel room reservation form, petty cash claim
form, administration memo, etc) to maintain consistency
in record keeping over time. Using standard document
formats can make it easier to review past records when
searching for the source of a discrepancy in the system.

e Internal Audit

Internal audits include test on the Group’s operating
procedures, documents examination, hand-counting
cash and any physical assets tracked, etc to oversee
the effectiveness of the internal controls.
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The Board and the Audit Committee have conducted an
annual review on the need of setting up an internal audit
department and having considered that the corporate and
operation structure of the Group is not complex and a
separate internal audit department may divert resources of
the Group, the Board and the Audit Committee consider
that the Company currently is not necessary to have an
internal audit department. However, the Group has engaged
an independent third party internal control consultant to, on
an annual basis, review and provide recommendations on
improving its internal control system in order to manage its
business risks and to ensure its smooth operation. The review
covered certain operational procedures. No significant control
failings or weakness have been identified by the consultant
during the review.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit
Committee, with reference to and based on the internal audit
report issued by the independent audit firm, conducted a
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions,
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting, internal control and financial
reporting functions, and training programmes and budget. The
Board has considered and discussed the internal audit report
issued by the independent audit firm, the work conducted by
the independent audit firm, the Audit Committee’s view on
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and their effectiveness. The Board and the Audit Committee
considered the risk management and internal control of the
Group effective and adequate.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no significant areas
of concern that might affect shareholders were identified. It
should be acknowledged that the Group’s risk management
and Internal control system are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
at the reasonable level, but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal control for the
handling and dissemination of price-sensitive information, the
Company is aware of its obligations under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Law of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and the GEM Listing Rules and has
established the inside information/price sensitive information
disclosure policy (the “Disclosure Policy”) with close regard to
the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by
the Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong.

The Disclosure Policy includes, among other things:

M

(i)

(i)

only designated persons are authorised to communicate
the Company’s corporate matters with investors,
analysts, the media or other members of the investment
community;

Directors shall report to the Chief Executive Officer
any potential/suspected inside information as soon as
practicable for him to consult (if appropriate) the Board
thereafter for determining the nature of developments,
and if required, making appropriate disclosure;

disclosure of inside information must be made in a
manner that can provide for equal, timely and effective
access by the public to the disclosed inside information;

inside information must be kept strictly confidential
until a public announcement is made and shall be
disseminated in accordance with the requirements of
the SFO and the GEM Listing Rules before it is released
via other channels.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2019.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders which
enables shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding on the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Board
also believes that it is vital for developing and maintaining
continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential and
existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.nationalarts.hk”
as a communication platform with its shareholders and
investors, where the Group’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

The Board considers general meetings of the Company as an
important channel for shareholders to exchange views with
the Board and will endeavour to be available at the meetings
to answer any questions raised by shareholders of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure shareholders’
interest. To do so, the Company maintains on-going
dialogues with shareholders and encourage their participation
in the AGM or other general meetings. Notice of meeting
containing agenda, proposed resolutions and proxy form are
sent to registered shareholders by post. All shareholders are
entitled to attend AGM and special general meetings (“SGM”),
provided that their names are registered in the register of
members of the Company on the record date which is used
to determine the entitiement to attend a meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company, to require an SGM to be
called by the Board, provided that such requisition properly
states the object(s) and deposited at the registered office of
the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary,
and be verified with and confirmed by the Company’s share
registrar that such requisition is proper and in order.

The SGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
or any of them representing more than one-half of their total
voting rights may do so, but any SGM so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the date
of deposit of the requisition. A meeting convened by the
requisitionist(s) shall be convened in the same manner as if
the meeting was convened by the Board.
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Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of registered shareholders holding not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (the
“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 registered shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (i) provide shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting with
notice of any resolution(s) which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (i) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meetings
any statement(s) in not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolutions or other
businesses to be dealt with at that meeting. A requisition
signed by all the requisitionist(s) with a sum sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses shall be deposited at the
registered office of the Company not less than six weeks
in case of a requisition requiring a notice of resolution(s) or
before the meeting. If an AGM is called for on a date six
weeks or less after the deposit of such requisition, such
requisition, through not deposited within the required time
period, shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for
the purpose thereof.

Enquiries from shareholders

Shareholders’ enquiries regarding their shareholdings should
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other
enquiries from shareholders can be directed to the Board
whose contact details are shown on page 4 of this annual
report.

To ensure the long-term growth and achieve the Group’s
strategic objectives, an effective risk management takes an
essential and important role. Since 2017, the Group adopted
a systematic and sustainable approach in order to provide
a clear responsibility and accountability structure for risk
management.

The Group’s risk management framework clearly stated the
role of the Board, Audit Committee, managerial officers of the
Company (the “Management”) and business unit and their
own responsibilities to risk management. The aim is to identify
risks and then manage them so that they can be understood,
reduced, mitigated or avoided. The Group’s Risk Management
Report was presented to the Board for review in December
2019.
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MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group’s risk management framework and its own REEMERBREERBEREESHET !

responsibilities:

The Group’s risk management framework AEENEREERT

The Board
e Board Oversight
e Goal Formulation

Top-down approach:
Evaluate and monitor the strategic
risk to achieve the Group’s goals
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The Audit Committee
® |Independent Assurance
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Risk escalation and
assurance
BB F R R % The Management
¢ Risk Reporting and
Communication
e Risk and Control Oversight
Function
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Business unit/individuals
¢ Risk and Control Ownership
¢ Mitigating Plans
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Guidelines, role and
responsibilities
ESl - AERERE

Bottom-up approach:

Identification and prioritization of all material risks by cross-functional workshop
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AREERE

The Group’s Risk Management Responsibilities

1.

The Board is responsible to:

Formulate the annual business objectives,
planning and decision making at the strategic
level;

Oversee management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management framework and approve risk
appetite. Meeting with Audit Committee and the
Management to ensure the risk management
framework is maintained appropriately and
effectively.

The Audit Committee is responsible to:

Oversee the Group’s overall risk assessment
along with the effectiveness of the risk controls
and mitigation process and identify all material
risks that may impact the achievement of the
Group’s business objectives;

Review the risk reports and breaches of risk
tolerances and policies, and discuss with the
Management in relation to the selected risks for
more detailed review. Summarise the material
risks and circulate to the Board.

The Management is responsible to:

Review the risk management process regularly,
and report on the key risks and consider
common risks across the Group. The Group
Risk Management Report shall be prepared and
submitted to the Audit Committee;

Identify the Group’s financial risks and non-
financial risks, including strategic reputational,
regulatory, operational risk and rank the risks
with reference to their own materiality and
circumstances. Risk register shall be established;

Establish various policies, procedures and
guidelines with defined authority for effective
segregation in relation to the risk management
and established an effective communication
channel to report on any malpractice and
unethical conduct. The training programme is
arranged for the Group’s employees regularly
to ensure their understanding of the Group’s
business objectives and their own duties.
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4. The business units and each individual are responsible

to:

Carry out risk management activities in day-to-
day operation in their areas of responsibility,
making effective risk management processes
and mitigating plans in accordance with good
practices and guidelines established by the
Management;

Report any malpractice and unethical conduct
within the Group without fear of reprisal and
victimization, and discuss with the Management
on any difficulties in relation to the risk
management on a timely basis. Business Unit
risk management reports shall be prepared and
submitted to the Management.

ES
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The Group’s Risk Management Process

AREERE

The Group’s risk management process consists of five major phases: 1) Establishing the risk context; 2) Identifying risks;
3) Risk assessment and evaluation; 4) Developing control and mitigation plans; 5) Risk reporting and monitoring, covering
the business and decision-making processes including strategy formulation, business development and planning, capital
allocation, investment decisions and day-to-day operation:
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1).

Establishing the risk
context
REBBESR

Risk reference tables for the Group were established and updated by the
business units and reviewed by the Management regularly.
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The Management sets a common risk language to avoid any conflicting
terminology or confusion.
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2).

ANp4
A4

Identifying risks
B = b

In annual business planning process, divisions and departments are required
to identify all material risks that may impact their achievement of business
objectives.

EE2FEBREEET DM EAPFIER R EREREKBRNMAE
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Divisions and departments identify the risks at the business unit level and the
Management identifies the risks including financial and non-financial risk at the
Group level.
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3).

Risk assessment and
evaluation

22, B 5

Divisions and departments assess and score the risk identified along with their
impact on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

3 HB R #BPI R AL M e HE PR O AR - DA R RIS B MR B A AT R -

The Management shall ensure project risk for each investment project is
assessed in details and properly documented.

ERERERLSERERERETHANELD ARG U ZELHESR -

The risks identified in the annual business planning process and/or in each
investment planning process are evaluated based on the same set of risk
profiling criteria as the quarterly risk review process.

E2FEBREBREP R/ RIESEIRE R BB T AR & &R AR 5
ERREHBENR —ERR DT ERFG -

4).

N\ /£
V
Developing control and

mitigation plans

FIEEERAT &S

The Management reviews the effectiveness of the risk management process and
approves the mitigation plans.

BIEE R AR EER TR AR KA E A R E o

Divisions and departments identify risk and then processes the mitigating plans in
accordance with good practices and guidelines established by the Management.

DRI L AP EIREMABIEM R FERRIES - BRI AR - RRBIEFE
atal -

5).

\ /£
V

Risk reporting and
monitoring

B B 3 R BE R

Emerging risks and/or overarching strategic risks, which may have a material
impact on the Group over a longer time frame, are monitored and discussed on
a quarterly basis by the Audit Committee and the Board.

MK ERER R REENRBERBRRENS REHAEEEREATE -
MAREEZZEQRESEERNETETTR -

The Board established a communication channel including bottom-up and top-
down review process across the Group.

Bt ERARE  ERUASEREETA T LRA LM TAOERM -

Business units prepared the quarterly Business Unit Risk Management Report
and submitted to the Management. The Management reviews the Business
Unit Risk Management Report and highlights the material risk in the Group Risk
Management Report and submits to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

EBEUNRHETEEBEURAREERELERTERRE - EREEFTEH
EBEURBREERS  RENHEHEERREERETHERNRR - WiE
RTEREZE® -
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Material Risks of the Group

Since 2016, the Group has adopted the an enterprise risk
management system (the “ERM System”) in the identification

FRENERAR

B2 AFE AEERBEERRERSE ([H
ERBELBIE]) - AR R i A5 B H) E R

and analysis of existing and emerging risks to the business Eﬁiﬁiﬂfﬂﬁi%?é): E’Jiﬁbﬁ&%ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂﬁﬁ BIEFEE -
strategy planning and business development of the Group REEREERRE - MBER R EERR o FTRAN
including: business, strategic and regulatory risks, financial (=EEN EE%'JTE’]’*E%E HERE: )AEEE

ﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬂi%i‘%qﬂ WEARER : R2) EEAFEEE
EBE LNEXRBRANMEBITE S RERE 1

risks and operational risks. The ERM System adopted was
compiled to cover: 1) the material risks of the Group in both
existing and new business; and 2) associated action plans
and controls designed to mitigate the material risks, where
applicable, at appropriate levels:

Risk Description Risk Mitigations
B B # t [\ B 4F SR HE e

Business, strategic and regulatory risks: They are the risks in relation to the impact from the market environments, changes
of corporate structure, non-compliance of regulatory, rules or laws and the strategy planning of the Group. These risks
included longer-term risks for the upcoming 3-5 year and are reviewed by Audit Committee quarterly and documented in
the Group’s Risk Management Report.

R FEIEEER LSRN AR  AAK
BEMMER - ZEAR

Failure to React to Rapid Growth of Online Activities

(Online Threat)

The continuous and rapid growth of online activities
including digital media and online marketing further drives
changes in business behavior while altering the entire
competitive landscape, especially in the PRC.

Furthermore, online rating platforms are increasingly
popular which allow customers to give comments on the
Group’s products and services and thus reputational risks
for the Group become higher and higher.

RERBEHERERRNOE LFEH (B EREB)

BLEBRERRIEE B HERERE LS
E—FREEETARE RASXEERBESER &
BIRAERE -

UEoh - FEARATE T A MR B - B E S A U
HARENESRRERETE Bt AEEHEE
ARSI -

BED EREE BIE - MASOEE M A EBRRERBIMELY
BREAKRIZSFHNRGAR HEXZESSFTENREEERRERREPRELESR -

In the film production segment, the Group plans to
introduce various elements e.g. Computer Graphics
Technologies, Virtual Reality, etc. and invest in online
TV programme, micro movies, etc. to cope with the
high demands in online market.

HEZEUEDE $%@n+¥IJ%I)\THE’JE% i
EEERN  ERERS WIREM FEREA -
WMELE - UEHE LETISHEATK -

The Group uses variety of online media e.g. Facebook,
Instagram etc. to establish communication channel
with existing and new customers. In the meantime, the
Group cooperates with other online media to put more
focus on marketing efforts to attract target customers.
NEEMBRREHE EEE - Pl 40 Facebook

Instagram % - X EIRG RFT R A EBRE - B
SERIES - REEEEME FREEEE RMERER
BMEZEHEIR

The Group from time to time reviews comments
on online rating platforms and made adjustments
to its products and services to improve customer
experiences.
AREBANBESHERFEF S LOFNE ARHE
EmRRGELABRURARTER -

Non-compliance with Corporate Governance Code °

With effect from 1 January 2016, the Stock Exchange
has amended its Corporate Governance Code relating
to risk management. With the rapid development of the
Group, insufficient employee’s risk awareness and risk
management technique may result in non-compliance

BT NE—A A BXMETTERREREE
MEEESSTA - BEEAEBRNRIEER - B THEK
ERkEBREERDANRAEEHERME -

The Group has continuously improved and enhanced
its enterprise risk management framework and
strengthened a range of guideline, procedures and
policies for employees across the Group to comply
with the amendments and further adjustments are
being made to relevant processes to ensure timely
compliance.

$%I%KEE&§& =D %ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂi%@% Ir H0
e YUECEIN %%F%&Eﬁlﬁi ERAEE2EES
2 EHIERTIE — S HE - 1§
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Risk Description

[ i i 3t

Risk Mitigations
BB AT BB

Product Competitiveness

The Group is well known for operating the Xigiao National
Arts Studio Project including film shooting areas, theme
parks, etc. in Foshan City. However, some of the tourists
may raise their attention to the theme park with similar
nature nearby which got the national AAAA level tourist
attractions identity since August 2016. The establishment
of nearby competitor increased the importance of products
and services diversity for the Group in order to retain the
attention of tourists.

i
E

EmBEFED

$§.E1#Mﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬂJlﬁ§/%ﬁm%ﬂE

ERMBERESY  TEREF - Am - BT
REEIAEAEEUEENEELAE  BRZEA
7% NENAREFTEABRIATIRESE
EENEBAE BB FEFOKE—FOE
EEERMRBEZRENEEN -
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39 o> B ot
E%mw
S BRI 2| RY

To enhance the competitiveness of Xigiao National
Arts Studio Project, the Group has continuously
enriched the festival events and entertainment
programs, cooperated with resourceful companies to
jointly organize and develop a series of unique projects
such as Summer Sea, Land, Sky Carnival, Fresh Start
Temple Fair and Halloween Event etc.
7%% SEMILEEZRNIEENGES D ARET
M*Xmgﬁa EBANIRLIE B AE - I AR
f’EFEﬁ AIE1E HEMEERER -ZIFFER
mE EI@I%%%E% CBRENBe M NEEL
EL/E@JE °

Given the rapid development of Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater Bay
Area”), the tourism industry of the Greater Bay Area is
excepted to become the focal point of development.
As the Studio is located at the boundary line of the
Greater Bay Area, it is expected to benefit from the
strong momentum of the development in the Greater
Bay Area. The Group planned construction project to
expand both indoor and outdoor shooting bases and
enhance the filming ancillary facilities. The Group is of
the view that the development of Studio would help
the Group to capture potential growth and business
opportunities.

EREERAEE ([RNER]) R RER - K&
WIREEAMERRERES - mwwﬁmuwﬁ
BERLG ERSTERRNERNBERDE K&
EOStEERE AN AR - R RELEERE -
REBERE @ﬁﬁmﬁﬁhﬁ%KE@ﬁTMﬁm
EEREREELE

The Group is the first nominated corporation to assist
the State Administration of Press, Publication, Radio,
Film and Television of Foshan City in the operation
and expansion of digital studios and shooting
bases establishment and movie prop equipment
leasing service etc. after Foshan Municipal People’s
Government announced its “Foshan City Support
Policies for Film and Television Industry Development”
on 1 August 2017. As such, the Group will benefit
from the supportive policies and actively invite different
film and television companies to settle in Foshan with
the provision of the Group’s film and television services
S0 as to effectively expand the Group’s customer base
in different areas and increase the reputation of the
Group in the industry.
AEEREHBLUTARBNR-_Z—+F/\A—H
EMCHBILTRBRREEERNE THE) AR
EF?¢¥XIHE%MT5%EJJ%UJ MX{EEE %ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&

@%&%E%ﬁﬁ o BRE=ERIER -
ZE;EH Tﬂﬁ‘*”’%ﬁ% SEBZEREFEE
EébimfaﬁlnaTHEﬁm% Jﬁm oL Téﬁ&fﬁﬁﬁ‘iléﬁ

FRIRE - R BEMMAEEERARIEANE
}Eﬁ REERSHEE -
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Risk Description Risk Mitigations
JeBL B 4 [B\ B 47 B R e

Financial risks: There are multiple types of risk associated with financing, including financial transactions. Financial risks

is one of the major concerns of the Group across different fields and geographies. The Group reviewed the financial

performance and assessed these risks before and after making each investment decision. The Group’s risk management

report in relation to these risks was prepared and reviewed on quarterly basis.

Rk HRE (BESRR ) BEENRREEES - UKARSAEEBETNRREMIEN T ERME L — - K&

%é‘?%ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁé{”ﬁﬁf&ﬁ?&iﬁﬁ?é%fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ R o AEERZER R BREEREREETE —RETHEE
3] o

Highly Dependent on Debt Financing ° The Group passed a resolution at the special general

meeting held on 28 June 2018 under which the

The repayment of the debts and the payment of the Directors were granted a specific conditional mandate
relevant interest as a result of the financing by issuing to allot, issue and deal with shares of the Company
bonds, convertible bonds, shareholder’s loan with an for fund raising purpose. Substitution of debt financing
regular interest payment put pressure on the Group’s cash with equity financing can effectively reduce debt
flow. interest payments and improve the Group’s cash flow.

oo
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EREEERE REBER - N\FRAZTN\BETHRFISA
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° The Group is in discussion with the Directors in
relation to the interest repayment of the shareholder’s
loan, convertible bond and promissory note by the
way of issuing new shares instead of cash payments.
AEEBAEESETHNR BREERRER
AR ESF AR ER 2 FE - ABTHRGOERR
WE AT

° The Group commenced a debt restructuring exercise
during the year ended 31 December 2019. Upon
completion of the debt restructuring exercise, it is
expected that the principle and interests for the
Group’s debts that will be significantly decreased and
thus ease the pressure on the Group’s cash flows.
AEEREZE _EZ-NF+_A=+—HILFER
IRETEREETE REHEETIHTHE - K
SEEBHNERD KA E‘i‘ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ?)ﬁQ\ CEE R
EERERENBENBEIER -

Foreign Currency Risk Associated with the Group’s ° Maintain current currency matching practices of
Investments revenue, cost and debt.
HEFE B AT E ~ AOAR R B B BT 0% ©

The Group’s foreign currency risk remains low through

currency matching practices of revenue, cost and debt. o Project level debts to be denominated in and/or
REAEEBREERNIIERR swapped into functional currency where possible.
. R s ATheE B #EHE R, /LB AEER (HER) /9
FBEE S RAREEESOERE R REBY FEER -

HNEE B B #E 3 BUE K o

° Adopt hedging transaction in line with the Group
Treasury Policy, where applicable, at appropriate
levels.

T%%)?*/\ﬁﬁlﬁawﬂz FEEEKTE RS (4
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Risk Description Risk Mitigations
[ B BB AT BB

Operational risks: There are the risks of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events. The Group considered that these risks are closely related to good and quality management. In view
of that, the Group has set up an effective internal control system. Details of the Internal Control are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 53 to 80 of this annual report.

meEn: ARNPEF STIREFATZRRBHINRBEMES - ARERSZERARAR T REEEETRETH
e ﬁ%ﬁﬁtt REBERIBRAMELRL - AMEENFBEHNAFRESIECOENBEERME -

Recruitment, Staff Retention and Training ° The Group recognizes that young people play an

important role in its future success, and it is essential

Film and service industries in the PRC are developing to attract them to join the Group and encourage them
rapidly, and demand for talent has increased substantially. to develop their career with the Group. The Group
New technologies emerged yet there is a lack of relevant enhanced its human resources structure and shifted
external training. The Group may face shortages and its focus towards recruiting fresh graduates and
losses in human resources and technology. develop a range of training programmes to cultivate

B BEETRIIK home grown talents for the future management

pipeline.

FREEYLRBITRILDRER - H AT FRILAE SR AEMALBERALRIANEAXRNELES - R
° AR L BB R Z BRI HINIIAR o AR E L EER i //\u})‘gg|¢$«</\mi$&.&iﬁ@gﬁ/\zg% ma R
NIVEIR BB 2 Rk AR EEE - ALEBAEANEREBUBELHE

SRR B R R AR LA A
WAAERREEBE o

o Tailored training programmes covering management,
customers service, financial, etc are offered with
support from Hong Kong head office to enhance
employees’ capability and to improve personal
performance.

ERRRAR R NXF RESFEMAEIEE -
NiE=E 8 W RIEAKRR -

° Management of Hong Kong head office will travel to
the PRC office for experience sharing and an effective
communication channel was established between
Hong Kong head office and the PRC office for
repomng and enquiry.

EBRAR EEBEMETTERERIELRIIN
78 48 ) 7 o B PR A O I R 1B A
EREREH -

o The Group held a series of activities for employees (e.g.
Chinese New Year Celebration, Annual Dinner, etc)
and provides Employee Discount Program with an aim
to enhance the staff's sense of belonging to the Group
and to establish a good working relationship with the
management.

REBGREEET—ZIEY (MERPBEREN
FFEBRSS) MEREERNESRE LA}E
BEEIRAEENEBERRATEBRYRITHE -
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Risk Description

JoB i 4 3t

Risk Mitigations
BB AT BB

Inadequate Infrastructure °

With the rapid development of the Group (including hotel,
film shooting base, cinema) etc., local infrastructure such
as network and electricity may not be able to support the
Group’s new projects.

ERERTE

BEASBNREER (BEAEE EFMEMEM -
BERETE) M  ERERE (N BERES) AR
BRmRAEENFHRIER ©

The Group continuously devote resources to upgrade
its facilities and will perform detailed planning to make
sure infrastructure are sufficient for coming projects
before their commencement.
AEBABAREZLGEHEMEAEZLR  WEHITHF
MEEtEILARBRARIER EB T 281 - HEAERR
MER] AERS B4 o

The Group understands that to be a successful business,
risk management is very important. In 2020, the Group will
continue to (including but not limited to):

— Improve and enhance the risk management framework
and its implementation to ensure compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and other applicable
regulations.

— Offer risk awareness training programme to the PRC
existing and new business and continue to review the
effectiveness of the Internal Control System in the PRC.

— Seek opportunities to provide both internal and/or
external training for its employees to enhance their risk
awareness and risk management technique.

It should be acknowledged that the Group’s risk management
focuses on the risk detection, mitigation, and avoidance
to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

By Order of the Board

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(Provisional Liquidators Appointed)

(For Restructuring Purposes)

Chow Kai Weng

Associate Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Board has pleasure in presenting the directors’ report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group include film production
and distribution, the provision of management services
to artistes, event coordination, provision of travel related
products and operations of film studio and hotel.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities (including
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business) and a review of the performance of the Group for
the year under review can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this Directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The operation of the Group’s business may be affected by
major risks and uncertainties which are set out in the “Risk
Management Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES
AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is dedicated in promoting an environmentally-
friendly corporate environment and incorporating green
philosophy into the development of the Group. Details of the
Group’s environmental policies and performance during the
year under review as well as its compliance record of laws
and regulations which have a material implication or impact
on its operation are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Annual Report 2019
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on pages 144 to 145.

No dividend was paid during the year under review. The
Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and the assets, liabilities
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 302.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year under review are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year under review are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES
UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 18 February 2019, the Company entered into two
separate placing agreements (the “GM Placing Agreements”)
with Quasar Securities Co., Limited and Oriental Patron Asia
Limited (collectively the “GM Placing Agents”) pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to place up to
846,158,844 placing shares (the “GM Placing Shares”) and
each of the GM Placing Agents has conditionally agreed to
procure on a best effort basis, as placing agent, currently
expected to be not less than six placees who and whose
ultimate beneficial owners shall be independent third parties of
the Company to subscribe for up to 423,076,922 GM Placing
Shares at a price of HK$0.26 per GM Placing Shares (the “GM
Placing”).

The placing price (the “GM Placing Price”) of HK$0.26 per
GM Placing Share represents (i) no discount or premium to
the closing price of HK$0.26 per Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 12 February 2019, being the last day on
which the Shares were traded on the Stock Exchange prior
to the date of the GM Placing Agreement (the “GM Lasting
Trading Day”); and (i) a premium of approximately 0.8% to the
average closing price of approximately HK$0.258 per Share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five consecutive
trading days (including the GM Last Trading Day) immediately
prior to the date of the GM Placing Agreements.

The aggregate nominal value of the maximum number
of the GM Placing Shares under the GM Placing will be
HK$84,615,384.40.

Completion of the GM Placing under the GM Placing
Agreements is conditional upon: (a) the Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange granting or agreeing to grant the approval
for listing of, and permission to deal in, the GM Placing
Shares; and (b) all necessary consents and approvals required
to be obtained on the part of the Company in respect of the
GM Placing and the transactions contemplated thereunder
having been obtained.

Annual Report 2019
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Reasons for and the benefits of the GM Placing

As at 31 December 2018, the unaudited cash and bank
balances of the Group were approximately HK$15.7 million.

As disclosed in the interim report of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2018, the total liabilities of the Group
were approximately HK$2.1 billion as at 30 June 2018,
among which, the Group recorded (i) loans from shareholders
of an aggregate amount of approximately HK$609.0 million;
(i) borrowings of an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$197.5 million; (i) trade payables and other payables and
accruals of an aggregate amount of approximately HK$80.3
million; (iv) bonds of an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$871.5 million; and (v) promissory notes of an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$104.6 million as at 30 June
2018.

Assuming the maximum number of the GM Placing Shares
is placed under the GM Placing Agreements, the gross
proceeds from the GM Placing will be approximately
HK$220.0 million, and the net proceeds will be approximately
HK$201.5 million (after deduction of commission and other
expenses incurred in the Placing), representing a net issue
price of approximately HK$0.24 per GM Placing Share. With
reference to the financial position of the Group as mentioned
above, it was expected that the net proceeds from the GM
Placing, being approximately HK$201.5 million, will be utilised
for the partial repayment of the principal and interests of
bonds and borrowings of the Group.

As the majority of interest rates of the existing bonds,
borrowings and loans from shareholders and directors range
from approximately 6.0% to 15.0%, the financial cost derived
from such debts represents a significant part of the total
expense of the Group. As such, the Board was of the view
that the abovementioned repayment would reduce the interest
burden of the Group, improve the gearing ratio of Group and
strengthen the financial position and profitability of the Group.

The Board has considered other alternative fundraising
methods such as debt financing, rights issue or open offer.
The Board considered that debt financing may further incur
interest burden on the Group. On the other hand, rights issue
or open offer may involve relatively substantial time and cost
to complete as compared to the equity financing through the
GM Placing. In addition, the GM Placing would strengthen the
capital base of the Company.
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As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 15 March
2019, (1) all the conditions of the GM Placing have been
fulfiled and the completion of the GM Placing took place on
15 March 2019; and (2) an aggregate of 428,769,230 GM
Placing Shares have been successfully placed at the GM
Placing Price of HK$0.260 per GM Placing Share pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the GM Placing Agreements. The
aggregate nominal value of the GM Placing Shares under the
GM Placing is HK$42,876,923.

The 428,769,230 GM Placing Shares represent (i)
approximately 9.5% of the issued share capital of the
Company immediately before the completion of the GM
Placing; and (i) approximately 8.7% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
428,769,230 GM Placing Shares.

The gross proceeds from the GM Placing is approximately
HK$111.5 million, and the net proceeds from the GM Placing,
after deducting the placing commission and other expenses
in connection with the GM Placing from the gross proceeds,
is approximately HK$104.5 million which is intended to be
used for the partial repayment of the principal and interests of
the bonds and borrowings of the Group. As at 31 December
2019, such net proceeds were fully utilised as intended.

The GM Placing Shares were allotted and issued pursuant
to the general mandate granted to the Directors by the
Shareholders pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 June
2018 to allot and issue up to 903,432,244 new Shares, and
therefore the allotment and issue of the GM Placing Shares
was not subject to any additional Shareholders’ approval.

Further details of the GM Placing Agreements and the GM
Placing are disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 13 February 2019 and 15 March 2019.
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES
UNDER SPECIFIC MANDATE

On 18 February 2019, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “SM Placing Agreement”) with Emperor
Securities Limited, Kingston Securities Limited and Oriental
Patron Asia Limited (collectively the “SM Placing Agents”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to place through the SM Placing Agents, on a best effort
basis, of up to 6,153.846,153 placing shares (the “SM
Placing Shares”) to currently expected to be not less than
six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall
be independent third parties of the Company at a price of
HK$0.26 per SM Placing Share (the “SM Placing”). The SM
Placing Shares will be allotted and issued pursuant to the
specific mandate to be sought at the special general meeting
of the Company to be convened and held. Further details of
the SM Placing Agreements and the SM Placing are disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 13 February 2019,
4 April 2019, 17 May 2019 and 30 May 2019, and the
Company’s circular dated 2 May 2019.

The SM Placing Agreements lapsed on 31 December 2019.

POTENTIAL STRATEGIC
INVESTOR AGREEMENT

On 14 May 2019, the Company entered into the Potential
Strategic Investor Agreement with Proxima Media.

Pursuant to the Potential Strategic Investor Agreement, the
Proxima Media intends to assist the Company in, among
others, building a vertically-integrated, internationally
competitive film and television business and establish the
Studio as one of the world’s premiere destinations for media
production and entertainment tourism (the “Business”). Details
of the co-operation and the consideration will be determined
by the Company and Proxima Media after further negotiations
and entering into one or more long-form agreements that
incorporate the terms of the Potential Strategic Investor
Agreement and other customary terms (the “Long-Form
Agreements”). Subject to the aforesaid further negotiations
and signing of the Long-Form Agreements, the Company is
desirous to collaborate with Proxima Media to engage in the
Business.
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Subject to the relevant rules and regulations and the terms
set out in the Long-Form Agreements, Proxima Media will
use its best efforts to raise or inject the Capital Contribution
into the Company of up to US Dollars 100 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$780 million) within 12 months from the
date of the Potential Strategic Investor Agreement as a placee
under the SM Placing subject to the conditions of the SM
Placing. The Capital Contribution is intended to level up the
Company to become a world-class film production studio,
details of the Capital Contribution and the use of proceeds of
such will be included in the Long-Form Agreements.

Further details of the Potential Strategic Investor Agreement
are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14 May
2019.

POTENTIAL STRATEGIC
INVESTORS

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11 July
2019, the Company has been actively seeking for potential
strategic investors to invest into the Company. In addition to
Proxima Media, the film production company controlled and
wholly owned by the famous Hollywood film producer, Ryan
Kavanaugh, which was disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 May 2019, the Company is concurrently
negotiating with a leading regional financial institution for
strategic investment which is subject to investor’s due
diligence works and regulatory approval.

PETITION FORTHE WINDING
UP OF THE COMPANY AND
APPLICATION FOR THE
APPOINTMENT OF JOINT
PROVISIONAL LIQUIDATORS

To facilitate the Company’s financial restructuring, on 14 June
2019, a winding up petition together with the application for
the appointment of Mr. Osman Mohammed Arab and Mr.
Lai Wing Lun, both of RSM Corporate Advisory (Hong Kong)
Limited, 29/F, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong and Mr. Roy Bailey c/o EY Bermuda Ltd,
3 Bermudiana Road, Hamilton, HMO8, Bermuda as joint
provisional liquidators (together “JPLs”) of the Company on
a light touch approach for restructuring purposes (the “JPL
Application”) was presented and filed with Supreme Court of
Bermuda (the “Bermuda Court”) by the Company’s Bermuda
Counsel, Conyers Dill & Pearman at the request of the
Company.
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Under the JPL Application, the Company has requested
that, should JPLs be appointed and until further order of the
Bermuda Court, the Board shall retain all of its executive
powers in relation to the ordinary course of business of the
Company, subject to the JPLs’ supervision, for the purpose
of developing and proposing a financial restructuring, of the
exercise of such powers. This would allow the Company’s
current management to work with the JPLs to oversee the
implementation of a financial restructuring proposal that
seeks to better preserve value and business operations of the
Company that would not otherwise be possible without the
appointment of the JPLs. Accordingly, the Board believes it is
in the interests of the Company, its shareholders and creditors
that JPLs are appointed in respect of the Company pursuant
to the JPL Application.

The JPL Application was heard before the Bermuda Court
on the same date at 2:30 p.m. Bermuda time. The Bermuda
Court made the orders as sought by the Company under the
JPL Application, inter alia, the JPLs have been appointed with
immediate effect.

Pursuant to the order made by the Bermuda Court (the
“Bermuda Order”), the JPLs are granted a wide range of
powers, including but not limited to the powers to review the
financial position of the Company, to monitor, consult with,
oversee and otherwise liaise with the existing Board and the
creditors and shareholders of the Company in determining
the most appropriate manner of effecting a reorganisation
and/or refinancing of the Company, to seek assistance of
or recognition in any other courts as may be considered
appropriate, and to do all things necessary and incidental to
the exercise of the foregoing powers, etc.

By an order of the Honourable Mr. Justice Wilson Chan dated
15 August 2019, the appointment of the JPLs pursuant to
the order of the Bermuda Court dated 14 June 2019 was
recognized by the High Court of Hong Kong with the powers
conferred therein.
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RESTRUCTURING TRANSACTION

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 July
2019, on 10 July 2019, as part of the Company’s financial
restructuring plans, the Company invited all known Creditors
to make an offer to the Company to subscribe for:

(1) 1% annual coupon rate Convertible Bonds due 2024
to be issued by the Company in the principal amount
equal to 60% of the outstanding principal amount of
debts due and owing by the Company to each of the
Creditors (where applicable, together with interests
accrued thereon and calculated up to 14 June 2019
at the respective annual interest rate of the relevant
debt(s)) and convertible into fully-paid ordinary shares
of the Company listed and traded on GEM at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.55 per conversion share (the
“Conversion Shares”) (the “CB Subscription”); and

(2)  the New Shares at the issue price of HK$0.38 per
share, the total value of which equals to the remaining
40% of the outstanding principal amount of debts due
and owing by the Company to each of the Creditors
(where applicable, together with interests accrued
thereon and calculated up to 14 June 2019 at the
respective annual interest rate of the relevant debt(s))
(the “Share Subscription”);

(the CB Subscription and the Share Subscription together
referred to as the “Restructuring Transaction”), as full and
final settlement of all outstanding debts (where applicable,
together with interests accrued thereon and calculated up
to 14 June 2019 at the respective annual interest rate of the
debt(s)) due and owing by the Company to the Creditors,
subject to the execution, and the final terms and conditions,
of the subscription agreement, the bond instrument, any
scheme of arrangement proposed by the Company and/
or other agreements the execution of which is desirable for
the implementation and consummation of the Restructuring
Transaction, as the case maybe.

The offer by the Creditors to participate in the Restructuring
Transaction also includes an agreement that the Creditors
will participate in, support and vote in favour of a scheme(s)
of arrangement proposed by the Company, where such
scheme(s) is/are deemed necessary and appropriate by the
Company and the JPLs of the Company appointed pursuant
to the Order of the Bermuda Court dated 14 June 2019.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12
August 2019, the Company has received substantial support
from its creditors regarding the Restructuring Transaction.
In this respect, the Company put forward a scheme of
arrangement pursuant to Section 99 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and Section 670 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong with substantially similar
terms under the Restructuring Transaction as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 July 2019, further
details of which are set out in the section headed “Scheme of
Arrangement” below.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

As announced on 19 August 2019, the Company proposed
to implement, subject to the approval by the Bermuda Court
and the Hong Kong Court, the Scheme. Under the Scheme,
the Company will issue the New Shares and the Convertible
Bonds to the Creditors to discharge and release the Claims in
full.

Up to 14 June 2019 (the “Restructuring Order Date”), based
on the available books and records of the Company, the
estimated total amount of Claims against the Company is
approximately HK$2.13 billion. This figure is indicative only
and will be subject to final determination by the scheme
administrators and (if applicable) adjudication under the
Scheme.

On 4 October 2019, the Company obtained the directions of
the Bermuda Court and the Hong Kong Court in the hearing
before the Hong Kong Court and the Bermuda Court of the
applications for leave to convene the meeting of the Creditors
for the purpose of considering and approving, if thought
fit, the Scheme by the Creditors (the “Scheme Meeting”) at
3:00 p.m. on Friday, 8 November 2019. At such Scheme
Meeting, the Scheme was approved by the requisite statutory
majorities of the Creditors.

On 10 October 2019, the Company convened the SGM to
consider and approve, if thought fit, the resolutions in relation
to the Scheme, all of which were duly passed by way of poll
including the specific mandate granted to the Directors to
allot and issue the New Issues and Convertible Bonds. On
27 November 2019, the Company obtained the conditional
approval from the Stock Exchange for the listing of, and
permission to deal in, the New Shares and Conversion
Shares.
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With the applications to the Bermuda Court and Hong Kong
Court to sanction the Scheme subsequently, the Scheme was
sanctioned by the Bermuda Court and Hong Kong Court on
13 December 2019 and 6 January 2020 respectively. The
orders sanctioning the Scheme by the Bermuda Court and
the Hong Kong Court were respectively registered with the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda on 26 February 2020 and
Companies Registry in Hong Kong on 6 March 2020. As all
conditions precedent to the Scheme have been fulfilled on 6
March 2020, the Scheme became effective on 6 March 2020.

As announced in the Company’s announcement dated
20 March 2020, the Creditors are required to submit their
respective notices of Claims together with other documents or
other evidence necessary for substantiating their Claims to the
scheme administrators on or before 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday,
14 April 2020 (the “Cut-Off Date”). The notice to Creditors of
the Cut-Off Date was given to all Creditors by letter and by
advertisement published in “The Standard” (in English) and
“Sing Tao Daily” (in Chinese) circulated in Hong Kong, in “Ta
Kung Pao” (in Chinese) circulated in the PRC, and in “The
Royal Gazette” (in English) circulated in Bermuda on 20 March
2020.

The scheme administrators will notify the final amount of the
Claims of each of the Creditors. Based on the final amounts
of Claims of each Creditor, the New Shares will be allotted
and issued and the Convertible Bonds will be issued to the
Creditors.

Upon the issue of the New Shares and the Convertible
Bonds, all the Claims of the Creditors will be discharged and
extinguished and the Creditors will not be allowed to make
any claim against the Company in respect of their Claims.
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Issue of New Shares and Convertible Bonds under Specific
Mandate

Subject to the implementation of the Scheme which became
effective on 6 March 2020, the Company will conduct (i)
the Share Subscription, under which it is estimated that
the Company will allot and issue, in aggregate, up to
2,247,015,390 New Shares at the issue price of HK$0.38 per
New Share for settlement of 40% of the Claims held by the
Creditors against the Company as at the Restructuring Order
Date which have been admitted by the scheme administrators
(the “Admitted Claims”) of the Creditors; and (ii) the CB
Subscription, under which it is estimated that the Company
will issue the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,302,145,529 subject to any adjustments
made regarding the consent bonus (the “Consent Bonus”) of
an extra one (1) per cent of the outstanding principal amount
of his/its debt (where applicable, together with interests
accrued thereon and calculated up to the Restructuring Order
Date at the respective annual interest rate of the relevant
debt(s)) to be awarded to eligible Creditors if there’s any in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

As part of the Scheme, a Deed of Restructuring Support
(the “RSD”) was duly executed by the Company and the
Provisional Liquidators on 24 August 2019 to support and
facilitate the implementation of the restructuring, pursuant
to which, any Creditor may become a party to the RSD. Any
Creditor who agrees to be bound by the RSD by delivering to
the Company a duly completed and executed accession deed
in respect of its Claim (or Claims) under the Scheme on or
before Wednesday, 11 September 2019 would be eligible to
the Consent Bonus.

Details of the Share Subscription

The maximum value of the New Shares to be issued to the
Creditors will be up to approximately HK$854 million (subject
to the determination of Admitted Claims in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme). The New Shares have an aggregate
nominal value of up to HK$224,701,539.00. The issue
price of HK$0.38 per New Share represents a premium of
approximately 84.47% over the closing price of HK$0.206 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 19 August 2019.
The New Shares are subject to a lock-up period of 12 months
from the date of completion of the Share Subscription.
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Details of the CB Subscription

The maximum value of the Convertible Bonds to be issued
to the Creditors will be up to approximately HK$1,302 million
(subject to the determination of the Admitted Claims in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme and entitlement
of Consent Bonus), (being the sum of (i) up to approximately
HK$1,280.7 million for the aggregation of 60% of the Claims
of the Creditors and (i) HK$21.3 million for the maximum
amount of Consent Bonus). The Conversion Shares, upon
full conversion, shall have an aggregate nominal value of up
to HK$236,753,714.40. The maturity date of the Convertible
Bonds falls on the day being the fifth (5th) anniversary of the
issue date of the Convertible Bonds. Subject to the terms
and conditions of the Convertible Bonds, the conversion price
will initially be HK$0.55 per share, but subject to customary
adjustments including but not limited to (i) consolidation or
subdivision; (i) rights issue of shares or rights to acquire
shares; (i) issues of convertible securities; (iv) modification
of rights of conversion; (v) other offers to shareholders; and
(vi) other events. The initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per
Conversion Shares represents a premium of approximately
166.99% over the closing price of HK$0.206 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 19 August 2019.

The New Shares and the Conversion Shares will be allotted
and issued under the specific mandate sought from the
Shareholders (other than Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”), Ms
Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”), Mr. Chow Kai Weng (“Mr. Chow”),
Mr. Tse Young Lai (“Mr. Tse”) and Mr. Yiu Kin Kong and any
Shareholder with a material interest in the Scheme) at the
SGM held on 10 October 2019.

The Company obtained the conditional approval from the
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal in,
the New Shares and the Conversion Shares.
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Connected Transactions in relation to the Issue of New
Shares and Convertible Bonds

Among all Creditors, Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse
have loaned to the Company.

Mr. Sin is an executive Director, the chairman of the Board,
a member of the nomination committee of the Board and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Ms. Law, being the
spouse of Mr. Sin, is an associate of Mr. Sin. As at the date
of this annual report, Mr. Sin, together with his associate,
Ms. Law, are interested in 871,932,623 Shares, representing
approximately 17.62% of the total issued share capital of the
Company.

Mr. Chow is an executive Director, the associate chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, Mr. Chow is interested in
1,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 0.02% of the
total issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Tse is a substantial shareholder of the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tse is interested in
563,547,600 Shares, representing approximately 11.39% of
the total issued share capital of the Company.

Up to the Restructuring Order Date, the total amounts
respectively due to Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse
(including the interests accrued thereon and calculated up to
the Restructuring Order Date at the respective interest rate of
the relevant Claim(s)) are illustrated as follows:
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Under the Scheme, Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr.
Tse shall have the same entitlement as the other Creditors.
Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme and based on the
available books and records of the Company, it is expected
that the entitlement of Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr.
Tse under the Scheme respectively are as follows:

Rig&at & -
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Mr. Sin Ms. Law Mr. Chow Mr. Tse
HEEE Bat A% HEE
Share Subscription
RORESE
Value of New Shares to be issued HK$258,933,278 HK$11,708,299 HK$14,536,573 HK$757,033
BBETNIRNER 258,033,278 75 1T 11,708,299/ 7T 14,536,573/ 7T 757,083/ 70
Issue price HK$0.38 HK$0.38 HK$0.38 HK$0.38
%178 0.38/8 7T 0.38/8 7T 0.38% 7T 0.38/ 7T
Number of New Shares to be issued 681,403,362 30,811,311 38,254,139 1,992,193
New Shares New Shares New Shares New Shares
BEITHIRDEE 681,403,362% 30,811,311 % 38,254,139 % 1,992,193 %
ik Filhan) gy ikt
CB Subscription
TRREFAESE
Principal amount (including Consent Bonus) HK$394,873,249 HK$17,855,155 HK$22,168,274 HK$1,154,476
AeH (BERELA) 304,873,249/ 7T 17,855,155/ 7T 22,168,274 76 T 1,154,476 7T
Maximum Conversion Shares upon full conversion 717,951,361 32,463,918 40,305,952 2,099,047

ToBnnRaBARN

All of Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse have confirmed
that they will compromise their Claims against the Company
pursuant to the Scheme and the treatment to be received by
them under the Scheme shall be the same as those to other
Creditors.
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Issue of Shares under Specific Mandate in relation to
Advisory Service of Financial Adviser

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26
August 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 20
September 2019, the Company has appointed Oriental Patron
Asia Limited (“OPAL”), a licensed corporation to carry out type
1 (dealing in securities), type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO, as the financial adviser to the Company to advise on
and assist in formulating and overseeing a potential financial
restructuring as to improving the Company’s financial position.
Regarding the payment of advisory fee (the “Advisory Fee”),
after arm’s length negotiations, OPAL agreed to receive the
newly issued shares of the Company to settle the Advisory
Fee. On 26 August 2019, the supplemental mandate letter (as
to supplement the original mandate letter signed in May 2019)
has been entered into between the Company and OPAL,
pursuant to which the Advisory Fee is agreed to be paid by
the Company to OPAL in the form of issuing and allotting
250,000,000 newly issued and fully paid-up Shares (the “Fee
Shares”) which is subject to subject to a lock-up period of 12
months from the date of the issuance and such Fee Shares
shall be issued and allotted to OPAL simultaneously with the
New Shares to be issued to the Creditors under the Scheme
upon its completion.

The Company obtained the conditional approval from the
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal in,
the Fee Shares. The Directors obtained the specific mandate
granted to allot and issue the Fee Shares at the SGM held on
10 October 2019.

Increase in Authorised Share Capital

Taking into account the aforesaid and in order to
accommodate future expansion and growth of the Group, the
Board proposes to increase the authorised share capital of the
Company from HK$600,000,000 divided into 6,000,000,000
Shares to HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
Shares by the creation of additional 14,000,000,000 new
Shares (the “Increase in Authorised Share Capital”), all
of which will rank pari passu with all existing Shares. The
ordinary resolution as to the proposed Increase in Authorised
Share Capital was passed by the Shareholders at the SGM
held on 10 October 2019.
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The SGM held on 10 October 2019

At the SGM held on 10 October 2019, (i) the Scheme and the
transactions contemplated thereunder, including the grant of
the specific mandate for the allotment and issue of the New
Shares and the Conversion Shares; (ii) the granting of the
specific mandate to allot and issue the Fee Shares; and (jii) the
Increase in Authorised Share Capital were approved by the
Shareholders.

Further details of the Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 19 August 2019, 8 October 2019,
14 October 2019, 8 November 2019, 19 November 2019,
27 November 2019, 15 December 2019, 7 January 2020,
25 February 2020, 6 March 2020, 20 March 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 20 September 2019.

PROPOSED GRANT OF SHARE
SUBSCRIPTION FACILITY TO
THE COMPANY AND PROPOSED
ISSUE OF NEW SHARES AND
WARRANTS UNDER SPECIFIC
MANDATE

On 13 March 2020, the Company entered into the SSF
Agreement among others, with the Investor, pursuant to
which

(1) the Investor has agreed to grant the Company the
Option to require the Investor to subscribe for the
Option Shares of up to HK$2,350,000,000 in value at
the floor price of HK$0.23 per Option Share (whereas
the issue price of the Option Shares shall not be lower
than the minimum threshold price of HK$0.23 per
Option Share) during the period commencing on the
date of the SSF Agreement and expiring on the earlier
of: (a) the Commitment Period; and (b) the date on
which the Investor has subscribed for shares in the
Company with an aggregate subscription price of
HKD2,350,000,000 (excluding shares to be issued
upon exercise of the Warrants (as defined below)
pursuant to the SSF Agreement; and

(2)  the Company has agreed to issue to the Investor the
Warrants to subscribe for the Warrant Shares by the
SSF Agreement which entitle the Investor to purchase
up to 383,000,000 Shares at Warrant Exercise Price (as
defined below) during the Warrant Exercise Period (as
defined below).
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Warrant Exercise Period shall mean the period commencing
from the date on which the conditions precedent to the SSF
Agreement are fulfilled (the “Warrant Delivery Date”) to the
third (3rd) anniversary of the Warrant Delivery Date or, if such
day is not a business Day, the immediately following business
day.

Warrant Exercise Price shall mean the subscription price
of each Warrant Share, initially being HK$0.23 per Warrant
Share (subject to adjustment) or if on the first anniversary of
the Warrant Delivery Date, the market price of a Share is less
than a sum equal to 90 per cent. of the Warrant Exercise
Price on such date, the relevant Warrant Exercise Price shall
be a sum equal to 105 per cent. of such market price.

Option Shares and Warrant Shares

Assuming that the Option Shares will be issued at the closing
price of the share as at the date of the SSF Agreement
of HK$0.185 per Option Share and based on the total
commitment of HK$2,350 million, a total of 10,217,391,304
Option Shares will be allotted and issued upon the full
exercise of the Option, representing approximately 206.49%
of the existing issued Shares of 4,948,170,452 as at the date
of the SSF Agreement or 67.37% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
such 10,217,391,304 Option Shares.

The 383,000,000 Warrant Shares represent approximately
7.74% of the existing issued Shares as at the date of the SSF
Agreement or approximately 7.18% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
such 383,000,000 Warrant Shares.

The Option Shares and the Warrant Shares would be issue
under specific mandate to be sought at special general
meeting of the Company to be convened for the Shareholders
to consider and approve the SSF Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder and the issue of the
Option Shares and the Warrant Shares.
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Reason for entering into the SSF Agreement

The Board is of the view that issue of the Option Shares
and the Warrant Shares offers a good opportunity to raise
additional capital for the Company and to strengthen the
financial position of the Company. Given that the Company
shall have the right but not an obligation to deliver notice to
the Investor to subscribe for the Option Shares during the
Commitment Period and exercise the Option at its discretion,
the Directors consider that the Group will have flexibility in
raising funds by exercising the Option during the Commitment
Period. The arrangement under the SSF Agreement effectively
gives the Group access to a readily available source of
financing and the right to raise funds by the delivery of at
any time during the Commitment Period when the Board
considers such delivery is favourable to the Company. By
comparison, the Board considers that with current sluggish
market sentiment and recent interest rate hike, the Company
would be difficult to secure any debt financing of comparable
size from banks or financial institutions. The Board is further of
the view that the high gearing ratio of the Group would result
in the Group having less favourable financing terms offered by
banks and other financial institutions.

The Company has been exploring opportunities to diversify
into new businesses to mitigate the risks of being in the lines
of business in film and hotel industries and to deliver long-
term and stable cash flow and creating favourable investment
returns for the Shareholders.

Accordingly, the Directors consider that the SSF Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole,
and the terms of the SSF Agreement, among others, the
mechanism to fix the Minimum Threshold Price and the
Warrant Exercise Price, are fair and reasonable.
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Proposed use of net proceeds of the Option Shares and the
Warrant Shares

Assuming the Total Commitment is received in full from
issuance of the Option Shares, the gross proceeds (before
expenses) and the estimated net proceeds will be HK$2,350
million and HK$2,297 million respectively.

The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the
issuance of Option Shares as follows:

(i) up to approximately HK$250 million for repayment of
the debt of the Group;

(ii) up to approximately HK$100 million for general working
capital of the Group;

(i) up to approximately HK$1,200 million for expansion
and upgrading of the existing projects of the Group,
namely the Studio and the Hotel; and

(iv)  the balance for investment in potential projects.

Assuming full issuance of the Warrant Shares, the estimated
net proceeds will be approximately HK$88 million, which is
intended to be applied for expansion and upgrading of the
existing projects of the Group as described in (jii) above.

Details of the SSF Agreement, the issue of the Option Shares
and the Warrants are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 13 March 2020.
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WINDING UP PETITION
AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
INVOLVING THE COMPANY

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8
October 2019:

(1)  on 30 September 2019, the Company received from
the solicitors for Lin Sailian (the “Petitioner”) a purported
winding up petition against the Company filed on 26
September 2019 in the Court of First Instance of the
Hong Kong Court (the “Petition”) for, among others,
the alleged outstanding balance of principal in the sum
of HK$7,880,000 of a bond allegedly issued by the
Company;

(2)  on 3 October 2019, the Company received from the
solicitors for Huang Sishuang a purported action against
the Company in the Court of First Instance of the Hong
Kong Court for, among others, the alleged outstanding
balance of principal in the sum of HK$7,000,000 of a
bond allegedly issued by the Company.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17
December 2019, the Court of First Instance of the Hong Kong
Court has ordered, among other things, leave be granted
for the Petitioner to withdraw the Petition with no order as to
costs.

PROPOSED CHANGE OF
COMPANY NAME

The Board proposes to change the name of the Company
from “National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited”
to “National Arts Group Holdings Limited” and adopt the
Chinese name “BI 2 &£ B Z R B R 2~ 7]” as its official
Chinese name (“Change of Company Name”). The Board
will propose special resolution at the forthcoming SGM for
considering, and if thought fit, approving the Change of
Company Name.
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The reason for changing the Company’s name is precisely
to reflect the direction of the diversification of business in
order to reduce the risk of single business segments. The
Board believes that the proposed new English and Chinese
names of the Company will provide the Company with better
identification of the principal business of the Group. As
such, the Board is of the view that the proposed Change of
Company Name is in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The proposed Change of Company Name is subject to the
following conditions: (i) the passing of the special resolution
by the Shareholders at the SGM approving the Change
of Company Name; and (i) the Registrar of Companies in
Bermuda approving the Change of Company Name and
entering the proposed new English and Chinese name of the
Company into the register of companies.

A circular containing details of the proposed Change
of Company Name and a notice of SGM among other
information as required under the GEM Listing Rules will be
despatched to the Shareholders as soon as practicable in
accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

Further details of the proposed Change of Company Name
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 23 March
2020.

POSSIBLE SHARE EXCHANGE
TRANSACTION

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26
March 2020, the Board is discussing with certain shareholders
(the “Vendors”) of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1019) (“Convoy”) in relation to a possible acquisition
of the issued shares of Convoy by the Company in the
consideration of the Company’s new shares (the “Possible
Share Exchange Transaction”). Further terms of the Possible
Share Exchange Transaction including the number of shares
involved are in negotiation, meanwhile, the Company is
seeking for the opinion of financial advisor.
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Should the Possible Share Exchange Transaction materialise
and subject to the definitive terms of the legally binding
agreement, the Possible Share Exchange Transaction
may involve significant number of shares of the Company.
Even though the number of shares of the Possible Shares
Exchange Transaction is not yet concluded, in the event that
the Company has acquired more than 10% shareholding in
Convoy, the Company intends to invite at least one senior
executive of Convoy to join the Board in order to help build
shareholders’ value and mutual benefits of the Company and
Convoy through such board-based strategic partnership. The
Directors are pleased and are of the view that the Possible
Share Exchange Transaction reflects the market is positive to
the prospects of the Company.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, the Vendors and
their ultimate beneficial owners, if applicable, are third parties
independent of and not connected with the Company and its
connected persons.

As at the date of this annual report, the terms and conditions
of the Possible Share Exchange Transaction are still under
negotiation and no definitive agreement or other legally
binding agreement has been entered into. The Possible
Share Exchange Transaction, if materialises, may constitute a
notifiable transaction for the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules. Further announcement(s) in relation to the Possible
Share Exchange Transaction will be made by the Company
as and when appropriate in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not have reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2018: nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report were:

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Appointed on 14 May 2019)

Associate Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Re-designated from the Chairman to
the Associate Chairman on 14 May 2019)

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
Mr. Ho Leung Ting

Non-executive Director

Dr. Lam Lee G.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred (Appointed on 22 March 2019)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (Resigned on 1 January 2019)

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Cheng
Wang Chun, Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert and Mr. Li Kit Chee
shall retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. All other Directors continue in office.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. The
service contract is terminable by either party by serving a
written notice of not less than one calendar month to the
other.

Each of the Non-executive Directors and the Independent
Non-executive Directors has been appointed for a term of two
years with specific terms as stated in the letter of appointment
or reappointment. The letter of appointment or reappointment
is terminable from either party by serving a written notice not
less than one calendar month to the other.

Each of the Executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary
and a discretionary bonus, and each of the Non- executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors is entitled
to a director’s fee, subject to an annual revision by the
remuneration committee of the Board.

Details of the directors’ fees or emolument payable to
Directors are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board
considers all the Independent Non- executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Wor kAT E R 2 o bk

ARREEERBILIFATESRIEGEM MR
EL0GBEHNAMEBYIM Z FERRARK -EF
ERR/ARNREHBLIFRTETHBELAL -

ERELERTBEANBR R - A
I BB Oy B (6 o7 2 M i B R AT

RZE—NF+-_A=+—H EF ARAEE
THRABRMESE BB ARAR R REEMA
BB (ERRBBEANETIEERSF LB EKN
(IFBHREEEG]) EXVIB) 2B H - BERG &
ELFHEBCRBEESFRHAEGRIEXNVHETRES
DEHZREBENGERARIRBERARZERR
Bl ([BEFT)) 2 iEm R A (BIE it A T IRIEZ
EEHFRHEGRIGXEEEIRAER 2= &
KA HIRIEESFRAEGAE2G 2 RERE
R 2 B R Em RRE - RIRIEGEM £
MR E5.46 6= 5.67 152 MTEAME AR A K
RETZ RS RARIT -



Annual Report 2019
ZE2-RER
Directors’ Report EE & { £ E
1. Long Positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 1. READAEREENIEBIZEER(RHAE)Z
of the Company (“Shares”) #e
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held of the Company
HARAT
ERTREZ
EEng B1ip NS FEROEE BMABEDL
(Note 1)
(Mt3E1)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam Beneficial Owner 848,580,623 17.15%
B EmEE A
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 23,352,000 0.47%
BB aE s (MisE2)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 0.02%
R EmEEA
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 0.06%
BEECEE EmEEA
Mr. Li Kit Chee Beneficial Owner 4,480,000 0.09%
T2 EE EmEEA
Notes: Bt 5 -
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as at 31 1. WHhER-ZTE-NAFE+-_A=+—H2E
December 2019 (i.e. 4,948,170,452 Shares). BITRRD (B14,948,170,452 %) °
2. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, being the 2. RIEFEH MAEEG - ABEMTE (BERL
spouse of Ms. Law Po Yee, was deemed to be TZEBBEARBELTHEEREEMNDE
interested in all the Shares in which Ms. Law Po Yee RO IEE R -

was interested.
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2. Long positions in the underlying Shares 2. REBERGzHEE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held of the Company
(RN
BRTREZ
EEHA B3 REEME FEROHE BMABDE
(Note 1)
(BzE1)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 45,063,695 0.91%
FERRE 4 EnEAA (Note 2) (Fif5E2)
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 1,546,896 0.03%
HOEE EmEE A (Note 3) (£ 3)
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun Beneficial Owner 44,980,000 0.91%
LIEING 3 EmEE A (Note 4) (FfE4)
Notes: Bt 5 -

This is based on the total issued Shares as at 31
December 2019 (i.e. 4,948,170,452 Shares).

These underlying Shares represent (i) 24,888 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow Kai Weng on 29
September 2010 pursuant to the share option scheme
adopted on 22 July 2002 and terminated on 29
September 2010 (“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
under which Mr. Chow may exercise the said options
from 29 September 2010 to 2 September 2020 at an
exercise price of HK$2.89 per Share; (i) 58,807 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow on 28 March 2011
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 29
September 2010 (“New Share Option Scheme”) under
which Mr. Chow may exercise the said options from
28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise price
of HK$7.62 per Share; and (iii) 44,980,000 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow on 16 May 2017
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which Mr. Chow may exercise the said options from 16
May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price of
HK$0.2456 per Share.

1. WHER-_Z—NAF+_A=+—"HBHNE %
TR 4 2% (BN 4,948,170,452 B B 15) ©
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3. These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,292 Shares to
be issued upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert on 13 May
2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
under which Mr. Chui may exercise the said options
from 13 May 2010 to 12 May 2020 at an exercise price
of HK$3.66 per Share; (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued
upon exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chui on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui
may exercise the said options from 28 March 2012 to
27 March 2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per
Share; and (jii) 1,480,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options granted
to Mr. Chui on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui may exercise the
said options from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an
exercise price of HK$0.2456 per Share.

4, These underlying Shares represent 44,980,000 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Cheng Wang Chun on 16
May 2017 pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme
under which Mr. Cheng may exercise the said options
from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price
of HK$0.2456 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief
executive of the Company or their associates had, as
at 31 December 2019, any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the persons or corporations, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or had
otherwise been notified to the Company were as follows:

2 RO B At N\ 7 I A B
I5H 1B By 2 HE i B % T

RZB-AF+TZA=+—R0 BEEAQFERE
% N HAE R DI XV #B 28 336 15 AR 7 & 2 B A
A RARBEEME - TIALIOEE BRA
REBBRITHRAESIN) RA R Z iy k8RR
MPREEEIAR

Substantial shareholders’ long position in the Shares IERFRRBZ2HRE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares held of the Company
HARAR
EBITREZ
REZH B1ip REME BHERGOEE BABE DL
(Note 1)
(Mt3E1)
Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) Beneficial Owner 23,352,000 0.47%
FEERZT((#ELLTD EmEAA
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 848,580,623 17.15%
BB aE s (MieE2)
Tse Young Lai Beneficial Owner 563,547,600 11.39%
Bl EmEE A
Notes: FfFsE -
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as at 31 December 1. WHER-BE—AE+-_A=+—B802 21T

2019 (i.e. 4,978,170,452 Shares).

2. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law, being the spouse of Mr. Sin,
was deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Sin
was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the
Company has not been notified of any persons, other than a
director or chief executive of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of Part XV of the SFO.

B tp (B14,948,170,452 B f& 15 ) o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of the
Company dated 22 July 2002, the Company conditionally
adopted and approved Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
principal terms of which are set out in Appendix IV to the
prospectus of the Company dated 9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company dated 29 September 2010, the
New Share Option Scheme was adopted and the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme was terminated. The principal terms of
New Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 6 September 2010.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2019, the share options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 58,180 shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme were
outstanding. The details of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2019 are set out as follows:
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Number of share options
BEREHE
Outstanding
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat
Category of price 1 January during during during during 31 December
participants per Share Date of grant Exercise period 2019 the year the year the year the year 2019
RZZ-1§
=1 RZB-N0F tZA=t-H
SEAEH kE  RHAH i -A-8 ERR L3NS FREN R HATE
(HKS
(#m)
Directors 3.66 13 May 2010 13 May 2010-12 May 2020 33292 - - - - 33292
£z “5-3FRA+tZH  ZE-ZERATIH-
ZEITERATCA
Directors 3.38 20May 2010 20 May 2010-19 May 2020 33420 - - (33,420) - -
S “E-EF¥Rf-t8 ZE-ZERAC1H-
ZEZEFERATAA
Directors 289 3 September 2010 29 September 2010- 4,006,968 - - (3,982,080) - 24,888
2 September 2020
i —Z-5FNA=A ZE-EFAAZTAR-
Total 4,073,680 - - (4,015,500) - 58,180
25

Note: All share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme are vested immediately.

Mia REBEERARBEERBREAIIRENBRES S
BRI ERE -
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New Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2017, the
scheme limit on the grant of options under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company has been refreshed to up to 449,848,122
Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the AGM
date based on 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue (excluding
share options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option Scheme)
(the “Refreshed Scheme Limit”); and the Directors are
authorised, at their absolute discretion, to grant share options
to subscribe for Shares within the Refreshed Scheme Limit
in accordance with the rules of the New Share Option
Scheme; to allot, issue and deal with the Shares pursuant to
the exercise of share options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to
do such acts and execute such documents for or incidental
to implement the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit.

HiRRETE
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As at 31 December 2019, the share options to subscribe for RZZE-—NAF+ZA=+—H8  RBREFERETS
an aggregate of 254,472,411 Shares granted pursuant to BT RS 054,472,411 BRAR 1D 2 BE AR HE i ok
the New Share Option Scheme were outstanding. The details BIE -RZFE-NEFT+_A=T—HZRENE
of the share options granted under the New Share Option PRI IR N BB BOT
Scheme as at 31 December 2019 are set out as follows:
Number of share options
BREYA
Outstanding
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat

price 1 January during during during during 31 December

Category of participants per Share Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period 2019 the year the year the year the year 2019
RZE-1E

13 RZB-hE tZR=1-8
SEAER ke RERS BEH fitid) -f-H ERR ERfifk EREH R HATE

(HKS)

(%7)
Directors 762 28 March 2011 28 March 2011- 28 March 2012- 4,830,579 - - (4,738,168) - P41

27 March 2012 27 March 2021
3 ZF-—FZA-f\R ZF-—FZA-t/\RE =%
CE-CESACTHR CRC-ESRCTH
Directors 0.2456 16 May 2017 - 16 May 2017-15 May 2020 57,660,000 - 2,240,000) (8,960,000 - 46,460,000
g% “E-tERAtAE — ZI-tERATAAE (Note)
Z3-3%8f1AA (Hiz)
Other participants 02456 16 May 2017 - 16 May 2017-15 May 2020 207,920,000 - - - - 207920000
AftBEAL ZE-tERAtRE — ZZ-tERATAAE
Totl 210410579 - (22400000 (13,698,168) - 544241
oy
Note: The weighted average closing price of shares of the Company Wt SEEREETES B 28 ARQRRG A MEF
immediately before the date on which the options were B THER0.3358TT ©

exercised is HK$0.335.
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()

(i)

(i)

New Share Option Scheme's purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available personnel, to
provide additional incentive to selected person and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

Qualifying participants

The participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include any employee of the Company or any subsidiary
of the Company, a director, a shareholder, a supplier,
a customer or any subsidiary of the Company; an
agent, adviser, consultant, strategist, contractor, sub-
contractor, expert or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
valuable services to Company or any of its subsidiary;
and a holder of any securities issued.

Maximum number of shares

In accordance with the resolution passed at the AGM
held on 29 June 2017, the scheme limit on the grant
of options under the New Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company was
refreshed to up to the Refreshed Scheme Limit, i.e.
449,848,122 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of the AGM (i.e. 4,498,481,222 Shares
in issue) (excluding share options previously granted,
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under
the New Share Option Scheme) and representing
approximately 9.09% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this annual report (i.e. 4,948,170,452 Shares);
and the Directors are authorized, at their absolute
discretion, to grant share options to subscribe
for Shares within the Refreshed Scheme Limit in
accordance with the rules of the New Share Option
Scheme; to allot, issue and deal with the Shares
pursuant to the exercise of share options granted under
the New Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit; and to do such acts and execute such
documents for or incidental to implement the New
Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme
Limit.
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(i)

v

(v)

Meaximum entitlement of each qualifying participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted any options
which, if exercised in full, would result in such person’s
maximum entitlement exceeding 1% of the aggregate
number of Shares for the time being issued and
issuable under the New Share Option Scheme in the
12-month period up to and including the proposed
grant date unless such grant is approved in advance
by the Shareholders in general meeting. No qualifying
participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non- executive Director, or any of their
respective associates shall be granted any options,
which, if exercised in full, would result in the shares
issued and issuable to such person under the New
Share Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to
and including the proposed grant date for such options,
unless such grant of options is approved in advance by
the Shareholders of the Company in general meeting: (a)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the number of
Shares then in issue; and (b) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on each
relevant date on which the grant of such options is
made to such person under the relevant scheme, in
excess of HK$5 million.

Qption period

The share options may be exercised in whole or in part
by the participant at any time during the exercise period,
i.e. not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant new share options pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme, by delivering to the Company a notice
duly signed in a form approved by the Board (together
with payment of the exercise price in full in respect
of each new share to be subscribed for) and delivery
of the new share option certificate for amendment or
cancellation.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

No offer of a new share option which is capable of or
open for acceptance shall be made after the expiry of
the exercise period pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme.

()

v

v
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(vi)

(vii)

(i

Payment on acceptance of the option

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the share option offer. The share option
offer will be offered for acceptance for a period of 14
days from the date on which the offer is granted.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price for the share under the New Share
Option Scheme will be determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion at the time of making the offer
of grant of a new share option but in any case the
subscription price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business day immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the shares.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on the date on which
the New Share Option Scheme becomes unconditional.
The Board may amend any of the provisions of the
New Share Option Scheme or withdraw or otherwise
terminate the New Share Option Scheme at any time
but no alterations shall be made to the advantage of
any participant unless approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting. All new share options granted prior to
such termination and not then exercise shall continue to
be valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance
with the terms of the New Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, no Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance during subsisting or at the end of
the year under review:

The expected entitlement of Mr. Sin and Mr. Chow Kai
Weng of the New Shares and the Conversion Shares
under the Scheme, details of which are set out in
the section headed “Scheme of Arrangement” of this
Directors' Report.

Mr. Sin’s interests in the promissory note (“PN4”) which
was in the principal amount of HK$104,640,000 and
issued by the Company on 14 April 2018 to settle part
of the principal and interest accrued on the convertible
bonds previously issued. The PN 4 has a maturity of
approximately 27 months from the date of issue and
bears coupon interest at 8% per annum, accrued
monthly and payable in full on the maturity date.

The Directors’ interests in the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this Directors’ report;

The Directors’ interests in the New Share Option
Scheme, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this Directors’ report;
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v.  The Directors’ interests in the Shareholders’ loan and v. IFREINESKBREEZFRAQRBESRN
other loan agreement advanced by the Directors to the ZEHMERBHE

Company as set out below:

Outstanding
As at Drawdown Repaid as at
Name of Interest Principle 1 January during during 31 December
the Director Date of loan Nature of loan rate amount 2019 the year the year 2019
RZB-NE
RZZ-NF t-h=t-A
- £3:24 E30H ERME A% A58 -f-H ERER ERiE ARE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
B BT BT BT BT
Mr. Sin 12 May 2015 Term Loan 13% 7,500,000 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
piined “E-RFRATCA BEER
02 June 2015 Term Loan 13% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
“E-RERACA EHER
11 August 2015 Term Loan 1% 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
“E-RENAT-B BEER
25 August 2015 Revolving Loan 12% 20,000,000 16,000,000 - - 16,000,000
“T-RENAZTRR EEEX
09 October 2015 Revolving Loan 10% 50,000,000 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
ZE-RETANA ERER
03 Novernber 2015 Term Loan 10% 62,000,000 62,000,000 - - 62,000,000
ZE-RFT-AZE 0 BEER
29 January 2016 Revolving Loan 1% 150,000,000 105,000,000 - - 105,000,000
ZE-RE-ACThB O ERER
19 February 2016 Term Loan - 40,000,000 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
ZZ-REZATAR BEER
19 February 2016 Revolving Loan 6% 100,000,000 59,900,000 - - 59,900,000
ZE-RECATAR O ERER
30 June 2016 Revolving Loan 15% 150,000,000 105,369,324 - (7,522,000) 97,847,324
ZE-RERAZTH ERER
14 Aprdl 2018 Term Loan 8% 84,200,000 84,200,000 - - 84,200,000
“E-\§MATER  EHER
671,700,000 527,969,324 - (75220000 520447324
Mr. Chow Kai Weng 01 October 2016 Term Loan 5% 48,048,000 21920200 - (1,260,000) 20,660,200
BEEEE “Z-RETA-H BHER
30 September 2017 Revolving loan 10% 50,000,000 10,693,997 4,440,535 - 15,134,532

“ELEAAZTE BRER

98,048,000 32,614,197 4,440,535 (1,260,000 35,794,732

769,748,000 560,583,521 4,440,535 (8,782,000 556,242,056

Note: The term loans and revolving loans from the Directors is M REESNEAHERRBRERDFTAEZA
included in the restructuring transaction. FTEl o



Directors’ Report EE & { £ E

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share option scheme of the Company and the
scheme of arrangement put forward by the Company, being
equity-linked agreements of the Company subsisting as at 31
December 2019, including the class and number of shares
that may be issued, and consideration that the Company has
or will receive, are disclosed under the paragraphs headed
“Share Option Schemes” and “Scheme of Arrangement”
respectively in this “Directors’ Report” on pages 104 to 109 of
this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEMES

Before 30 November 2000, the Group did not contribute to
any retirement benefit scheme for either its employees or the
Directors in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
the Group had joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority. The Group’s employees in Hong
Kong are required to join the scheme. The Group has followed
the minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income.

The Group’s subsidiary in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in
social insurance schemes (including retirement benefit
scheme, medical insurance scheme and unemployment
benefit scheme) operated by the relevant local government
authorities. The Group is required to make contribution to the
social insurance schemes on behalf of employees who are
registered permanent residents in the PRC. The insurance
premium is borne by the Group and the employees on a
specified proportion of the employees’ salaries laid down
under the relevant PRC law.

During the year, the employer’s contributions to the retirement
benefit scheme charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income amounted to approximately
HK$10,832,000 (2018: HK$11,084,000).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective close associates had any interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the year
under review. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against its Directors and the management
arising out of corporate activities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company maintained a sufficient public float as at the date of
this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken
by the Group during the year in the ordinary course of
business are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements. None of such related party transactions falls
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 33.71% of the Group’s revenue for the year
under review. The Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 17.13% of its revenue.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 57.52% of the Group’s purchases for the year
under review. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 20.56% of its purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates nor
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers at any time during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance with sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices and procedures with an aim of
maximizing the shareholders’ interests as well as to enhancing
the stakeholders’ transparency and accountability. In this
respect, to the best knowledge of the Board, the Company
has complied with all of the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules (“Corporate Governance Code”) then in
force during the year ended 31 December 2019, except the
followings:

As Mr. Chow Kai Weng serves as both the chairman
(“Chairman”) and the chief executive officer (“Chief Executive
Officer”) of the Company from 13 June 2018 to 13 May 2019,
such practice deviates from the code provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer in the same person can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and enhance effectiveness of its
operation. Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation
from the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code is appropriate in such circumstances. Following the
appointment of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam as an executive Director
and the chairman of the Company and the re-designation of
Mr. Chow Kai Weng from the chairman of the Company to the
associate chairman of the Company with effect from 14 May
2019, the Company has complied with the code provision
A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages
53 to 80 of this annual report for details.
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REQUIRED STANDARD OF
DEALINGS FOR DIRECTORS
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors
adopted by the Company throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in 2002.
As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Li Kit Chee
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred.

Following the resignation of Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick,
with effect from 1 January 2019, the Company only had two
independent non-executive Directors and two members of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. This fell below the minimum
number requirement under Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Following the appointment of Mr. Lam Kwok
Hing Wilfred with effect from 22 March 2019, the Company
has complied with the requirements under Rules 5.05(1) and
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed
the Company’s annual reports and financial statements,
interim reports and quarterly reports and discuss with the
management over issues relating to auditing, internal control
and financial reporting. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the audited financial results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 and this annual report.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages
53 to 80 for details.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) resigned as the
auditors of the Group with effect from 28 December 2018.
With the recommendation of the Audit Committee, Elite
Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as the
new auditors of the Group with effect from 28 December
2018 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
HLB and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 were
audited by Elite Partners.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS AND
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

(1) Mr. Sin Kwok Lam was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company on 14 May
2019.

(2)  Mr. Chow Kai Weng was re-designated from the
chairman of the Company to the associate chairman of
the Company on 14 May 2019.

(8 Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick resigned as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 January
2019.

(4)  Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 22 March 2019.

(6)  Dr. Lam Lee G. (i) resigned as a non-executive director
of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited
(Stock Code: 412) with effect from 14 May 2020; (ii)
resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Glorious Sun Enterprise Limited (Stock Code: 393)
with effect from 31 August 2019; (i) resigned as a non-
executive director of Green Leader Holdings Group
Limited (Stock Code: 61) with effect from 22 July
2019; (iv) resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 404) with effect from 27 September 2019;
(v) was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 337) with effect from 13 March 2020; and
(vi) was appointed as the chairman of Mingfa Group
(International) Company Limited (Stock Code: 846) with
effect from 23 April 2020.
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Updated biographical details of the Directors since the 2019
Interim Report of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed above, there were no substantial changes
to the Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BUGHMBRES
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- partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF

NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE
GROUP LIMITED

(Provisional Liquidators Appointed)

(For Restructuring Purpose)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 144 to 299, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY
RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 1 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately HK$511,957,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets and net liabilities by
approximately HK$1,815,887,000 and HK$431,283,000
respectively. As stated in Note 1, these events or conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate that
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section,
we have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BMEEER

o 9 ¢ wH 3 IH (a8)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNENMEERRENSER

Fair value of hotel properties and film studio

BIEYER GBI A ME

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

F2HEEMBHRMET -

Hotel properties and film studio are
property, plant and equipment measured
using the revaluation model. The fair
values of the hotel properties and film
studio were approximately HK$725 million
and HK$642 million respectively as at 31
December 2019. Management engaged
an independent external valuer to assist
in determining the fair values of the
properties.

BEDERZERIEREHREGE
W BERRE - BEDERTS
PR ZZ—NEF+A=Z=+—BHLIAR
BENRHRT25BE BT N642E & B
Lo ERERFE—RBIULINEGERFT
HABEZSFWENAE-

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of the fair value of hotel
properties and film studio mainly included:

MR EEETEAEMERZERNAAEMRDOEF X E0HE
° Assessing the calculations methodology adopted by management;
o  IRERBRERANGERE:

o Comparing the current year actual cash flows with the prior year cash
flow projections to consider if the projections included assumptions
that were overly optimistic;

e FAFEMNERREREE-—FENRSARBANLE  UEBZS
BAREEEBNEENRR

o Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions (including operating
margins, short term and long-term growth rates and discount rates)
based on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

o ERTMBEBNTENER FZARBRR(BEKLENE &
HERREEXRRFRR)NEEN R

o Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of these budgets.

e FEABUBREERHER (NELEE) HRTYZEEZEFRENSEN -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) i s 2 5 5 0E (2)

Key audit matter

BMEEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNENMEERRENSER

Impairment assessment of long-term other receivables

RAE it JE 5 78 49 05 (8 AT 1

Refer to notes 24 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

H2HEE B RRME24 26 -

As at 31 December 2019, the net book
value of trade and other receivables
amounted to HK$75 million and HK$171
million respectively.

RZZE-NF+_RAR=+—H BHRK
H i EURGRIRR R FED AN R75A
EETKITTASETT -

Management performed credit evaluations
for the Group’s customers and assessed
expected credit losses of the receivables.
These assessments were focused on
the customers’ and debtor’s settlement
history and their current ability to pay, and
took into account information specific to
respective customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operated.

BIEEYH BEREEPETTEENG
IS T ERBAEMFERERRK - %
EHHAERNEPREBANEEES
REB AN A kEXER
FERRREEFELEMENKERER
B E R o

All of these assessments involved
significant judgements of management.

FTBEZET AP REEERE A -

We focused on this area because
management made subjective judgements
over assessing the credit standing of the
Group’s customers and the estimation of
expected credit losses of trade and other
receivables.

B IERE LA EREEHR
FrEREMRFE - B R EAMREBR
AN EHMEEEIRRMEHEL TBRHE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s Impairment assessment of trade
and long-term other receivables mainly included:

PR EREHE S RRMEMREFTIREREFENREFEIERHE

° With respect to management’s credit evaluations for the Group’s
customers, we understood, evaluated and validated the key controls
over credit risk management. Those key controls were related to credit
standing of the major customer, identification of events that triggered
the provision for impairment of the receivables and estimation of the
expected credit losses.

e HNEEEY EEEEFPWNEENEME RMTHE  FEALRE
THEERREEMBRIZY - ZEZHRREHSNIBEPNEE
I~ R R ERIEREERENEHAREREEBRNMEE -

° We obtained management’s assessment of expected credit losses of
the receivables and assessed the reasonableness of the key underlying
information referenced by management. Where impairment provision
was individually made, we checked and assessed whether the
impairment provision was properly supported by considering available
forward-looking information, the debtors’ aging analysis, settlement
history and history of bad debt losses.

o RMESEREEYHEKIAAHREEBRLNNME  XrrhTERE
SENBRABERNSEN - M @R ELRERE  HMHAZ
BRFZAELEER  EBANKRRONT SHELREREBEXSL
NEZ L EREREREFIEE -

° In respect of receivables of individual customer which had not been
identified by management as potentially impaired , we corroborated
management’s assessment with the external evidence obtained
from our independent research on publicly available information, our
examination of the customers’ payment records during the current year
and subsequent to the year end, as well as the historical collection
records.

e HAEEREINRBERENESETS ZBUFIEAEME - HIFAR
BHRMELHAISENBLASESNINEEE RAREFER
EEREHEP ARSI R A KR st MU R RER B I B RT 4 -

° Based on our audit procedures, we were satisfied that management’s
assessments were consistent with the evidence that we obtained.

o RERMNBEHEF RMAFREEBOMEERPERAEZE B -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BMEEER

o 9 ¢ wH 3 IH (a8)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNENMEERRENSER

Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets

EAEEENREE

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

FE2HE A HRRME18 -

The carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets were approximately HK$357 million
as at 31 December 2019.

EAREENR_T-NAF+_A=1—
EOREENRITASEET -

The carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

BERAEMEFAARSE B REERE
AR RN O e HEREEEN
EHESFERER

For the purpose of assessing impairment,
the recoverable amounts were determined
by management based on the facts
and circumstances. In carrying out the
impairment assessments, significant
judgement was required to determine
the reasonableness of key assumptions,
including discount rates and market rent.

AMEREMS  ATHEEEHEEE
RBEFBENREET - £1TRERE
FREHERHEARTEHARER (21
FRERMHES) WAEM -

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets mainly include:

B EREFEEAREEN RAEMRBRNEFEE2EH

o Conducting analytical procedures and assessing management
judgement of the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets;

o ETIOMERLFEEEEABEMAEEERTENHE

° Recalculating and checking the amount of depredation based on the
amortisation rate and considering whether depredation methods are
consistent and reasonable; and

. RIFBEEREFTENERITESSE  THRITEZEZRTEM
MERE: &

° Understanding of management’s process around impairment
assessment, where indicators existed.

4+

e ERBER TREEEBTRENEMNRER -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

At % 1
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AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES
FORTHE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Leung Man Kin with Practising
Certificate number PO7174.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREBEREMZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NFE+-_A=+—HILtFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T F#& T T
Revenue WA
— Goods and services —Em& R 7 135,919 115,350
— Rental —H& 7 41,565 35,066
— Interest —FE 7 4,608 3,421
Total revenue RN 182,092 153,837
Other income HaUA 8 14,658 5,277
Cost of film production EERERA (1,210) (1,224)
Staff costs 8 TR 12 (58,020) (51,629)
Other operating expenses Hih g @R (126,015) (92,212)
Operating profit KeEFE 11,505 14,049
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB REEITE
equipment 12 (63,582) (63,247)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRHEEERE 12 (15,927) -
Amortisation of land lease prepayments  FE 15 - 3th 8 & 2 I8 # £ - (13,757)
Impairment loss of financial assets CEVEERERE 9 (134,496) (7,495)
Impairment loss on investment in B REREREEE
film production ) 8 (986) -
Impairment loss of land lease JEf LA EREREIE
prepayments - (71,473)
Provision for restructuring cost BEAARE (43,776) -
Net exchange losses R =D 12 (17,791) (42,712
Loss on fair value changes of ABmEESF QR
convertible bond gE)EE - (2,521)
Share of loss of a joint venture NE—HaErEEE (2,479) (1,072)
Finance costs B &AL 11 (244,425) (227,330)
Loss before income tax B TS A A ES 18 12 (511,957) (415,558)
Income tax expense P53 i 52 13 - -
Loss for the year REEBIE (511,957) (415,558)
Other comprehensive expense Htt2HEAX
Items that will not be reclassified to T2 E%/51E#=EH
profit or loss
Loss on revaluation of properties held BEFEEBWENEE
for own use (235,879) (28,637)
Income tax credit relating to revaluation of A B EEFIEE AYERN
properties held for own use FriSfiE e 13 58,970 7,159
Item that may be reclassified REGEES B EBmIEE
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation HMEBINE B E MR
of financial statements of foreign EEXNERZMHE
operations (14,628) (56,582)
Other comprehensive expense AEEHME2EMX
for the year, net of tax MRBIE (191,537) (78,060)
Total comprehensive expense AEEEEBEXAE
for the year (703,494) (493,618)




Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER 145

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income s 8B E R EM 2 EKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—z— s LI
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T F#& T T
Loss for the year attributable to: EhARFERIE
Owners of the Company KARHEE A (511,182) (415,556)
Non-controlling interests PR = (775) @)
(511,957) (415,558)
Total comprehensive expense EiEE2EMZ A%
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARNREEA (702,719) (493,616)
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE (775) @)
(703,494) (493,618)
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted HAKEE (HK10.53 cents (HK9.20 cents

14 7l AL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBERRE

At 31 December 2019 A-—ZE—hE+-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
[ihg=3 FET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KA 17 1,400,027 1,683,190
Land lease prepayments BN TAE 18 - 371,074
Investment in a joint venture EELERE 21 2,849 5,328
Long-term receivables and investment REIEWFIBRIEE
deposits e 26 129,115 92,555
Right-in-use assets FREEE 20 360,218 -
Pledged bank deposits DR ITER 2,229 2,278
1,894,438 2,154,425
Current assets REEE
Film products and film production BEYEMNMEREY
in progress Em 22 4,344 1,210
Investments in films/dramas production B 5,/ B BIRAER K E 23 325 1,311
Trade receivables FEWE 5 I8 24 75,184 128,177
Inventories FE 25 2,514 2,928
Prepayments, deposits and other AR RIE - B REM
receivables & Uk FTE 26 42,265 54,492
Amount due from a joint venture JEM A & EFIR 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances B& RIRTTHES 27 3,667 13,474
130,713 204,006
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables e E 58 28 36,072 19,979
Other payables and accruals Hpth fE 5 5118 R 5T & A 29 197,393 83,771
Loans from shareholders R REE K 30 589,457 4,090
Borrowings EE 31 217,145 138,400
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 27 5,778 -
Lease liabilities/Finance lease obligation A E&E, BEHEHRE 32,33 13,502 9,738
Bonds s 34 769,105 660,424
Promissory note A EE 36 115,197 -
Provision for income tax FRiS BB 2,951 2,951
1,946,600 919,353
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (1,815,887) (715,347)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBER 78,551 1,439,078
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2019 2018
—E-hEF AN S
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
[ihg=3 FET FHET
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Loans from shareholders R ER 30 - 596,941
Borrowings BE 31 9,895 54,659
Bonds &% 34 384,178 362,895
Promissory note AR 36 - 106,477
Lease liabilities/Finance lease obligaton T E& & BEMREHRE 32,33 16,261 14,461
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEEE 37 99,500 158,470
509,834 1,293,903
Net (liabilities)/assets B (BE)BE (431,283) 145175
Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital f& s 38 494,817 451,716
Reserves s (925,557) (306,773)
Equity attributable to owners of RNTHER AEGER
the Company (430,740) 144,943
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R = (543) 232
Total equity A (431,283) 145,175
The consolidated financial statements were approved and AR REBAESEN _E_EFAF+N
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June BibERIKETNE YR TIINESRRESSESE

2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chow Kai Weng
AR
Director

BF

Cheng Wang Chun
1IN
Director

BFE
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

HEREXEREERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERRBIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ANREE ARG
Share Special  Contributed Properties Share  Convertible Attributable to
capital Share reserve surplus  revaluation  Translation option  bondequity  Accumulated non-controlling
(note 36) premium (note 37) (note 37) reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
e RHRE B4EH TERES
(Kit36) RiER (H3ta) (Waan) N¥EMEE  BEEE  RREEE  EEER 2itER Nt FERERES  EHEE
HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000
FEn FAR FhR iR FhR AR TAL FEL FET FEn FAn FhR
At 31 December 2017 451416 803,714 1,000 78791 37283% (75,087) 51880 15,507 (1,059,949 640,197 284 640431
Impact on intal applcation of HKFRS 9
(note 3) - - - - - - - - (R (R - (7673
At1 January 2018 RZF-N5-A-H 451416 803,714 1,000 78,791 37283% (75,087) 51880 15,597 (1,067,622) 632,524 284 632,758
Shareissued upon exercise riBRERS TR
of share options note 36) (H3+36) 300 781 - - - - (346) - - 7% - 735
Lapse of share options BREXH - - - - - - (9622 - 962 - - -
Bxinguishment of comvertebond  BARTEREL(TAL
by the way ofssuance of promissory - ZF#1 5 BRI G#
note to substantial shareholder &% - - 5302 - - - - (15,597) 16,597 5302 - 5302
Transferof properties revauation resene. HiERBHIZ 4
toacumuatedossuponisposal EfFEEEBEZiEE
of relevant properties - - - - (16,344) - - - 16,344 - - -
Transaction with owners HEFARGNRS 300 781 5302 - (16,344) - 998 (15,597) 41,563 6,037 - 6,037
Lossforthe year TEEER - - - - - - - - (415,556) (415,556) ) (415,559)
Losson revaluation of properesheld ~ EfEHEERNENEE
for own use, net of tax BRE - - - - (21478) - - - - [21478) - 21478)
Exchange difierences on transiation
of financial statements of foreign
operations - - - - - (66,584) - - - (66,584) - (66,584)
Totd comprehensie (xpensayincome K2 (B30) /A
for the year % - - - - (21478 (56,584) - - (415,556) (493618) Q 493,620)
At 31 December 2018 451,716 804,49 6,302 78,791 335,013 (131,671) 41912 - (1441615 144943 23 145175
At1 Janvary 2019 RZE-N5-A-R 451,716 804,495 6,302 78,791 335,013 (131,671) 41912 - (1,441,615) 14943 22 145,175
Share ssued upon exercise it RERE TR
of share aptons (note 36) Lik: 24 583 - - - - (257) - - 550 - 550
Lapse of share options - - - - - - (13973 - 13973 - - -
Issue of Shares under placing 4281 61,914 - - - - - - - 104,791 - 104,791
Eouity settled share-based payment
- - - - - - 21,69 - - 21,69 - 21,69
Transacton wih owners HEEAETNRS 43101 62497 - - - - 7,465 - 13973 127,0% - 127,03
Lossforthe year TEEER - - - - - - - - (511,182) (511,182 (175) (511,957)
Loss on revaluaton of properties EftREERNENER
held for own use, net of tax BRE - - - - (176,909) - - - - (176,909) - (176,909)
Exchange diferences on rangation SRR
of fandialstatements of foreign EEMELZE
operations - - - - - (14,628) = = = (14,628) ° (14628)
Total comprehensive (expense)income
forthe year - - - - (176,909) (14,628) - - (511,182) (102,719 (175) (103494
At31 Decermber 2019 44817 866,992 6302 78791 168,104 (146,209) 431 - (10884 (430740 B4 (43128




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Amortisation of film products
Amortisation of land lease prepayments
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use asset
Expenses recognised in respect of equity-
settled share-based payments
Loss on fair value changes of convertible
bonds
LLoss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables
Impairment losses on land lease
prepayments
Impairment loss on investment in film
production
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Share of loss of a joint venture

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital

Decrease in inventories

Increase in film products and film production
in progress

Increase in trade receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables and
accruals

NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

REXBHNBRERE

BRI AE 18

LTSS IREL I
RITHB A
EYEMBEH
BN LIS
ME - BERREBINE

EREEENE
AR A AR 15 R
HERHI X
AR ES R EEE
& 18
HEME - WEMERE
) Eis!

B 5 K H A R WGR IR
BRI E 1R

T EE RN SR EREE

BEYRFRERERR

HEME - BFER&REDN
&8
D —HAELEEE

RERE

EYERRERNEYER
#n

FEUR B 5 FRIEE hn

FBARIE - e REAE
W ks (38 0) 8

FEfTE SRR, O D)

E A A HUB R B £ 5 D
210/ (R)

REXK (FA)/ MEREFH
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2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
(511,957) (415,558)
244,425 227,330
(29) (16)
1,210 1,224

- 13,757

63,582 63,247
15,927 -
21,695 -

= 2,521

= 447
134,496 7,495
= 71,473

986 -

82 -
2,479 1,072
(27,104) (27,008)
414 53
(4,344) (14)
(35,813) (9,958)
(70,023) 68,254
16,093 (4,533)
113,622 (22,894)
(7,155) 3,900
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %%

EHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NFE+-_A=+—HILtFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Increase in films/dramas production

Interest received

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties

Investment deposits paid

Placement of pledged bank deposit

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Proceeds from shareholders loans

Repayments of shareholders loans

Proceeds from short-term borrowing

Repayments of short-term borrowing

Proceeds from issuance of bonds

Transaction costs of issuance of bonds

Repayments of bonds

Repayments of finance leases obligation

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of share options

Proceeds from placing of shares

Transaction costs of placing of shares

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES ON THE BALANCE OF CASH
HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Bank overdrafts

REFHNRERE

B5 BB REIZ N
A WA
M -~ BB MR R
HEWE - BFE R&iE
P 5R1R
R A Y P R

Eff%REZRS
FEERRITIFR

REZBFAFRE

METHNRERE

BEAFLE

IR 51 & FR P15 RE
EEREER
REMEEMRSRIA
EEEHEE
BATIE S P15 IE
EITEF R HHAR
BEES

B3 B A5 T G AR

BRI TEREITARM A

T8 508
Bic & B4 P18 5018
IR BL & 2 X 5 AR

METHNRESFE

RERALEEER (BL)

1B hn A
FORERBAEEEER

EXSBUMFIINEREELR

Mg

EREERBREEHEAHE

RERREEEHRBERIN

R RIRITHE
RITEX

2019 2018
—E-hF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT FAT
- (325)

29 16
(36,470) (63,444)
= 300

= 34,780

- (28,374)

= (2,364)
(36,441) (59,411)
(127,766) (195,553)
13,220 40,422
(20,659) (27,556)
39,194 43,537
(5,213) (71,553)
526,871 866,392
(24,302) (93,087)
(482,004) (506,401)
(1,909) (282)
550 735
111,480 -
(6,689) -
22,773 56,654
(20,823) 1,143
13,474 11,528
5,238 803
(2,111) 13,474
3,667 13,474
(5,778) -
2,111) 13,474
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries as, the
“Group”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 16 November 2001 as an exempted company
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands.
On 14 October 2010, the Company deregistered in
the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda with
effect from 14 October 2010. The registered office of
the Company is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong is at Room 1514-1515, 15/F., Seapower Tower,
Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company is
principally engaged in investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group include film production and
distribution, the provision of management services to
artistes, event coordination, operations of film studio
and hotel and provision of travel related products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“HK$’000”) unless otherwise
stated.

1.

— BB R K i A A

BERELERFRAR ([AQA] - &
AEWBARASRBEIRNER]))R_ZT—F
T—ATARBEBREREHELAEF2LE
(= HAR—FEDIS - Lh5E RIET) ER S B
EXMKLABRERAT - R_Z—TF+
A+HB AAGRAEHSHEEM I
BEAREEINBRENERE QAL
FE RZZE—ZEFTATHBER AR
7)Y 51 3 = 52 /& Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

ARATNESTELEMBU AT BNESR
DERBEEEIRERESM AR KRES
B 1514-1515= o

RRABRDNEBEEM AR HABERAFGEM
ETW-ARREBREREER - ANEEHZ
IBXBEREZRERET RHEAE
ER® EBHRE LEFRWMEGERIR
HIRITIREEM -

FEMBHRERABT(BT]  TRAERAER
DR 25 REEERN - EEEY
A AZEREOINTUE(TETD -
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

PREPARATION (continued)

In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
the directors have considered the future liquidity
of the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group had recorded net current liabilities and net
liabilities of approximately HK$1,815,887,000 and
HK$431,283,000 respectively, and the Group incurred
a loss for the year of approximately HK$511,957,000.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid conditions, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis on the assumption that the
Group will be able to operate as a going concern for
the foreseeable future. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group can meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the next year from the date
of the consolidated financial statements, after taking
into consideration of the following measures and
arrangements made:

1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF

— R S A 2

RRELEREVBERETG EFEEEARN
SEERAEREE R _TE—NLF+_A
—t—H AEEESRBAGEFERAE
SEEE D R 491,815,887,0005% 7T K 431,283,000
T AN B E A F NEIE X 511,957,000 7
TC o M AR R R 1F AT 1] B HY AN SR B AR B S
BREZENEBREARBZERTEEE
X ARAEEREELIRIEREBBES
BRELEREEAE -

BERELMAN - EEAMBBRR TR
BREEERUIBRAEEHNA R B K
EARERETAEE - EENZRUATH
BREHERRE AEBABITEALGEM
BHxEAPRBEFNINM o HBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

(a)

Proposed financial restructuring plans

To facilitate the Company’s financial restructuring,
on 14 June 2019, a winding up petition together
with the application for the appointment of Mr.
Osman Mohammed Arab and Mr. Lai Wing Lun,
both of RSM Corporate Advisory (Hong Kong)
Limited, and Mr. Roy Bailey c/o EY Bermuda Ltd
as joint provisional liquidators (together “JPLs”)
of the Company on a light touch approach for
restructuring purposes (the “JPL Application”)
was presented and filed with the Supreme
Court of Bermuda (the “Bermuda Court”) by the
Company’s Bermuda Counsel, Conyers Dill &
Pearman at the request of the Company (the “JPL
Application”).

Under the JPL Application, the Board shall
retain all of its executive powers in relation
to the ordinary course of business of the
Company, subject to the JPLs’ supervision,
for the purpose of developing and proposing a
financial restructuring, of the exercise of such
powers. This would allow the Company’s current
management to work with the JPLs to oversee
the implementation of a financial restructuring
proposal.

The Bermuda Court made the orders as sought
by the Company under the JPL Application, inter
alia, the JPLs have been appointed on 14 June
2019.

On 10 July 2019, the Company invited all known
creditors of the Company (the “Creditors”) to
make an offer to the Company for possible
restructuring transaction, which has received
substantial support from most of the Creditors.

On 26 August 2019, the Company put forward
the proposed scheme of arrangement pursuant
to Section 99 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and Section 670 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong.

The appointment and the powers of the JPLs
were recognised by the High Court of Hong Kong
on 15 August 2019.

1.

— BB S L 2

(a)

REMBEATE

AREAQNTMBER R_T—LF
ANATHE BARAER  AQAA
A %% 2% /2 A0 Conyers Dill & Pearman @ &
RiEEeER ((BREER]) X2 RIE
REBERE  ERATEIEsaH | Ef L
EEBRPECEERARATINEER
So i & B 58 B o 4E LA K EY Bermuda Ltd
#) Roy Bailey 7t & & 7N 2 7 #) £ [7 B& IF
BEA(FBIHRERREBRALDMMEE
MBI ERE ([RGB BEARG] -

REARBRERARG EE8Y
RRR—REBBIZRE AT
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

HEREXEREERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

(a)

Proposed financial restructuring plans
(Continued)

As part of the Company’s financial restructuring
plans, the Company invited the Creditors to make
an offer to the Company to subscribe for:

(1)

1% annual coupon rate convertible bonds
due 2024 to be issued by the Company
(the “Convertible Bonds”) in the principal
amount equal to 60% of the outstanding
principal amount of debts due and owing
by the Company to each of the Creditors
(where applicable, together with interests
accrued thereon and calculated up to
14 June 2019 at the respective annual
interest rate of the relevant debt(s)) and
convertible into fully-paid ordinary shares of
the Company listed and traded on GEM at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per
conversion share (the “Conversion Shares”)
(the “CB Subscription”); and

new shares of the Company at the issue
price of HK$0.38 per share (the “New
Shares”) the total value of which equals
to the remaining 40% of the outstanding
principal amount of debts due and owing
by the Company to each of the Creditors
(where applicable, together with interests
accrued thereon and calculated up to 14
June 2019 at the respective annual interest
rate of the relevant debt(s)) (the “Share
Subscription”) (the CB Subscription and
the Share Subscription together referred to
as the “Restructuring Transaction”), as full
and final settlement of all outstanding debts
(where applicable, together with interests
accrued thereon and calculated up to
14 June 2019 at the respective annual
interest rate of the debt(s)) due and owing
by the Company to the Creditors, subject
to the execution, and the final terms and
conditions, of the subscription agreement,
the bond instrument, any scheme of
arrangement proposed by the Company
and/or other agreements the execution of
which is desirable for the implementation
and consummation of the Restructuring
Transaction, as the case maybe.

1.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

(a)

Proposed financial restructuring plans
(Continued)

The offer by the Creditors to participate in the
Restructuring Transaction also includes an
agreement that the Creditors will participate in,
support and vote in favour of a scheme(s) of
arrangement proposed by the Company, where
such scheme(s) is/are deemed necessary and
appropriate by the Company and the JPLs of the
Company appointed pursuant to the Order of the
Bermuda Court dated 14 June 2019.

As at 12 August 2019, the Company has received
substantial support from the Creditors regarding
the Restructuring Transaction.

On 10 October 2019, the Restructuring
Transaction was approved by the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the special
general meeting of the Company (the “SGM”).

On 8 November 2019, the creditors’ scheme,
which the Company will issue the New Shares
and the Convertible Bonds to the Creditors to
discharge and release the debt owing by the
Company to the Creditors in full (the “Scheme”),
was approved by the requisite statutory majorities
of the Creditors.

On 6 March 2020, the Scheme became binding
and effective.

On 7 May 2020, the notice of decision
on adjudication of claim of the Scheme
Administrators pursuant to the Scheme (the
“Decision”) were dispatched to the Creditors.

On 27 May 2020, the application for review of
the Decision expired and no application was
received.

On 9 June 2020, the Scheme Administrators
informed the Company the final result of their
adjudication of claims pursuant the Scheme and
instructed the Company to issue the New Shares
and Convertible Bonds to the Creditors pursuant
to the Scheme.

1.
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BEREXLEMBERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

1.

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Proposed financial restructuring plans
(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors and the Scheme
Administrator, the Scheme is expected to be
completed and the New Shares and Convertible
Bonds will be issued to the each Creditor by the
end of June 2020.

Extension of the Group’s other borrowing

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group has renegotiated the maturity date of other
borrowings of approximately HK$81,780,000
with accrued interest of HK$15,869,000 as at 31
December 2019 to 30 June 2023.

Credit facilities obtained after the end of the
reporting period

At the date of this report, the Group has various
credit facilities of HK$175,000,000 in aggregate
with the interest rate carrying from 6.5% to 12.0%
available for the Group’s working capital and its
financial obligations. Those credit facilities will
mature after next twelve months from the date
of this report. The lenders of such loan facilities
are licensed money lenders in Hong Kong and
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, a substantial shareholder,
chairman and executive director of the Company.

Possible fund-raising activities

On 13 March 2020, the Company entered into
an agreement (the “SSF Agreement”) with GEM
Global Yield LLC SCS (the “Investor”), pursuant
to which the Investor has agreed to grant the
Company an option to require the Investor to
subscribe for the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) (the “Share Subscription Facility”) and
the Company has agreed to issue 383,000,000
warrants (the “Warrants”) to the Investor.

— BB S L 2
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(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

1.

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

(d)

()

Possible fund-raising activities (Continuea)

Under the Share Subscription Facility, the
Company has right to request the Investor to
subscribe for the Shares at a price which is
90% of the average closing price of last 10
trading days immediately following the delivery
of subscription notice by the Company to the
Investor, but not lower than HK$0.23 per Share
(the “Option”). The Option is exercisable by the
Company for 3 years, commencing on 13 March
2020. The aggregate subscription price under the
Share Subscription Facility is HK$2,350,000,000.

The Warrants carry a right to the Investor to
subscribe for up to a total of 383,000,000 Shares
at a price of HK$0.23 per Shares for 3 years,
commencing on the date of the satisfaction or
the fulfilment of conditions precedent to the SSF
Agreement.

The issuance of the Shares under the Share
Subscription Facility and the Warrants is subject
to the approval from the Stock Exchange and the
Shareholders.

Various cost control measures

The management plans to improve the Group’s
financial performance by taking steps to reduce
discretionary expenses and administrative costs.

Nevertheless, should the Group fail to implement
the measure as mentioned above, it might not be
able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected
in theses consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16
HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKFRSs

Leases
Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlerment

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“‘HKFRS”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current period
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17
Leases ("HKAS 17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore,
the Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“‘HKFRS”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continuea)
As alessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

(i) relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as
an alternative of impairment review;

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application;

(i)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application;

(iv)  applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in similar economic
environment;

(v used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term for the Group’s leases with extension
and termination options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. PRHBET B BB T & s %
REVISED TO HONG KONG e 3 e J ([ 7 s W 25 e o 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING Al &)
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)
(Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are AFEERHEMPMTRBBITERRBERE
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continueq) £R (&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continueq) TR BHEEANZE 165 HE (&)
As a lessee (Continuea) tEBATRA (B)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases MER D EACEHECHERREEERE
previously classified as operating leases, the Group B AEBECERAYGRERBHRABE
has applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant BEEMNESERFE - HBEEBETEMER
group entities at the date of initial application. The B ANAE S 15 AT A 18 & E R R N F4.50%
weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate £15.00% °
applied is by the relevant group entities range from
4.50% to 15.00%.
HK$’000
T
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at RZE—-—N\F+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018 BENKEEEAE 4,155
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases B R - NEEE (277)
3,878
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental RABRIE S fE A R BL IR EY
borrowing rates HEAE 3,204
Add: Obligation under finance lease recognised at m:m—=—-—NF+=—A=+—H
31 December 2018 RN R E MG AR 24,199
Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—A—HNHEEAE 27,403
Analysed as DITE
Current T ED 10,401
Non-current ERB 17,002

27,403
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRAPET K 845 T 7 s W B

REVISED TO HONG KONG e 4 e J ([ 7 U8 W 25 e o 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING Al &)
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)
(Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are AFEERHEMPMTRBBITERRBERE
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continueq) B8 (&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continueq) TR BHEEANZE 165 HE (&)
As a lessee (Continuea) tEBATRA (B)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 RZTE-NF-—A—BZEFERAEEEREE
January 2019 comprises the following: N
HK$’000
FAEL
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases JERBEBYBMEENE16RERER
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 MELEHEFANFERAREE 3,204
Reclassified from land lease prepayment ATt BEERMNREH S 371,074
374,278
By class =R
Leasehold lands HETHb 371,074
Office premises NIG T 3,204

374,278
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRAPET K 845 5T 7 s W B

REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“‘HKFRS”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continuea)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continuea)

As alessee (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC
were classified as land lease prepayments as at 31
December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
land lease prepayments amounting to approximately
HK$371,074,000 was reclassified to right-of-use assets.

(b) In relation to assets previously under finance leases,
the Group reclassified the finance leases obligation
of approximately HK$9,738,000 and HK$14,461,000
to lease liabilities as current and non-current liabilities
respectively as at 1 January 2019.

(c) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group
considered refundable rental deposits paid as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use of the underlying assets and were adjusted to
reflect the discounting effect at transition. Accordingly,
HK$1,614,000 was adjusted to refundable rental
deposits paid.

Lease payments increase progressively over lease
terms

These relate to accrued lease liabilities of several
operating leases for leases of properties/vessels in
which the rentals increase progressively by fixed annual
percentage. The carrying amount of the accrued lease
liabilities as at 1 January 2019 was adjusted to right-of-
use assets at transition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“‘HKFRS”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continuea)

As alessee (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position as at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

2. PRAIPET R AL 45 6) A i W B
e o i B0 ([ o B 5 e o
1) &)

FEERHERNHTREETBBYBHRE

BRI (%)

BENBHEENE 16KEE ()
EREBA(E)

UTRER _FT-NF—A—-BZHEANE

RARPHERZEREL AR - REXE
BYEZBEAYTEREENR -

Carrying Carrying
amount amount
previously under
reported as at HKFRS 16 as at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
RIBEBY
FRIRA B
—E-N\F F165E R
+=A —E-NE
=+—H —A—H®
E2ERZEREE EiE IREE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Non-current assets REBEE
Land lease prepayments T ETE N KA 371,074 (371,074) -
Right-of-use assets FHEEE - 374,278 374,278
Current liabilities REAE
Lease liabilities HEAE - 11,294 11,294
Finance lease obligation e EAIE 9,738 (9,738) -
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE - 16,109 16,109
Finance lease obligation mE TR E AR 14,461 (14,461) -

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
December 2019, movements in working capital have
been computed based on opening statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

M RERETEREZRBE_T-NF+=A
=St-BLFERELEHAERERE
FREEESEPHCR ERABZMBERRR
RZZ-NF—A—HZHVBEFRAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“‘HKFRS”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Inferest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

The Directors consider that the application of all new
and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASSs is unlikely to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance as well as disclosure in foreseeable
future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
properties, film studio and financial instruments that are
measured at revalued amount or fair values at the end
of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019)
or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NFE+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. HEFHEHEUR @)

POLICIES (continuea)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Basis of consolidation (Continuea)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

—hE+ZA=+—RLFE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment, or a portion
thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is or the portion so classified is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5. Any retained portion of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture that has
not been classified as held for sale shall be accounted
for using the equity method. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

HEFEHBUR 2

REEAARGELECRE

o

BERRARAREHEAEAREN 2 ER
BERFENESEARREE 2B REER
RREZED  BEHZEFBRRILEESH K
() 42 11| 4 o

RECER-—BEBALY HLRHERHAR
ZHIE AT B H A R EEFE
BERN KAZEHRERRANNHELE X
AL PR B ROIE S KAZEHIEEE R
ABERARFTAEGEZESEL XA
BZARERFE -

BMERANAELEZEEREERAGBMN
BEZFHAAGREMBRE  BFAFHARER
HEHp—H0 0 BRFHMFELE REEBERT
BEHREIDBABELENRDZEE
BB REERESFALR - WARDBRFEL
ENRBERARGEEEREZEARE
Mo EMEREINR - RIFERE R
BRAIRAELREZREVFERARGE
FBEARRARER  TRERAERAEEE
HZBERRRARCE AR NEMEE
WamiEH AR -BERE SELEZE
EFEEH (BakHEhe2misEiRs) 7
AR BRIFZBHERAKE A 2HER
BRNE FAKEREBERRAXASED
EZBEBHASERNZBEARHEED
o RGR (BREEY LRAAEERZAE
EREFE Ao 2 EMRRER) %
MR LEREMEE—FER - ERANEHE
BEAZRIMEET  AEKREKZEED
EXNFBEZERT  hefE—SHEREE -



170

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continueqd)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the in vestment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell) with its carrying amount, Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. HEFHEHEUR @)

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continueqd)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or
joint venture is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate of joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. HEFHEHEUR @)

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continueqd)

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership investments in
an associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to
a customer. An asset is transferred when the customer
obtains control of that asset. Revenue may be over time
or at a particular point in time. Revenue is recognised
over time when one of the following criteria is satisfied:

(@)

the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Revenue is recognised at a particular point in time (i.e.
when the customer obtains control of the promised
goods or service) when none of the abovementioned
criteria are satisfied.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The table below is a summary of how the Group’s
revenue from different types of operations is recognised

under HKFRS 15.

Types of revenue (within
the scope of HKFRS 15)
W BB (BB BRE
EAIZE15KEER)

HEFEHBUR 2

REGNEFHNRE (£

TR AL E R B TR EB UK
@REEBI B REELF 155K MHR

Accounting policy under HKFRS 15

EERMBRELERNE1SRTHEHBE

Artiste management fee income

Hotel room income

B 5 B A

Food and beverage income
EHUBA

Entrance fee income
AZBA

Event income

RBNUA

Films production and licensing
income

BYREREFRA

Artiste management fee income are recognised on a net basis (i.e. the amount
entitled by the Group rather than the total consideration set out in the related
contracts as the Group concluded that it is merely acting as an agent) as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs.

HEERBRANRFEEERR (A AREERESHEE - MIEABRE
AFENAERE  BAXEEAHEGAHERIRE)  EBRENEEN KR
R AER - MARE BB - 5P RIR YR = AARE B R AR o

Hotel room income is recognised when services are provided.

B JE B AT Rt AR 7S B HE R

Food and beverage income is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the goods at restaurant.
ERBAREMNEGIREBRER RPN EREEE I ER -

Entrance fee income is recognised when the tickets are accepted and
surrendered by the customer.
ANSERPIZREEAN NS RESER -

Event income is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time as
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group performs.
EHRARBROEERN —RERABERKER  ARAEBELOR &
FREEDR R ZAREBEHRENNE -

Income derived from the production and distribution of films, when the
production is completed and the film is released, the film has been distributed
to the cinema circuit and the amount can be measured reliably, which is
generally when the cinema circuit confirms to the Group its share of box
receipts.
BREERBITEANNARTREERELENTEESZR G A S8BT
FABER (—RREXRENAEERRBYEREW R 2 K) HER
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Types of revenue (within
the scope of HKFRS 15)
BB (EEMB®RE
ZRAISE15REER)

3. EEGFBUR#)

REGNEFHNRE (£

Accounting policy under HKFRS 15

EEMBRELERNE1SRTHEEHBE

Sales of travel related products

4 IR i AR B EE

Sales of goods

HESmMm

Ancillary services

A& AR 7%

Income derived from the licensing of the distribution and broadcasting
rights over films, when the Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established which, subject to the terms of the relevant agreements, is usually
upon delivery of the film negatives to the customers.

FRF B BT R EENRAR A EE ZEZ S RIANENEL R (R
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Sales of travel related products is recognised when control of the goods
has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the travel related
products.

HEREABEMNERNVITHIEERN®ER TP EEIREEME®
HORFEI 20 -

Sales of goods is recognised when control of the goods has transferred to the
customer, being at the point the goods are delivered to the customer.
HEERRNERNIEHIEEREEPRER  ERN T B P AR 2 o

Ancillary service income is recognised when a performance obligation satisfied
over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.
RERBBRARBLOETN —BREHEANEEKRER  BRNEBELOR
BEPRIRWER R ZARNEEEORMNF R -

Types of revenue (outside
the scope of HKFRS 15)
WHER (EEBHB®RE
RSB EE )

Accounting policy

BEEE

Rental income from operating
leases

REHENESBA

Rental income under operating leases is recognised over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised on the accounting period when they are
incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leasing

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accoraance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease component,
and instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leasing (Continuea)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continuea)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leasing (Continuea)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continuea)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leasing (Continuea)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continuea)

Lease liabilities (Continueq)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market
rental rates are initially measured using the market rental
rates as at the commencement date. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leasing (Continuea)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continuea)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE - &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Leasing (Continueqd)

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the year in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than
investment properties measured under fair value model,
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in
the cost of those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered
into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks; and

° exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on repayment of the monetary items.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Retirement benefit costs and employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. The Group operates
a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries or the
maximum mandatory contribution as required by the
MPF Scheme and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for
the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
except Hong Kong, are required to participate in
the employee retirement scheme operated by the
relevant local government bureau in the PRC and to
make contributions for their eligible employees. The
contributions payable by the subsidiaries are calculated
based on a certain percentage of the salaries and
wages of those eligible employees and are recognised
as an expense during the period to which they relate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Retirement benefit costs and employee benefits
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted after 7
November 2002 and had not vested on 1 January 2005
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
The Group operates equity settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees
and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the share options awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of share options expected to vest differs
from previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Share-based employee compensation (Continueqd)

Issue of convertible bonds as share-based payment
fransaction

If the identifiable consideration received by the
Company appears to be less than the fair value of the
convertible bonds issued, the Company measures
the unidentifiable services received (to be received) as
the difference between the fair value of the convertible
bonds issued and that of the identifiable consideration
received, and the difference is recognised in the profit
or loss immediately unless qualified for capitalization.

The debt component (i.e. the bondholder’s right to
demand payment in cash) of the convertible bond
will be accounted for as a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction while the equity component
(i.e. the bondholder’s right to demand settlement in
the Company’s shares) of the convertible bond will
be accounted for as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction. The entity first measures the fair
value of the debt component, and then measure the fair
value of the equity component by taking into account
that the bondholder must forfeit the right to receive cash
in order to receive the equity instrument. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the debt component of the convertible
bond is stated at fair value, with changes recorded in
the income statement under gain/(loss), net. The equity
component is not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition.

Share/Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the
fair value of the goods or services received, except
where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in
which case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses (unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets).
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE - &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Taxation (Continueq)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Taxation (Continueq)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, hotel properties and film studio, are stated
at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment (Continuea)
Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or
“land lease prepayments” (before application of HKFRS
16) in the consolidated statement of financial position
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Over the lease term
Over the shorter of the
lease term or 31/3%
Over the shorter of the
lease term or 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office  20%
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 20%

Leasehold land
Buildings

Leasehold improvements

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continueq)

Property, plant and equijpment measured using revaluation
moade/

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation
of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
profits.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty
that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. HEFHEHEUR @)

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. HEFHIER @)

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (Continueq)

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Film products

Film products are completed films produced by the
Group. Film products, are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
loss. Amortisation of film products is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal useful lives are one to three years.

Film production in progress

Film production in progress is stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Costs include all direct costs
associated with the production of films such as direct
labour costs, cost of services, facilities and raw
materials consumed in the creation of a film. Upon
completion, these films under production are reclassified
as film products. Film production in progress is
accounted for on a film-by-film basis. Impairment losses
are made for costs which are in excess of the expected
future revenue generated by these films.

Investments in films/dramas production

Investments in film/drama production are stated initially
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the net income
derived from the investments less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate
portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses, are
determined by the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in OCI if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continuea)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continueq)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continuea)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses and measures loss allowance
for ECL on its financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits, amount due from a
joint venture. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In
particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

The Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

3.

HEFEHBUR 2

SRMIEE)

THEE (&)

TREERE ()

(v)

W BOR

ERMBREFTRNEEMRREER
Yo m AT RERY - PlIN S F 05 BB R E
AWERFE AR ERESHANE
RRACBHMER AREBHEER
) AEEIMESREE -KEE
FERBERE(HAE) EMENERE
= ] e R IR AN 52 B R (A2 Fr o 17 98 1
HIT/RE) - MUHBAR LIEREIR - (F
] A& Yy I FE R aR SR

BEHEEER A ERER

EHEEBEZFERROME 2L
B8 (B2 M B E A/ M2 K98 E R
WO Z KB - BOBMERRENBERZF
BT ERE 2 BURIZATIE L ERHERE -
TEHME B BB R TA (G T IR 5 K a0 7
HERE - UEERLEONRERSEE
FEE o

—kmE RRCEEBERARESORE
NAKEZAAERNREERERNEH
EHMImz AR ERE 2 MM Z5 (%
VAR EE 2 A A ERER) -



Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the past due
ageing analysis basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivables and amounts due
from customers are each assessed as a
separate group. Loans to related parties
are assessed for expected credit losses on
an individual basis);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continuea)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, bank overdrafts, loan from
shareholders, bonds, promissory note and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on conversion
and the value of the consideration that would be
received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a
liability component and an equity component.

Convertible bond issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability (together with the early redemption
option which is closely related to the host liability
component) and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective liability and equity
components on initial recognition in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is classified as an equity instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continuea)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components
(Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible debts (with early
redemption option). The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the
fair value assigned to the liability component is allocated
to the conversion option that meets the definition
of an equity instrument, and is included in equity as
convertible bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised or expired.

When the option is exercised, the convertible bonds
equity reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible bonds equity reserve will be released to
the retained earnings/accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continuea)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such
exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or
fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

U]

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

@
(b)
(©

has controls or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

@

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any number of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
presents of the Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (Continueq)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influence by, that person in their dealing with the
entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use. Bank overdrafts are shown in
current liabilities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised if the revisions affect only that period, or in the
period of the revisions and future periods if the revisions
affect both current and future periods.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on last due aging as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in note 6(b)
respectively.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account their estimated residual value.
The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment.
If the expectation differs from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the depreciation and
the amortisation charge in the period in which such
estimate is changed.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continueq)

Estimated impairment loss on film products and film
proauction in progress

Management regularly reviews the recoverability
of the Group’s film products and film production
in progress with reference to its estimated future
revenue less the relevant costs, its intended future
use and current market environment. Impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. In determining whether
impairment on film products and film production in
progress is required, the Group takes into consideration
the present value of future cash flows expected to be
received.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

4, FREGEHE &G EE
IR (&)
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WEFRBERERGEEaNEBEHEEER
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AEEEFE-ANEETLNAERAREY
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S.

—hE+ZA=+—RLFE

Y /g
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. &AE FEE P
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEEETEAEARANBRASEETEERE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern WISEILE RARERBLELEBERTE
while maximising the return to stakeholders through LAER AT REIR = AR R [ 3 o 2N 58 (B A B B SR R
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The BB -NFRENE -
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2019.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt REENEREERFES (DERENES R
(which includes trade payables, other payables and 18 - Hith R RIE R ERT B R « RITHEZ -~ IR
accruals, bank overdrafts, loans from shareholders, EHER EE mEMEAE - &5 &%
borrowings, finance lease obligation, bonds, promissory i ?Dﬁéiﬁﬁ RReFEER) RARRQAE
note net of cash and cash equivalents) and equity BAEGER (BECEITRA L) B -
attributable to owners of the Company (comprising
issued share capital and reserves).
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed AREREI A HNE e IR A & AR o
capital requirements.
Gearing ratio EXEELE
The Directors review the capital structure regularly. %%Eﬁéﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂi wEHE o EREMN—F 5
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost EEGEEERNKNA R EZEEAREREE
of capital and the risks associated with each class of e REBEEFENERE AEESEBIMNRE
capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors, IR0 B 1T R AR 1 [B1 B8 LA K B2 1T %ﬂfi‘%i@]
the Group will balance its overall capital structure HERBENGERE -
through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buybacks as well as the issue of new debt.
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was RBEMRNERGELETWT -
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FAT
Total debts 1R (ET 2,353,983 2,051,835
Total assets BEE 2,025,151 2,358,431
Gearing ratio ERBELE 116% 87%
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. & TH
(@) Categories of financial instruments @ ¢RMIESE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FET

Financial assets SREE
Long-term receivables £ BA e Wk IE 116,265 64,876
Pledged bank deposits BRI IT IR 2,229 2,278
Trade receivables FEWE 5 518 75,184 128,177
Deposits and other receivables e R H A EUWGRIA 34,752 32,463
Amount due from a joint venture EW—EaEDERE 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITES 3,667 13,474
Financial assets at amortised cost LEHENAY R e REE 234,511 243,684

Financial liabilities THEE

Amortised cost BB
Trade payables FERE 53R 36,072 19,979
Other payables and accruals H e )8 R ERT B A 196,909 83,578
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 5,778 -
Loans from shareholders RERBE R 589,457 601,031
Borrowings BE 227,040 193,059
Bonds EH 1,153,283 1,023,319
Promissory notes B 115,197 106,477
Finance lease obligation L& EARIE - 24,199
2,323,736 2,051,642
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial
risks which result from its operating, investing and
financing activities. The Group’s major financial
instruments include long-term receivables,
pledged bank deposits, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amount due
from a joint venture cash and bank balances,
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
bank overdrafts, loans from shareholders,
borrowings, bonds, and promissory note. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies applied
by the Group to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The Directors manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of
the Group’s exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

Market risks
Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Certain trade receivables and payables of the
Group are denominated in either RMB or United
States Dollars (‘US$”). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy as
the Directors considered that the volatility of the
exchange rates between HK$, RMB and US$
is limited. However, the Directors monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

—hE+ZA=+—RLFE

6. &k TH #)

b) HERREEREHEIEK
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JEWE S 58 « ke R E M EIGRIE
ﬁguﬂl/\%—fﬂ:\i LIE - We RIRITHEH
JERE SR8 - M ERRIEREE
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PIeEHidR - TXHEHIEZSEEHTIES
A R B K AN & B P A % TEEEA%HKME’]
K -EEERNEEZERR - AE
R K& B BB Rt BB H‘?EE@

ﬁﬁ @ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]%@lﬂﬂ A*E#Uj%:@

A
MHEEERR

HHEER ?aimﬂiﬂﬁ’]@ﬁ@ﬂzﬂixfﬁ
@//ILE-EK """"" Ef}ﬁﬁﬁjiﬁﬁﬁbﬁﬁﬂ
AEEETHER T}?ﬁ*ﬁ‘LMI\ﬁ%aﬂEE’J
B8 R IR - B AR S B AAEINE R
o AEEETRKEZRERENE
SHFBTIANREERZET ([ET])FHE -
HREZRR/BIT  ARBESET ZH
B BE ZORIE AR - BN 5 [H 3R B 3 A A
WHPKE - AT EFGFEEIMNER
R WERBETEREZBE T EAIME
[



Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Market risks (Continueqd)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The interest rates and terms of repayment
of the loans from shareholders, borrowings,
bonds, convertible bond and promissory notes
which are subject to fixed interest rates are
disclosed in Notes 30, 31, 32, 33, 34 and 36
respectively. The Group currently does not have
any interest rate hedging policy, however, the
Directors monitor interest rate change exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
change exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of each of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting periods
were outstanding for the whole of each of the
reporting periods. A 50 basis points increase
or decrease in the market rates is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2019 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$11,000 (2018: approximately
HK$47,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to variable interest rates on
bank balances and bank overdrafts.

Other price risk

As the Group has no significant investments in
financial instruments at fair values, the Group is
not exposed to significant price risk.

6. &k TH #)

(b)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credlit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. To minimise the credit risk, management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting
any new customer, the Group uses an internal
credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed twice a year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

6. &k TH #)

(b)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Bank balances

Majority of the Group’s bank balances are
deposited with banks in Hong Kong and the PRC
and the Group has limited the exposure to any
single financial institution. The credit risk on liquid
funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with good credit-rating.

Credit risk is concentrated as 17% (2018: 40%)
of the total trade receivables are due from the
Group’s largest customer within film studio
operation segment (2018: film studio operation
segment). However, the management of the
Group closely monitors the progress of collecting
the payments from the customers and reviews
the overdue balances regularly. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

6. &k TH #)

(b)

BHEREZERENR (£)
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(Continued)

(b)

—hE+ZA=+—RLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. M TH &)
Financial risk management objectives and b) HERBREEACHEBE (£)
policies (Continueq)
Impairment of trade receivables JEWRE B E
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the REBEEZT-NF+ZA=+—HLF
Group provided HK$88,806,000 (2018: reversal E -ARERBEREHBNERESHK
of HK$297,000) impairment allowance for trade T8 - 514288,806,0008 T (— & — )\ 4F :
receivables with significant balances. # 151 297,000 7 7T) B R B B -
The following table shows the movement in TR AREWE 558 - BBEGE -
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade ERNFEREREEBRENE
receivables under the simplified approach.
Lifetime ECL
17 45 AR 78 Bf
FEEEE
HK$'000
FAET
As at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 RZB—+F+_H=+—
BiEEE® ﬁ/‘%ﬁlJéﬁ-sg{ﬁE -
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 FERB B BHREERFEIFEARE 7,673
As at 1 January 2018 — As restated RZFE—-—N\F—H—H-KF5| 7,673
Impairment losses reversed BB EE 1B (297)
Exchange adjustments b H AR (394)
As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R_Z—N\F+_A=+—HBEK
—E-NAF—H—H 6,982
Impairment loss provided (1 R 88,806
As at 31 December 2019 —hWE+ZA=+—H 95,788
Liquidlity risk management KEEL AR EHE
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will RBE  E R /*/F)i$ﬁ SE&N % A
not be able to meet its obligations associated %@ﬂﬁi]ﬁf’ﬁﬁ’},ffﬁ’}ﬂ o BRI
B R E ﬁ%ﬁ@&ﬁ

with its financial liabilities. In the management of
liquidity risk, the Directors monitor and maintain
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate to finance the Group’s operations and
to meet its debt obligations as they fall due. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
mainly by the funds obtained from the issuance of
equity instruments.

At the reporting date, the maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments and the earliest date in
which the entity can be required to pay were set
out below.

T+HEEA E@EMRﬁ%@%E%Tﬁﬁ
& MRNMEBEIHRET B EENKF -
AEBT2UBITRATAMES B
BHEBESTFR -

RB|ER  AEESRABZAKARE
BNRRERRE AW ERMN RN A B
D WBIMIBERBIN T -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liguidity risk management (Continuea)
Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from market interest rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period.

Weighted
average
interest rate

i
FHHE

At 31 December 2019 RZE-RE
TZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial ~ £ SREE

liabilities

%

Trade and other payables ~ JENE 5708 R E M Ef

and accruals FENRETER -
Bank overdaft BIEX =
Loans from shareholders ~~ [RREVE 9.40
Borrowings [ 10.32
Bonds &% 1286
Promissory note LS 8
Lease liabilty HERE 8

6. &k TH #)

On demand
or within

1 year
—ER®
HK$000
T

(b)

BEERBREERREREK (&)

HERTEBEE (F)
RBEER
TRFIAEEETESHABORS

BHFEH - ZERBDBABRRRER
ERAEE &P A ERNHA B Hm

Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER

TREFNERAESHSRE - WFH
BEME  AURSBEDEAREHR
BRANTSNXAERSL -

More than
1 year but
less than

5 years
HR-F
BHREE
HK$'000
TR

Total

More than undiscounted

5years

SREE

cash flows
KBRS
RELH

HK$'000
TER

HK$'000
TR

Carrying
amounts

K&
HK$'000
THER

233,465 - - 233,465 233,465
5,778 - - 5,778 5,778
617,088 - - 617,088 580,457
239,834 10,645 - 250479 227,040
938,365 355,575 105345 1489785 1,153,283
115,197 - - 115,197 115,197
11,802 51,313 128,505 191,620 29,763
2,162,029 417,533 323850 2903412 2,353,983
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liguiaity risk management (Continuea)

6. &k TH #)

(b)

BHEREZERENR (£)

RYETREEE ()

Liquidity tables (Continuec) nBELK(E)
More than
Weighted ~ On demand 1 year but Total
average or within less than Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5years 5 years cash flows amounts
it BERH HR-E AERBRE
TaNE —Ef  BIRLE SREE REER KM
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TEL TEL TER
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N§
t=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial T4 RAME
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ JENE 5708 R E M Ef
and acoruals FENRETER - 103,557 - - 103,557 103,557
Loans from shareholders REMER 9.58% 4,09 680,875 - 684,965 601,031
Borrowings g 9.64% 153,204 58,462 - 211,666 193,059
Bonds &% 6.97% 687,084 114,322 349867 1151273 1,028319
Promissory note RLERE 10.19% - 123,148 - 123,148 106,477
Finance lease obligation BEREAE 11.40% 11,595 7,632 48,988 68,215 24,199
959,530 984,439 398,855 2,342,824 2,051,642
Fair value measurements ) AREFE

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolicated statement of financial position

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
did not have any assets and liabilities that were
measured at the above fair value measurements

hierarchy.

During the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and

no transfers into or out of Level 3.

REENBRRXARRZ AL EqE

RBEHR AEBYEINEENE
B EAAREFESHEE -

L EZE-NFRZTE-NF+=A
= t+—HLEFE FHEAFE-_H M
WEARBEFEZER  NEEETR
HEEHE=g -
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7.

REVENUE

Revenue and other income and other losses derived
from the Group’s principal activities recognised during

the year is as follows:

7. BA

Revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of
HKFRS 15, disaggregated by
major products or services lines:
Artiste management fee income
Hotel room income
Food and beverage income
Entrance fee income
Events income
Sales of travel related products
Sales of goods
Ancillary services
Consultation income

Interest revenue that reflects significant
financing granted to customers
Rental income

Timing of revenue recognition:
At a point of time
Over time

ERMBREERFE155
HEEANFFEOHRE
BREIRERIRBRED

BATEBRA
B 5 B A
BEHRBA
1L UN
EEILION

& IR R B A o
EmiHE

B E 7%

AU A

RrAEPETERBEN
B WA
HE WA

W R
i — flE] B [ B
R — B
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R A R B M R A
WA R E AR EEI T -

2019 2018
—E2-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
34 344
13,743 13,432
24,620 26,365
11,571 54,011
64,172 411
5,255 1,121
2,662 1,865
12,675 16,248
1,187 1,553
135,919 115,350
4,608 3,421
41,566 35,066
182,092 153,837
51,858 83,362
84,061 31,988
135,919 115,350
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7. WA (&)
AREFAHNE

7. REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

For the year ended 31 December 2019
E-E-AFET+ZA=t—HLEE

Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,

artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
Segments coordination operation operation
EXHER
o8 HERE
HRER B8
EEREEGA FRHEE B IEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FTERT TER
Types of goods or service ERRREER
Artiste management fee income ~ EEETIEEUIA 34 - -
Hotel room income B 5 B U - - 13,743
Food and beverage income E-3 74 ON - - 24,620
Entrance fee income ANZEWA - 11,571 -
Events income TEBNUA - 64,172 -
Sales of travel related products HEREHEBER 5,255 = =
Sales of goods HEER - 2,662 =
Ancillary services feE RS - 10,212 2,463
Consultation income S ON - 1,187 -
5,289 89,804 40,826
Geographical markets B TS
PRC H - 89,804 40,826
Hong Kong B 5,289 - -
5,289 89,804 40,826
Timing of revenue recognition {35 78 52 HO B RS
At a point in time P — (AR B8 5,255 21,783 24,620
Over time R — B 34 67,821 16,206
5,289 89,804 40,826
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7. WA

AHFEFENNRE (£

7. REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (Continueq)
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_Z— \G+_A=+—BLEE
Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
Segments coordination operation operation
BYRIER
i HEIRE
EHER 88
7 &P B2 REE M FRPEE BIEEE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET FET
Types of goods or service Em= RS
Artiste management fee income BEZEBIRA 344 - -
Hotel room income o JE B A - - 13,432
Food and beverage income EHUA - - 26,365
Entrance fee income NSEIRA - 54,011 -
Events income IEEILON - 411 -
Sales of travel related products HEREREBER 1,121 - -
Sales of goods HEED - 1,865 -
Ancillary services e E R - 14,490 1,758
Consultation income LN - 1,553 -
1,465 72,330 41,5655
Geographical markets B TS
PRC H - 72,330 41,555
Hong Kong BB 1,465 - -
1,465 72,330 41,5655
Timing of revenue recognition s %5 HE SR B g
At a point in time 1 — 1 B ) B 1,121 55,876 26,365
Over time R — B 344 16,454 15,190
1,465 72,330 41,5655
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7.

REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (Continueq)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in
the segment information.

Segments

Reportable segment revenue 3% 5 Sk
Inter-segment revenue 7 SR s
Interest revenue that reflects REMETFEFPHERME
significant financing granted SOEIRSRIE
to customers
Rental income HEWA
Revenue from contracts EEEHRE

with customers

7. WA (&)
AREFAHRR (H)

TXIHEFPANKRAESHBERKENE
BOHE -

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NFE+=-A=t—HLEE
Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,

artiste
management

and event Film studio Hotel

coordination operation operation
EREER
28 - SHE HRiE
HHER B8

EEREB R FRpEE BEEE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TET TET TERT

5,289 89,804 41,285

= = (459)

- 4,608 -

- 41,566 -

5,289 135,978 40,826
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7. REVENUE (continued) 7. WA (&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with PREFENNE ()
customers (Continueq)
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_Z— \G+_A=+—BLEE
Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
Segments coordination operation operation
BYRIER
i HEREE
EHER 88
7 #B BRI TR EE BIEEE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue AR E 2 Bk 1,465 110,836 42,261
Inter-segment revenue 5 BB M as - (19) (706)
Interest revenue that reflects RUMETFEPHENME
significant financing granted B F B =
to customers - (3,421) -
Rental income Ha WA - (35,066) -
Revenue from contracts EEEHNWE
with customers 1,465 72,330 41,555

Disaggregation of revenue from contract with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and by
geographic markets. Also, as described in note 2, the
Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time for the
current year and decided not to restate the comparative
figure for the comparative period based on the specific
transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 15.

N s R Rt RmSE N ETFP AN
WEsBRAR - B - B 2pt - AL EE
RAFERERBEM GRS EAE155
WARBE BB REERF 165K E
BIEGEX O RETBEIN L EEES '
g -
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8. OTHER INCOME AND 8. Mg A K H i i 18
OTHER LOSSES
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Other income Hi A
Bank interest income RITFBULA 29 16
Other interest income E b F B UA 6,148 2,278
Others HAith 8,481 2,983
14,658 5,277
2019 2018
—z-ne L ENES
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other losses Hihgie
Impairment losses of investments BYHERERE Y

in films/dramas production BIEEE 986 -
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9.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF

9. <&k E T A s 1R

FINANCIAL ASSETS
2019 2018
—E-hF —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Impairment loss of financial assets &£ @EERESIE
Impairment loss (recognised)/ MU TRE(BHER) /#E
reversed on: BIEEE
— trade receivables —EWE 58 (88,806) 297
— other receivables — H A 8 W RIE (45,690) (7,792)
(134,496) (7,495)

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the Group is currently
organised into three operating segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Films production and - Production and distribution

10. 7 & & B

AEBZEBRERBEER - WA ERD
ERXAFHEENALAEERESETRE R
AB(BIEZEERRE ([TERERRE)
ETABEHNREN—BAIRA > AEERD
PR =B E D AR - AL B B E DA
VAR T 51/ AT 280 8

distribution, sales
of travel related
products, artiste
management and
event coordination

Film studio operation
Hotel operation

of films, sales of travel
related products, provision
of travel related products,
provision of management
services to artistes and
event coordination

— Operation of film studio
— Operation of hotel

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segments is presented below.

EYRUENET - —RERETEY  RBH
5 & I 2 AE R IRERBER  REA
Em - BAE REERRE BB
BRIRBSE %

EZR —REZEW

BERE —REBEE

ERAEEAZHRD O BERZ27/0T
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. #ERE B (2)
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results PHBRAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and LWTAEAERD IS AEFRRAKE
results by reportable segments: BEOH

Film production

and distribution,

sales of travel

related products,

artiste

management
and event Film studio Hotel Inter-segment

coordination operation operation elimination
EYHER
BT #ERE
REER EA
EEREDGE Fhnge BEEE PEHEES k]
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TiEx TER TiEn iR TiEn

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZF-N &

TZBZt-ALFE
Revenue from external customers — RESMEZPAIMA 5,289 135,978 40,826 - 182,093
Inter-segment revenue AHRRA - - 459 (459) -
Reportable segment revenue EEE G ON 5,289 135,978 41,285 (459) 182,093
Segment result PEEE (26,245) (125,781) (47,664) - (199,690)
Other income EBA 14,658
Loss on exchange difference ERZEFE (17,791)
Unallocated corporate expenses <A BARIRR (20,933)
Provision for restructuring cost ERMARE (43,776)
Finance costs BERA (244,425)

Loss before income tax REEHRAER (511,957)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Film production

—hE+ZA=+—RLFE

10. 7 i & ¥t (7

PBRAREE (&)

Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER

and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel Inter-segment
coordination operation operation glimination Total
EYRER
B ?ﬁgﬁﬁiﬁ
HBER ZA
ERLEDSE FRNEE i RlEbiRs B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TERT TATL TAR TAT
Year ended 31 December 2018 ~ BZ-F-\fE
TZAZt-ALEE
Revenue from external customers — RESNREPEHMA 1465 110817 41,555 - 153,837
Inter-segment revenue AHEBA - 19 706 (725) -
Reportable segment revenue DES:GE 0N 1465 110,836 42,261 (725) 153,837
Segment result PEEE (14,597) 1754 (51,645) - (64,488)
Other income EflA 5,217
Loss on exchange difference ERZEER (42712
Unallocated corporate expenses <A BARIRR (14,832)
Finance costs BERA (227,330)
Impairment loss on land lease THAEHESR (71,473)

Loss before income tax

R RATER

(415,658)
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(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers and inter-segment sales during
both years.

Segment (loss)/profit represents the loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including directors’ salaries,
loss on capitalisation of loan interest payables, loss
on capitalisation of other payables, gain on fair value
changes of investment properties, loss on fair value
changes of convertible bond, waiver of interest of
convertible bond, net losses on early redemption of
convertible bonds, other income, finance costs and
income tax expense. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

10. s+ # & L (2

PBRARKE (&)

EREBOBWAEMBEFEARBIATS
HUA R D BRI E -

DE () RIS H A E LR EIE
P EDEEFRITEAA(BREEHE &
AEENERMEEE  EACEMEMNK
HER REVMEAALEESH WS  ATHERK
BEFAREZPER  RRTBRBRESHE
REENTRRES ZEEFRE - HHURA -
BERARAEBAZ) - IHRDEEERKR
AESMERREMAETREEREERS O
Bk

oy Bk



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & &1 % & 3k Ki 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

At 31 December 2019

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents
Unallocated corporation assets

Consolidated assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Loans from shareholder
Borrowings

Bond

Promissory notes

Deferred tax liabilities

Provision for income tax
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

R=B-h%
tZA=t-H
2RI BEE

nE  MERkR
RBeRkBReEEN
APBRRREE

TEHIBEE

R ER
&

&5

FAER
EXHEAE
FrEmaR
AOBMAREE

Geaf

Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management
and event
coordination
EXHER
BT HEMRE
HRER BA
EERETEHGE
HK$’000

TER

11,383

10. 7+ 5 & ¥ (2

THEERER

Film studio
operation

FRAELE
HK$'000
THET

1,188,066

Hotel
operation

BELE
HK$'000
THET

823,807

(10,937)

(135,858)

(31,897)

Annual Report 2019
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BEH
HK$’000
THET

2,023,256

14
273
1,608

2,025,151

(178,692)

(589,457)
(227,040)
(1,153,283)
(115,197)
(99,500)
(2,951)

(90,314)

(2,456,434)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 2 &R & B} (47

(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREE (&)
Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
EXHEER
17 HEIRE
HHEER ZA
EEREHGE FRBLE BEGE BeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT THT THT
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E
+=A=+-H
Reportable segment assets T2HIHEE 14,337 1,444,421 868,964 2,327,722
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% ~ BB &% 15
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBeEED 9,273
Unallocated corporation assets AN B A A EE 21,421
Consolidated assets GEBE 2,358,431
Reportable segment liabilities 7 27 & & (5,100) (69,793) (23,192) (98,085)
Loans from shareholder RERER (601,031)
Borrowings BE (193,059)
Bond &% (1,023,319)
Promissory notes AR (106,477)
Deferred tax liabilities ERFHIBEERE (158,470)
Provision for income tax FEREE (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabiities A B A8l B E (29,864)
Consolidated liabilities REEE (2,213,256)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. B EB&E B (2
(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREE (&)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance BERSHERREADERAEER
and allocating resources between segments:
- all assets are allocated to reportable segments — BRREBEIN FBEEEIEZESM
other than corporate assets; and 2% E &
- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments - BlAFRaEN FEABEEIEESA
other than corporate liabilities. 23 -
Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
E¥RER
BT HERE
HEER A
EEREDGE TR BIERE BEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT THT THT
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE
+=ZA=+-H
Depreciation of property, ¥ BERRETE
plant and equipment 1,391 32,001 30,190 63,582
Depreciation of right-of-use FRREENE
assets 2,105 11,577 2,245 15,927
Amortisation of film products BEYEMEH 1,210 - - 1,210
Addition to non-current assets i ENE E N 192 36,066 212 36,470
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\F
+TZRA=+-H
Depreciation of property, NE - BERRENE
plant and equipment 1,665 31,145 30,509 63,209
Depreciation of land lease TiHEBRARITE
prepayments - 11,512 2,245 13,757
Amortisation of flm products EYEMEH 1,224 - - 1,224
Addition to non-current assets  JEFRENE E RN 63 63,025 356 63,444
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 7 W E R (2)
(Continued)
Geographical information wEER
All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are AEBMBRARERBEEHNETEZREF
principally attributable to the PRC including Hong Kong FEAREME((HED (BEEE) (AIEAEE
(being the place of domicile of the major companies ETEZRRIFAERHE) o

comprising the Group).

The geographical location of customers is based on ERMEERDERARFERREITELD
the location at which the contracts are negotiated and M EME - REIINFEFPHERAEEZR
entered with the customers. The total revenue from BHE -

external customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

Information about major customers EBRIEEFHER
Revenue from customer contributing over 10% of the REMAREBBIAEBI0% K E P BB A
total revenue of the Group is as follows: U
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Customer A EPA N/A 718 F2 52,370'
Customer B =FB 29,613! N/A 7~ F32
1 Revenue from film studio operation. ! AR EHUA -
2 The customer did not contribute over 10% or more to 2 ZEPRZFETEGAEEBBABE

the Group’s total revenue in the year. 10% 3 A E ©
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11. FINANCE COSTS 11. & A

2019 2018
—2-NF AL
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT TAT

Interest on lease liability/finance lease HEAE WMERERENS

obligation 2,287 1,839
Interest on bank overdrafts IRITEZF B - 46
Interest on bonds BEHFLE 144,797 139,023
Interest on promissory note L BB FE 8,720 10,348
Interest on loans from shareholders RERE R FE 58,245 53,309

Interest on unsecured other borrowings £ b £ 1K 3R {E£ B F| & 12,578 8,493
Interest on secured other borrowings BEMIBEFEEF S 16,441 13,775
Interest on secured bank borrowings BIRBRITEERNE 1,357 497
244,425 227,330
Note: If the Company’s financial restructuring is completed, M WARAPBEATKE  BHFME  EH

interest on bond, interests on promissory note, loans
from shareholders and interest on unsecured other
borrowings shall be calculated up to 14 June 2019.

Therefore, should all conditions precedent of the
creditors’ scheme in relation to the Company'’s financial
restructuring are satisfied, the interest expenses
of approximately HK$95,205,000 included in the
interest in bonds, interests on promissory note, loans
from shareholders and interest on unsecured other
borrowings from 15 June 2019 to 31 December 2019
which have been provided for in accordance to the
relevant accounting standard will be reversed.

REMNES  BRRERFEREMEERESR
MEtBEBEEZ T - NERATHHFE -

Hitt - HEAR R K EAEHEREREAG
SR GEHEEERE  AIZT—NFX
A+RBE=ZZT—hAF+ZA=+—HFA
BEHEFE AL ZENE - BREEXMNE R
H b K 1R 18 B /Y ] B /9 49 95,205,000 7% 7T
WM EREZERIBAAE e TR
W EE -
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12. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 12. B B 13 B wil s 48

2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#& T T
Loss before income tax is arrived METISE R EIBE K
at after charging/(crediting): Gt A) TAI&EIE
Auditors’ remuneration ZHEN N < 1,000 850
Amortisation of film products BRE m 1,210 1,224
Amortisation of land lease prepayments B/~ + i 71 & # £ - 13,757
Costs of inventories recognised as ERARIWIFEKRAR
expenses 545 443
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREHEBITE
equipment 63,582 63,247
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHRESENE 15,927 -
Equity settled share-based-payments BTERZ ARESEENRG
granted to consultants (included in A (GEAE AR AR AS)
provision for restructuring cost) 21,695 -
Net exchange losses [ E518 )5 58 17,791 42,712
Minimum lease payments under RIBLEHEHEYED
operating leases in respect of HEBEEMR
rented premises - 11,249
Expenses related to short-term lease RHHEREEEHERY
and low value lease 1,975 -
Employee benefit expenses EEREABEX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BREFH)
— Salaries, allowances and benefits —F® R REYEF
in kind 47,190 40,545
— Contributions to retirement —iRREFIFT IR
benefits schemes 10,830 11,084
58,020 51,629
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. B B bA 32

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there
were no assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for both years.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has not been
provided as the PRC subsidiaries have available tax
losses brought forward from previous years to offset the
assessable profits generated during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has not been
provided as the PRC subsidiaries incurred losses for
taxation purposes for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

RMEFREA - BAEFGHGRAET ERD
i AIA16.6% 5T E - MM EFE A HEAE
ERELREREAERTEN - AL EH
FAEMEBEL S -

MATENBRARAREEBABEFEZN
AREBELNENBEE T - NLF+ A
ST -RUEFEELEZERBGN - B &
PR B PTE R (B R /5 26%) 1F h & 5 -

HRFENEBERAREEZE_E—N\F+ -8
=+—BLHFEHEERBEE I &R
FEEER (FEE25%) (EH B E -

REAM DA R E A IR T IR RA#
A AR R E

AEEBRERITRGES B REMEEK
BROGRATBEASRMNT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T T
Loss before tax BT AT B (511,957) (415,558)
Tax at domestic income tax rate ERERAEHREEFTENTIE (96,779) (76,797)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT R B S2 B9 B A%
for tax purpose 82,086 77,774
Tax effect of income not taxable AR B A B R
for tax purpose (4) )
Utilisation of tax losses previously A LRI AR ERN IR IEEE
not recognised (7,343) (13,531)
Tax effect of unrecognised estimated RNERMEET BB EELN
tax losses Mg e 22,040 12,556
Income tax expense for the year RERZPETRX = —




240

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
BEREXLEMBERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

13.

14.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. i3 BE B X (&)
(Continued)
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive REMZERABRNHREHR
income
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FAL
Deferred tax ELEBE
Arising on expense recognised in EEXEBREMEERARERR
other comprehensive income: Fx :
Revaluation of properties held for EHFBEBRAYME
own use (58,970) (7,159)

Total income tax credit recognised in READ 2 EIRATERK TS
other comprehensive income BRI R (58,970) (7,159)

LOSS PER SHARE 14. % &8

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on FRN - BREKNEBIIVBREBEARRNBEES AR
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company of 1HE51E 49511,957,0008 7T (ZE—N\F : 4
approximately HK$511,957,000 (2018: approximately 415,556,000/ 7T) & B 31T H) % E AR A 0 #E
HK$415,556,000) and the weighted average of 39 #494,861,926,000% (ZF — /)\F : 4
approximately 4,861,926,000 (2018: approximately 4,517,071,000 J%) 5+ & o B8 IS 48 I AT #2 B% (&
4,517,071,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year. ST EEAERBEEE FIt HE2_-F
Diluted loss per share for loss attributable to the owners —NER - N\F+_A=+—HIEFE
of the Company for the years ended 31 December RNANGIEEANELEENSRESEEIEEST
2019 and 2018 was the same as basic loss per share AR E AR EEAR o

because the impact of the exercise of the share options
and convertible bonds are anti-dilutive.
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15. EF L RBREHANBHH

15. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine
(2018: twelve) Directors and the chief executive were as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Executive Directors: BITES:

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam GENEE(RZE-NE
(Appointed on 14 May 2019) RETMBEEZA)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng BRELE

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun G S:

Mr. Ho Leung Ting RELE

Non-executive Directors: FHUTES:

Dr. Lam Lee G. HFERT

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES

Directors:

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert EHCEE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick ~ EERHR (R-E-1%
(Resigned on 1 January 2019)  —A—HE{T)

Mr. LiKit Chee FREIEE

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, Wilred HEETERZE-NE
(Appointed on 22 March 2019~ =B =+ - BEZ{)

Total emoluments aie

Fees

[k
HK$'000
TiEx

Annual Report 2019
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ENREMAE(CE-NF: +-R)ES
EEREBABRFHMOT

BE_Z-NF+A=t+-HLEFE

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

e RER
BUEHN
HK$'000
TR

Contributions
to retirement
benefits
schemes
BB

EE 53
HK$000
TR

Equity-settled
share option
expense
NERLE
BRERX
HK$'000
TR

Total
emoluments

ams
HK$'000
TER

- 2,274 12 - 2,286
- 1,560 18 - 1,678
- 780 18 - 798
- 574 18 - 592
100 - - - 100
- 0 - - 0
- 90 - - 20
- 8 - - 8
100 5,446 66 - 5,612

4
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15. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

15. EF L RBREHANBH W 2

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT— ) \F+-_A=+—HILEFE
Selaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement Equity-settled
and bengfits benefits share option Total
Fees in kind schemes expense emoluments
e 2R RIRER IEREE
ik ENER BE BERERY e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL T FEL T T
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. Chow Kai Weng BRELE - 1,220 18 - 1,238
Ms. Law Po Yee (Resigned EERRT(RZE-N\%
on 15 November 2018) +-A+EEET) - 888 17 - 905
Ms. Sin Ho Yee (Resigned ERERT(RZE-N%
on 15 November 2018 +-A+EEET) - 263 13 - 276
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun BohfikE (RZF-N\%
(Appointed on 4 May 2018) hANBEZAE) - 479 1 - 490
Mr. Ho Leung Ting (Appointed IR EL4E(RZE-N\F
on 15 November 2018) +-A+HEBEZT) - 80 3 - 83
Non-executive Directors: FUTES:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam FENEE(RZF-NF
(Resigned on 4 May 2018) hAMAET) - 913 8 - 921
Mr. Li Sin Hung, Maxim FHREEE(RZE-N\E
(Resigned on 5 January 2018)  — AR AET) - - - - -
Or. Lam Lee G. HEREEL 100 - - - 100
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor RAUEE(RZE-N\EF
(Resigned on 1 July 2018) t A—HEE) 30 - - - 30
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert ESCEE 60 - - - 60
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick ~ SHEEAR(R-Z-NF
(Resigned on 1 January 2019) ~ —A—HEHT) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Li Kit Chee ME2EE 60 - - - 60
Total emoluments &me 310 3,843 70 - 4,223
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15.

16.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Note: Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and Mr. Chow Kai Weng were also
the chief executive of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed included those for services rendered by his
as the chief executive. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, four (2018: four) of them were Directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in Note 15 above. The emoluments of the
remaining individual for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 were as follows:

15. EF L RREHANBH M =

BEE : EBIM A R ARKEERFREARR AT
BEH MEERZHE R EIERITHE
BARHERBOME BE-_T-NAFR=
E-NFTR=FT—HIEFEIEEMFE
REENEXRAZREEAHESN L -

RBEEZZT-—NAFRZFTE-NF+=A
“t+—HLEE AEERERATANESES
HEMEE - ARSI HESENARNEELIES
MAREEZ S kB E -

16. 12 E %7 i

EAEETLRBHFMALS 0 (=2
—N\F OB RARTEE  BENFHE
BEXME 15 EE - REE-E—AFR
SE-NE+AS+—BILEE BT
£ATHHHDT

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit costs

RARAE F A

e hEAMER

2019 2018
—z-ns [ IUC
HK$000 HK$'000
TExT FET
2,100 775

8 —

2,108 775

Their emoluments were within nil to HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2018: nil).

1% = B 5 BN T = 2 1,000,000 7T ©

FR-AEEHENIEEaMeREE XM
LA SR E S INAR EBH AR Z RE K
BEBLEE (- N\F  |) o
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

17. W3 ~ W5 Bk e

EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land and Hotel  Leasehold office vehicles
buildings ~ properties improvements  equipment andyacht  Film studio Total
AELHE fil - %EBR
g% BENE HENEEE BOZRE  RERER E25 ] 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TiEn T T TiEn T TiEn TiEn
cosT A
Balance at 1 January 2018 RIZ-\F-A-RNER 11,741 786,409 4301 52,906 7192 047698 1810247
Addtions AE - - - 807 650 61987 63,444
Disposal & - - (1220 (69) (659 - (1848)
Surlus/(Defict on valuation ~ EEES/ (B4 - 8,090 - - - (89,677) (81,587)
Effect of forelgn currency NEEREBHFE
exchange differences (609) (30,262) 42) (2,504 88) (35,042) (68,547)
Balance at 31 December 2018 W=F-N5+-A=+-R
and 1 January 2019 k=E-15-5-A
e 1,132 764,237 3,039 51,140 719% 884,966 1,721,709
Addtions AE - - - 7,808 - 28,662 36,470
Disposal il - - - (449) - - (449)
Deficit on valuation BEF4 - (27,265) - - - (260,557) (287,822)
Effect of forelgn currency NEEREBHTE
exchange differences (287) (12,415) (16) 2,616 (34) (11,002 (21,088)
Balance at 31 December 2019 W=ZF-A%E+=A=+-A
s 10,895 724557 3,023 61,115 7,161 642,069 1,448,820
DEPRECIATION e
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-RUER 2479 - 3239 21,885 3436 - 31,039
Depreciation expense nERR 498 24,012 337 8322 1,140 28,038 63,247
Written back upon disposal HEREE - - (755) (30) (316) - (1,101)
Deficit on valuation [EEEL - (24012 - - - (28,938 (52,950}
Effect of foreign currency NEEREBHTE
exchange differences (146) - (35) (1,480) (49) - (1,716)
Balance at 31 December 2018 H=Z-NE+-F=1-A
and 1 January 2019 R=E-1§-B-A
HER 2831 - 2,786 28,691 : - 38519
Depreciation expense TERR 454 24,070 96 9,964 11 218713 63,582
Written back upon disposal HELRD - - - (367) - - (367)
Deficit on valuation hESk - (24,070) - - - (27,879 (51,949)
Effect of forelgn currency NEERZEMYE
exchange differences (69) - (13) (892) (24) - (999)
Balance at 31 December 2019 W=ZF-A%+=A=+-A
0 3,216 - 2,869 37,386 5,322 - 48,793
CARRYING AMOUNTS KEf
Balance at 31 December 2019 H=Z-AE+=F=1-F
g 7,679 724,557 154 23,129 1,839 642,069 1,400,027
Balanceat 31 Decemoer 2018 R=ZF-\F+-F=+-A
ifga) 8,301 764,237 253 22,449 2,984 884,966 1,683,190
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. %3 ~ Wl Bt (40

EQUIPMENT (Continuea)

Hotel properties were revaluated on 31 December
2019 and 2018 by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”)
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. RHL is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and have appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of properties in the relevant location. The revaluation
deficit of approximately HK$3,195,000 (2018: surplus
of approximately HK$32,102,000) net of applicable
deferred income taxes credit of approximately
HK$799,000 (2018: approximately HK$8,026,000) was
debited to properties revaluation reserve in the amount
of approximately HK$2,396,000 (2018: credited
to properties revaluation reserve of approximately
HK$24,076,000). If the hotel properties had not
been revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$453,713,000 (2018: approximately
HK$453,713,000) as at 31 December 2019.

Film Studio were revaluated on 31 December 2019
and 2018 by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. The revaluation deficit of
approximately HK$232,684,000 (2018: deficit of
approximately HK$60,739,000) net of applicable
deferred income taxes credit of approximately
HK$58,171,000 (2018: approximately HK$15,185,000)
was debited to properties revaluation reserve in
the amount of approximately HK$174,513,000
(2018: debited to properties revaluation reserve of
approximately HK$45,554,000). If the film studio had
not been revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$836,095,000 (2018: approximately
HK$818,434,000) as at 31 December 2019.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

BEVER-_ZE—NEFER_ZE—NF+=A
=+ —BA@EXMITHEBEMER R ([KH
1] —2EAEEEBRENBLAEARKSE
EAHER) BfE - XFITAEBNEMBER
B AFEESHKRABITHNIERE DE
T EEAEE - E 14 B 41493,195,000% 70 (=
T— \4F : B#4732,102,00058 7T) 15 i@
Y IR 3T AT 15 T #6249 799,00078 7T (Z & — N\
F : #8,026,000% 0) ER M EEHFHETP
M 492,396,000 7L (ZF — \F : R
B EEE T IN424,076,0008 7T) © f#E &
MEWEETERS AR _T-NLF+=
A=+—H&E A4 453,713,000 (=
T — J\4F : 49453,713,000/8 7T) 5t A4 4 Bf
MK ©

ERHAER _E-NEFR-_F-NFTHA
Tt AR ERNHEAERAT (—R
HAEEERENB IS EREEMERM) E
fih o B {65 41 49 232,684,000 7T (Z T — N\
F ¢ HAN#4960,739,000 7% JT) 1k iE A HY I IE
FriS K % 4958,171,0008 L (ZZ— N\ F :
#915,185,0007% 7T) B R Y1 E b & & 5%
#9174,513,0008 T (ZE—NF : RYES
s FEH P 404 49 45,554,000 7T) © i 5248
REg&EM B —_E—-hAE+-_A=+—
B /) FF % 5K 7K #7836,095,00078 7T (ZZE— N\
F 1 #9818,434,0008 70) st AR A B S K -

REES LMD AERS  NENSEREE
P AEREMR -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continuea)

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these hotel properties and film studio are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into

which the fair value measurements are categorised NI

(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the key
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

As at 31 December 2019:

17. W3 ~ W5 Bkt ()

TREHBEAZSAEDERZEBNORR
BfEE CCERMAMKERMEEZZEA
BB MER U AR
BEAETEGABBNHATEREEND BN
EER(F-—BREE=R) -

PAN | = 4 pge PAN
NABEASIEBARL

RZE—NF+=—A=+—8:

Fairvalue  Valuation techniques and Significant

Element hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs Range/Amount  Sensitivity

nE DAEER HERTRIZGABE EXTABERAYE gE/¢E HBE

Hotel Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs approach — Replacement costs of RMB650,000,000  The higher the costs

properties (based on current cost of replacement constructions hotel (2018: RMB663,000,000) of constructions, the

of the improvements, less allowance properties higher the fair values
for physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation)

EENE 2= WEEENAE (ERNERERS  BENEXBRANEE ARH6500000007c REKARE DAE
EENRA BREREALR-8HE KA (Z2-NE&: i)
oA MR E RE (et HIR) AR 663,000,0007T)

Fimstudio  Level 3 Income approach-discounted cashflow  Discount, rate 14.00%  The higher the discount

approach

TR E=0 WNE-ERRERE) R

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of film studio held under finance leases of
the Group was approximately HK$7,679,000 (2018:
approximately HK$8,302,000).

(2018: 14.00%)

14.00%
(ZZ—\F : 14.00%)

rate, the lower the fair
value

RFEHR AEEREMEHESENY
B2 EEFELY A7,679,0008 L (=
— J\#F : 498,302,00078 7T) °
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18. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 18. #ff L &
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#& T T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEERZDH
Non-current asset EREEE - 371,074
Upon the initial recognition of HKFRS 16 on 1 January RZZE—NF—A—BEXXERE BN R
2019, the balance was reclassified to right-of-use HEAF16HE  ERETOBETRES

19.

assets as detailed in note 20.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the
end of the reporting period are set out as follows:

E‘il BKiTE20 -
19. B} & 2 w] B 3

RRBRRBERARN T EMBERRFBENOT

Issued and fully

Forms of Place of paid share capital/
business incorporationor  registered capital/
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital
ERR IS BRARARRE/
WEADER ERERTA Rl ek g8ER
National Arts Entertainment Limited ~ Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
(‘NAEnt enainmem“) HK$1,500,000
BEREARAT FEal 1A By LER1,500,000ET
([E2HR4))
National Arts Entertainment Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares of
Holdings Limited US$192,308
BERERBERRA A ABERES £ER102085T
National Arts Production & Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HKS1
Promotions Limited
BERERERERLA FRalif A Eik LakiEn
National Arts Fims Production Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
Limited (‘NAFilm’) HK$1,500,000
SYRAERRDA FEal 1A £ LER1,500,000ET

(I%ﬁ e

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
AAAFBERTER
B /ERERLA

Principal activities

TERK

2019 2018
“E-nE ZF-0\%

100% 100%  Provision of management services to
(indiirect) (indirect) artistes in Hong Kong
100% 100% EEEMEARMERRR
(%) (%)
100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(direct) (dlrect)
100% 100% EEREMRASR
(E#) (E%)
100% 100%  Provision of promotional performance
(indirect) (indirect) services in Hong Kong
100% 100% EEEREEEELRE
(B8) (%)
100% 100%  Provision of distribution of fim in
(indiirect) (indirect) Hong Kong
100% 00% EEERERENEY
(%) (%)
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19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 19. W& 2 Wl B 3 (&)
(Continued)
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/ value of issued capital/
business incorporation or  registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
HRAULEE  BROREERA/ ARRMKERTER
HEAREE SRR EaiecH] HfER/ BEER B/ ERErLh IEXH
2019 2018
ZE-NE Zo)\E
Art Tour Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 100% 100%  Inactive
(direct) (dlrect)
BEERAR e a0 LBR10000%E T 100% 100% E%%
(E#) (E%)
Glory Max Group Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~~ Ordlinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(direct) (dlrect)
Glory Max Group Limited BRI REEDES LERIET 100% 100% EEREAREAER
(B%) (B%)
Head Return Limited (*HRL') Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
SRERAR(5R) it 0 LaR100ET 100% 100% EEBETRARR
(%) (F%)
Expand Pacific Limited (‘EPL) Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
ATERRARDA Faalif A Eik LRR100ET 100% 100% EEREMRASR
(TRTERE]) () (B%)
Foshanshi Huixing Jiudian Co., Ltd™  Wholly foreign owned PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Hotel operationin the PRC
enterprise 1S$45,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
("WFOE')
BUTEREEER LA NEEAGE  PE & 445,000,000% 7 100% 100% EPEFLEE
(%) (%)
Foshan Huishou Scenic Area WFOE PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Property development and operation of
Management Co., Ltd US$40,000,000 (indirect) (indirect) fim studio and theme park in the PRC
BUEERRERERAT MEEERE  PE & A40,000,000% 100% 100% EPEERNEZREZZEAR
() (B%)  +ERE
Foshanshi Yupinxuan Trading Domestic enterprise  PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Retaling of souvenirs in the PRC
Co., Lid* RMB100,000 (indiirect) (indlrect)
BUTHREEEERAA nEL% hE AR ARE100,0007C 100% 0% EPEZELRA
(&) (%)
Foshanshi Yufu Food & Beverage Domestic enterprise  PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Light refreshment restaurant in the PRC
Co, Ltd" RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTHRRAERAT nERLE hE &R AR 1000007 100% 100% RPEEEEREE
(%) (%)
Rainbow Dragon Corporation Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$150 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
EAERAT Faalif A Eik LRR150ET 100% 100% EEREMRASR
(%) (B%)
Wide Expand Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordlnary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
EEERAT FEa (74T Eik LiER100%ET 100% 00% EERETREASR

() (Bg)
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19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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(Continued)
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/ value of issued capital/
business incorporation or  registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
HRAULEE  BROREERA/ ARRMKERTER
HEAEZR ERERRA EaiecH] HfER/ BEER B/ ERErLh IEXH
2019 2018
=k —3-)\f
Broad Sky Investment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HKS20 100% 100%  Inective
(direct) (dlrect)
BREERRAA FEalif A Eik TiEko#T 100% 100% E2H
(E#) (B%)
National Arts Travel Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of travel related products in
HK$500,000 (indirect) (indirect) Hong Kong
BEREERAT FRali A Eik £iBIR500,000% 100% 0% EEEREEEREER
(B8) (FitE)
Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited ~ Incorporated Biitish Virgin Islands~ Orcinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(direct) (dlrect)
RBLEERAT B EBERES EAkIET 100% 100% EEBETRARK
(E#) (B%)
Flash Star Holdings Limited Incorporated British Virgin Isiands~ Orcinary shres of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(direct) (dlrect)
REERERAA e EBEREE LBk %R 100% 100% EEEETREER
(E#) (B%)
Weatth Day Enterprises Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~~ Ordlinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(direct) (dlrect)
ERREERAR FRalif A ARERES LER1En 100% 100% EERETREASR
(B%) (ER)
Lux Unicom Limited ("Lux Unicom”)  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
BHERAR (28] e 0 Lamki0Er 100% 100% EEBETRARK
(%) (%)
NA Sing Sing Entertainment Limited ~ Incorporated Hong Kong Ordlinary shares of 51% 51%  Provision of event cooraination services in
HK$500,000 (indirect) (indirect) Hong Kong
LEREERAT Faalif A 20 L3 17500,0007 T 51% 5% ERERMEDASRE
(E%) (F%)
Brilant Grand Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordlinary shares of USS$1 100% 100%  Inactive
(direct) (dlrect)
BEERAR Eidii s ERERER ERR1ET 100% 100% B2
(B%) (ER)
Bright Joyful Development Limited ~ Incorporated Biitish Virgin Isiands~ Orcinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Inective
(direct) (dlrect)
BRERERLT B EBERES EAkIET 100% 0% E£H
(E8) (B%)
Thousand Famous Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Inactive
(indirect) (indirect)
TEERAT Faalif A Eik LRR100ET 100% 100% B2

(B#%) (@)




250

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

HEREXEREERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

19. W& 2 w1 53 &)

(Continued)
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/ value of issued capital/
business incorporation or  registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
IMALES  CRARMRRA/ ARRMRERTER
WRAREE ERRREA e HhEs/BEER B /ERERLA IERE
2019 2018
=il T
Crystal Way Global Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordlinary shares of US$1 100% - Iactive
(direct)
ERRNERLT FRali A ARERES LER1En 100% - BE%E
(ER)
Luck Advance Ventures Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~~ Ordlinary shares of US$1 100% - Inactive
(direct)
SEERERAT FEai AT ABERES TER1ET 100% - E%E
(E#)
Success Converge Limited Incorporated British Virgin Isiands~ Orcinary shres of US$1 100% - Inactive
(direct)
REARLA FEalif A ZREREE LakiEn 100% - BXE
(E#)
Action Art Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HKS1 100% - Iactive
(indirect)
SERAT FRali A Eik LER1ET 100% - BE%E
(B8)
Skill United Culture Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HKS1 100% - Inactive
(indirect)
BBV ERAT FEai AT Bk Lak1ER 100% - E%E
(H#)
Broad Grace Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinry shares of HK$1 100% - Inactive
(indirect)
BEERAT FEalif A Eik TR 100% - BXE
()
Real Wind Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordlnary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Inactive
(indirect) (indirect)
BLERLT FRali A Eik LER100ET 100% 00% E£H
(B8) (%)
—BEERERH (R ARDE  WFOE PRC Regster capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
RMB500,000 (indirect) (indirect)
“BEEREZARINERAR  HNEEERR hE iy 100% 100% B2
AR%500,0007T (B#) (F&)
BUTERREERERAT Domestic enterprise  PRC Register capital of 90.01% 100%  Inactive
RMB,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTEZRRERERAA nEtL% hE &R 90.01% 100% B%%
ARH1,0000007 (E#) (%)
BUTEEESEEEEARAA  WROE PRC Register capital of - 100%  Inactive
1S$300,000 (indirect)
BUTEEEREEERERAR NEBELE i HRER3000005 T 20% 100% BEE

() (B%)
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19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 19. M} & 2 w513k )
(Continued)
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/ value of issued capital/
business incorporationor  registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
HhALEE  BRARARKA/ ARARBERTER
WEBLARZR ERRRKR R HhEs/BEER HE/ERERLH 1
2019 2018
ZE-NE —2)\E
BUTERREERAF Domestic enterprise  PRC Register capital of 0% 100%  Inactive
RMB500,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BLHERKERRAR nELE lGi ifEs 70% 100% EEH
ARH5000007T (%) (%)
BUTEREAREERAT Domestic enterprise PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
RMB1,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BLAEREARERRDA nERE e iy 100% 100% B%2K
ARH1,000,0007 (%) (FiE)
BUTHEZEZAREERDT  Domestcenterprise  PRC Regster capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
RMB1,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUIRAZEZARBARLE  MALE HE HhEx 100% 100% EXH
ARH1,0000007 () (B%)
National Arts Film Shooting Base Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinry shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Inactive
Management Company Limited (indirect) (indirect)
BEY R ERERAT FEal 174 £ LER100ET 100% 100% EZH
(B#) (i)
BUTEEREERERLR WFOE PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
1S$3,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTEEREERERAR MEEELE HE & 73,000,000% 7 100% 00% E2E
(B#) (i)
Foshan Yingyue Catering Co,, Ltd*  WFOE PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inective
RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTREERERRA MERERE HE HHERARE 1000007 100% 0% E%%
(B#) (B%)
Foshan No.66 Highway Catering Co.,  WFOE PRC Register capital of 100%  100% (ndirect)  Inactive
[td* RMB100,000 (indirect)
BURATARARERERLR  MERELE hE AR ARS100,0007T 100% 100% EZH
(H#) (i)
Foshan Guoyi Zhongying Movie and TV Natural person PRC Register capital of 51% - Fimstudio operation in the PRC
Cutture Development Co, Ltd.* investment RMB20,000,000 (indiirect)
BUTEEFRE R ER BBARE e &R AR % 20,000,000 51% - EPESEFREN
ERAA (&)
* For identification purpose only * EHHF
Note: None of the subsidiaries had issued any listed securities e RIREBR SIENBRARBEHITEMNLET
at the end of the reporting period. The Group had BHE - BEZZ—NFER=ZFT-—N\F+=A
no subsidiaries which have materials non-controlling =t+—BLFE AEBVEMBARES
interests for the years ended 31 December 2019 and BRI -

2018.
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20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. 5 FI B &

The movements of the right-of-use assets in respect of
the leases during the year are set out below:

AEEHERBEREEENZHBERMT

Land Office
lease premises and
prepayment staff quarters Total
WRGR
THAERLR BIBE At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2019 (note 2) R=_ZT—ILF—A—H
(B¥zE2) 371,074 3,204 374,278
Additions = - 1,982 1,982
Depreciation expense WEMX (13,692) (2,235) (15,927)
Exchange realignment P& 3 & (65) (50) (115)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+A
=+—H 357,317 2,901 360,218
Note: Mzt -

(i) Land use rights represents lump sum considerations
paid or payable by the Group to acquire leasehold lands
located in the PRC. These leasehold lands are with lease
periods of 38-40 years and there are ongoing payments
to be made under the terms of the land leases.

0 THEREEARERRBLNTENEE
THENREMNH - RERRE - ZFHE
T EH A38-40F  RIFL A E M K
K DEBXNER -
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 21. B ERE
VENTURE
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are AEBEELERENFBOT -
as follows:
2019 2018
—2-hE —T-N\#F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted investment, at cost ELEMIRE - BAAKE 11,400 11,400
Share of post-acquisition loss and other DGR EE A
comprehensive income, net of dividends ZmEMA - kR
received B % B (8,551) (6,072)
2,849 5,328
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the AREEBSEPENRESHARAOFBUOT -
reporting period are as follows:
Country of Principal place of Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity incorporation business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
ERiE EREIER IEERNY IEERENFERERNS  ARENEORERHA TERH
2018
“T-N\§
Zhuhaishi Guoyi Yingshi PRC PRC 60% 60% 60% 60%  Cinema Operation
Management Co., Ltd" (indirect) (indirect) (indirect) (indirect)
KETEERRGEER Gile il (Hi) (%) (%) (Hz) S2%¥%
ERAA

*

For identification purpose only

* E 5
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 21.

VENTURE (continued)

Summarised financial information of the joint venture

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown

RELEUBERME

in the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:

Cash and cash equivalents

Current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other payables and
provisions)

Non-current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other payables and
provisions)

FEALERE &)

FHAKBEALENMBERBER IR
TX e ATHBEMBEEA
B BREENRENMERRATOSE

A EEEREE

CERBEEGRAVBRRAEBEEE

2019 2018

—E-hE —T-N\&F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FH&IT

MENEE 1,219 1,699

ERBEE 10,054 11,645

mENEE 5,640 4,974

Bk =L - -
T EERAESSE

BIENATEE

RehReEMBEER 476 821
nBemas(teR
ENESFREREM

JEAS FRIE A R B ) - -

FrRBERAE(TEE
JERT B 5 I R Bt
JEAT SRIE A R ) =
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) 5 Y .
21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 21. B ERE ®)
VENTURE (continued)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT T

Revenue WA 4,809 6,465
Loss for the year AEFEEEE (2,579) (1,787)
Other comprehensive income for the year AFEHMEEBA - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFELHEMAL B (2,579) (1,787)
Dividends received from the joint venture AFEEEREDLHE

during the year I B R AR B - —
The above loss for the year include the TR AFEBEERRE

following: LATRIER -
Depreciation and amortisation e 80 165
Interest income FEWA 2 4
Interest expense AMEFX 8 -
Income tax expense Frisfif X - -
The amount due from a joint venture was unsecured, FREeE®EHE E’J Y HIEAEER 28 &
interest-free and repayable on demand. HRNERKEE
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= K = K
22. FILM PRODUCTS AND FILM 22. B R AL W E W
PRODUCTION IN PROGRESS
Films
production
Film rights in progress Total
EXER EREZER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Cost: RS
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—A—HH
ey 106,817 - 106,817
Additions NE 14 - 14
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE—-NF+=A
and 1 January 2019 =t—HEZZT-NF
—A—Br&H 106,831 - 106,831
Additions NE - 4,344 4,344
Balance at 31 December 2019 R=—Z—h&+=A
=t+— A& 106,831 4,344 111,175
Accumulated amortisation Rt EERREEE
and impairment losses:
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—HA—H
B 45 B 104,397 - 104,397
Amortisation of film products BEYEMEH 1,224 - 1,224
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+=A
and 1 January 2019 =t—HEKZZT-NF
—A—Br&H 105,621 - 105,621
Amortisation of film products BYEMEH 1,210 - 1,210
Balance at 31 December 2019 R=-Z—h&E+=A
=t+—AN&Es 106,831 - 106,831
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZ=-Z—h&E+=H
=t+—HN&R - 4,344 4,344
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+=A
=+ —HHEH 1,210 - 1,210
Note: Amortisation charge of approximately HK$1,210,000 PisE : BRAE R A @ 82 H 491,210,000 7T (=

(2018: approximately HK$1,224,000) with respect to
film rights has been included in cost of film production
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Amortisation of film right is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are one year
to three years.

T — \4F : 491,224,000 7T) Bt A4RA B
mEEMEAMBERPNEZREEREL B
S0 FI 85 DA B AROR R EL (AT AT R A EA M
HWHERAERARGEENE - 20 FEH
FHA—ZE=F-
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DRAMAS PRODUCTION
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2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Investments in films/dramas production REBE BB EE 1,311 1,311
Less: Impairment B RE (986) -
325 1,311
Note: The amount represents investments in licensed Mzt : ZeBIEREFERIERR NABE R
production houses for co-financing the production of LB REBE L E - ZEREHAEHE
films and/or dramas. The investments are governed SERRFIVZHEBEABRERE  RERS -
by the relevant agreements entered into between the NEBEFRWRBITHEBAEY &R HEE M
Group and the production houses whereby the Group is EERFIE o
entitled to benefits generated from the distribution of the
related films and/or dramas.
)
TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. TEWUE 5wk H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FHBT
Trade receivables EWE S XKE
— travel agents — IR B IE 113,611 102,386
— production crews —2EE BX 51,773 23,382
- others —HAh 5,588 9,391
170,972 135,159
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (95,788) (6,982)
75,184 128,177
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The Group generally allows a credit period from 30 to
90 days (2018: 30 to 90 days) to its trade customers
in respect of film production and distribution sales of
travel related products, artiste management and event
coordination and hotel operation. In respect of travel
agent selling tickets of a film studio owned by the
Group on behalf of the Group (such ticket agent was
new for the year ended 31 December 2018) (referred
to as “Ticket Selling Agent A”), the credit period
granted by the Group to the Ticket Selling Agent A was
about 1 year from the date when the related revenue
is recognised by the Group. The Group assessed
and concluded that there was a significant financing
component and hence the Group adjusted the promised
consideration by using a discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the Ticket Selling Agent A. When the
tickets are sold by Ticket Selling Agent A on behalf of
the Group, the Group only recognised the consideration
adjusted for the financing component as the revenue.
The consideration allocated to the financing income is
recognised as interest income over the credit period.
The amount of interest income recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$4,608,000
(2018: HK$3,421,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Ticket
Selling Agent A had settled its balances in January
to March 2019. Since April 2019, the Ticket Selling
Agent A has not repaid its remaining balance due to
the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the balance
due by the Ticket Selling Agent A was approximately
HK$41,316,000. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the management has repeatedly requested for
repayments without success, and in March 2020, legal
letters had been issued. Up to the date of issuance of
unaudited results announcement for the year ended 31
December 2019, no further repayment has been made
by Ticket Selling Agent A. Accordingly, the management
of the Group made a full impairment on the balance of
approximately HK$41,316,000.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =
—hWF+_A=+—B8ILFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea)

24. W HE 5 JE (#)

AEEBEFHEESEPAFI0EWNAMIE
EH(ZE-NF:30890H) - ZEFEFEFK
BEXRERIRERBERDH BRERE
EE% BELZE BRRAKEPER
FERBAENIRTRIEM S (ZPIRRIE
ﬁ@i—%iA$+ A=+—HIFE®
MRE(TXEAIERNREAD)  AEEEG
TER ﬁi@AE@T?%ﬁﬁﬂ?%ﬂi‘ilﬁEwuﬁﬁaﬂﬂl
HHBEFO—F AEBELBFMG SHE
MASETHBEEANNBERD Bt ﬁ%%
RAEFEAGERE RRAEERERRIEA
ZF'EEJE’Jﬁ_mﬁéx% EERRIEARAKEE
KEIEﬁw%ﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂ%m
&ﬁ%%m DETRIEWANKE T
RREEHANFBRA -RBE_F—H
FTA=+T—"BLEFEEINMNIWAZ
# /3 4,608,0007% 7T (= — /J\ £ : 3,421,000
BT e

REEZ_TE—NF+ZA=1+—HLEFE"
EKEAEFf? HE— HE R#E
HEgp B2 — n&mﬂt EREA
ﬁ*%ﬁﬁﬁ$¢lm%$ —ZT—h
F+=ZA=+—8" Eﬁ@Aﬁﬁ LA
£41,316,000/8 7 - REL = —hE+=
A=+—RHLt&E - ﬁﬁ%&ﬁixﬁml
KR R —_ZT-_TE=ZARETEREK
H-BEEHE-_ZT-NEF+-_A=+—HL
FEKERZEENSRMHAE EENREAX
E—FSEE-Al A5BEERBYESHRY
41,316,000/ SL{E L 2R (B ©
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The Group in previous years had engaged another
agent to sell tickets on behalf of the Group (referred to
as “Ticket Selling Agent B”). During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group entered into an arrangement
with the Ticket Selling Agent B such that the Group
agreed to extend the payment date for 12 months
from the date of 31 August 2018 which, according
to the arrangement, will be due for payment from
December 2018 to July 2019. The Group considered
that such an arrangement was a modification; the
difference between the gross carrying amount of the
receivable and the present value of the agreed cash
flows discounted at the appropriate discount rate was
recognised as a loss for the year ended 31 December
2018, amounting to HK$5,254,000. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amount of the receivable from the
Ticket Selling Agent B amounting to HK$40,809,000.
Since the arrangement was entered into and up to the
date when the consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue, the Ticket Agent B had payment of
HK$15,500,000 in accordance with the arrangement.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Ticket
Selling Agent B has only made repayments of
HK$15,500,000 million in March 2019. Afterwards,
there has no repayment from Ticket Selling Agent B. As
at 31 December 2019, the balance due by the Ticket
Selling Agent B was approximately HK$20,055,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
management has repeatedly requested for repayments
without success, and in March 2020, legal letters had
been issued. Up to the date of issuance of unaudited
results announcement for the year ended 31 December
2019, Ticket Selling Agent B has not repaid on its
balance. Accordingly, the management of the Group
made a full impairment on the balance of approximately
HK$20,055,000.

The Group has trade receivables from production
companies which were arising from renting the
Group’s film studio and film shooting equipment for
their film production. As at 31 December 2019, trade
receivables due from film production companies were
approximately HK$51,773,000, of which approximately
HK$18,481,000 were past due more than one year. In
view of the long outstanding and repeatedly requesting
for repayments without success, after issuance of
legal demand letters, the management of the Group
made a full impairment on the balance of approximately
HK$18,481,000.

24.
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea)

JEWE 5 #k H ()

AEERENFECZES —BRBREAE
BEZE(TNHBAIEEREB] -REECZ
T N\F+_A=Z+—HILFE KEHE
EZREBFIVLH Bt ARERE ' /B
—E-NFNA=Zt+—BREEMZBLE12
@A mMBEZLH B -_ZE—N\F+=

AZE-Z-AFLAHMAR - ARERA
R AET  ERRARE AR

HEMRREPENHERESAERENER
TERABE_E—N\F+_A=1+—8%F
EHEE  ©% 5852540008 T R -F
—N\F+-A=+—8B EREEZREBHXK
18 B [ {& /540,809,000 7T - MR 5] 32 7%
ﬁm MEBEGAMERRERERHBE

ZERIEBARE L HE X (115,500,0008 7T °

HE-_Z—hWF+-_A=+—ALEE &
%REBE%:?*ﬂE_EEEﬁSWOW
BEBITe % k@BﬁEEE

—E-AF+= H + B ?&@Bﬁ
B2 /) 45 #3249 5 20,055,0008 7T - RE = =
TZ-NE+-_A=+—"BLEEE BEEBKX
EERERT AR TR _ZFF=A
BRI -EEHE-_ZT—NF+=A
T+ ALTFEREREELNEEMAE.
EZENEBHAEEELH - Al AEEE
I8 [Z 5 45 #2 4 20,055,000 78 JT1E H 2 EE R (& °

AEBERREELTNE SRR
ERHEAERZABNEL HERME
TEEFEENELE - R —NF+=A
—t+—B EREFEELATNESHEIRR
TH 49 /& 51,773,0007% 7T E & 4718,481,000
Breaf—FUNL -ERRERAEERR
BEJERIARKY)  EELERERKRE -
N EE IR B YA £ 4918,481,00078 JT1E H
2EERME -
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade
receivables from film production companies amounting
to HK$51,773,000 (2018: HK$23,382,000). For the
year ended 31 December 2019, an expected credit
loss (“ECL") of HK$5,518,000 (2018: HK$1,728,000)
was recognised. The estimation of ECL was determined
neither based on the best scenario nor the worst
scenario. The Directors estimated the amount of ECL
based on the expected amount and timing of payments.
In general, an ECL is determined based on the present
value of the difference between (a) the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group and (b) the cash
flows expected to be received by the Group, at the
appropriate discount rate. The adopted discount rate
was taken into account the credit risk characteristics of
such debtors.

Except for a customer arising from entrance fee income,
whose credit term for payment was about 12 months
after tickets are sold, the following is the ageing analysis
of trade receivables, net of allowances for bad and
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice date:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =
—hWF+_A=+—B8ILFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea)

24. W HE 5 JE (#)

—NF+-_A=+—H AEEBEE
%%%%{ATW$WE%M C B
51,773,000/ 7t (=& — )\ F : 23,382,000;‘%
) cREBE_E—hAhF+_A=+—81
EE - DH®R55180008 T (- T — N\
1,728,000/ ) WIEHEEBB ([BHEE
BB - (A EHEEEE  UIFRERE
UEEBRET SFRBEEHNRNEE
LERE - R EEEENEE . —BmE - —
HEHEEEBNBEULNTRENZENE
BEET : @QEMNEAEENANEESRE  H()
AEBEEHBEESHRESRE  KEEHR
RERAE BERAMBRXEFARZEES
AREERREFE -

BREFFBANEFRIN ENFOEER
N RERKRMNI12EA - A T REKE 55K
IEE’UEEE%%*E’E?Dfﬁ%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ’ﬁﬂﬁ%
EAMEHR:

0 to 60 days 0&60H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
91 to 180 days 912180 H
Over 180 days A 180 H

2019 2018
—z-ns RS
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHR
15,621 9,330
6,218 7,430
23,632 11,533
29,713 99,884

75,184 128,177
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INVENTORIES 25. +8
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT T
Food and beverage BN 597 683
Merchandise 2 an 876 984
General operating supplies and others —REEME LA 1,041 1,261
2,514 2,928
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS 26. T FRIE ~ ¥4 S H b FE U
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES K IH
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Long-term receivables (notes (i) and (iv)) RHAE W GRIA
(B EE () B (iv) 111,187 55,990
Investment and other deposits wEREMERE
(notes (i) and (iv)) (B 2 (il) X (iv) 17,928 36,565
129,115 92,555
Current assets REEE
Prepayments AR 2,435 13,208
Rental deposits HEHe 2,159 1,614
Other deposits HEmHe 6,512 2,285
Deposits paid to suppliers EfHENZS - 1,158
Other receivables (note (ii)) H b i Wk T8 (B (i) 31,159 36,227
42,265 54,492
171,380 147,047
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS

AN

D OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Notes:

U

The long-term receivable originally represented the
amount due from a local government company which
was repayable in 40 years and secured by the Wong Tai
Sin Temple located in Xigiao Mountain in Foshan City,
the PRC. The Group and the PRC local government
company mutually agreed that interest, based on the
People’s Bank of China Benchmark Interest Rates,
would not be accrued until the Wong Tai Sin Temple
records a monthly turnover of more than RMB100,000
for six consecutive months. The amount was
denominated in RMB. The monthly turnover threshold
had not been met yet in part.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the PRC
government issued Guozongfa (2017) No. 88 (the
“Guozongfa”) on 3 November 2017 to address the
commercialisation issues relating to the development
of Buddhism and Taoism in the PRC. Under the
Guozongfa, it is promulgated that commercial capital is
strictly forbidden to intervene in Buddhist Taocism and
no organisation or individual may invest or contract for
the operation of Buddhist Tacism activities or conduct
business operations on or through Buddhist Taocism
venues.

After the issuance of the Guozongfa, the Group, with the
assistance of PRC legal advisers, proceeded to assess
the legal effects of the Guozongfa on the construction
management agreement entered into with the PRC local
government company and to discuss with the PRC local
government company in order to effect amendments
to the terms of the agreement considered necessary
as a result of the promulgation of the Guozongfa. The
management of the Group was taking actions and steps
considered necessary to respond to the changes in
regulatory environment brought about by the Guozongfa
with a view to safeguard the Group’s interests in the
Wong Tai Sin Temple and optimize the synergistic
benefits that the temple can bring to the Film Studio as
the temple is located in the film studio area.

26. TS IE ~ ¥4 o At E UK
FXIE (&

GEE

[0} RHEWFIAREREER —Bi BB

FIMRIE - EEAL0F  WARBEHLT

i LA = KL R AR - NS EHEi 5 K
Y EDES
B AL BIARE AR 100,000 LA -
HIRGETFEARBITHEER RS - &%
REUAARKE SALEHEMBETRE

FRBERRE  EEAIRESE

R -

RBE-_T—+E+_fF=1+—BILEE"
PERBRFR-_Z—+tFE+—A=ZBEMH
RE(2017)885%) (B R E ) - IRIBRAREF
HEERBHREBHOPIELCEE BRERTE
BREMEEAANEAGHBEHY T AAEME
ATEERE R AR EEBPBHZEHATK

HHPBHSFETTREEE -

Bl R MM % EPBEAEBEROBHT
B2 F 544 B 5R 5% 4 ek B3t 05 BT A B 5T
A J% B Fh B
HWHBRMAR TR ASHENERERE
BHBRBEBRERBVANEL] - AEEE
EEERDMSENTHRSRE  DERRE
CEHEREAEEE
FAWBOFIE - AREBICEFA AEZTER
WMAEROBRFZ - BABFIEULREZER

UMEEERBRANERTZE

5 B0 B TR 0

WEER I -



Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

U

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group and the PRC local
government company reached mutual agreement on
the changes to the contractual arrangements between
them to take account of the changes in the applicable
laws and regulations due to the promulgation of the
Guozongfa. In March 2018, the Group and the PRC
local government company officially entered into a loan
repayment agreement which supersedes all previous
agreements between them. Under the terms of the
loan repayment agreement, the PRC local government
company would repay the principal amount and accrued
interest payable under the superseded agreements
amounting to RMB74,700,000 in aggregate in the
following manner:

- RMB11,259,000 was repaid on 21 March 2018;

- The remaining RMB63,441,000 to be repaid
annually in equal instalments over a period of
15 years, bearing interest at 5% per annum to
be paid together with the annual repayment
instalment.

The amount of RMB11,259,000 was duly repaid by the
PRC local government company on 31 March 2019.
As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of
RMB65,941,000 (2018: RMB71,019,000) owed to the
Group was classified as follows:

- Current assets: approximately HK$5,078,000
(equivalent to RMB4,555,000) (2018:
HK$5,078,800 (equivalent to RMB4,555,000));

- Non-current assets: approximately
HK$60,863,000 (equivalent to RMB67,844,000)
(2018:HK$65,941,000 (equivalent to
RMB73,505,000)).

26. TEAFSKIR ~ #48 Be At W sk

Y (&

BT : (48)
0] (&

R-E—+tF+-A=+—B AEEHAH
Hib F B ARLEEERRERMREAN
FRRERNEB B ER R FREMAZ
BHAHNLHE R N\E=F K&EH
BB RF AR ERF L EREERE
A LA EABRT S E TR ik o IRIBE FKE
BRENER PEBTBE QGG ERR
BRIBETHAS REMN RS XARE
74,700,0007T * FRAT :

— AR¥11259000TER T — \4F
—AZ+—HEE:

— T A R 63,441,000 7T # 7£ 15 4 &Y
MREFEE SHERSERR -
REBS%TE  BERESFENHER
— Pt o

AR #11,259,000 7T K 2 IE 2 B 7 B th 757 X
FRAFR-ZE-NF=A=+—HZAEE-
R-E-NFE+-_A=+—8B &R EH
B FE 48 A R #65,941,0007T (ZZ— N\
F: ARBE71,019,0007T) EDEHT :

- MEBE 45,078,000 T (HE
R AR #4,5550007T) (ZF— )\
F 1 495,078,800/ 7T (HHE RN AR
4,555,0007T)) :

- JEMENE EE : 4960,863,00078 T (FE
R AR #67,844,0007T) (ZZE— N
F 1 4965,941,00078 7T (FHE R AR
73,505,0007T)) °
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26. TEAFSKIR ~ #48 Be H At Wk

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0

(i)

(v)

(Continued)

During the year, the management of the Group
considered the PRC local government company, may
not be able to repay the balances according to the
repayment schedule and expect the repayments will
be delay 3 years to 2023. Accordingly, the additional
impairment loss of approximately HK$15,154,000
was provided for the balance due from the PRC local
government company to reflect the delay repayment
and increased in the credit risk from such balance.

Included in the balance of other receivables as current
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was
loan receivable of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$22,343,000). Loan receivable was
unsecured, bearing interest at 10% per annum and
repayable in January 2019. In view of the balance having
been extended for a year, the management of the Group
has estimated an ECL of approximately HK$1,000,000
for the year.

Included in the balance of deposits classified as
non-current assets of the Group was deposit
of approximately RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,803,000) (2018: RMB7,000,000
(equivalent to approxima‘[ely HK$7, 973 ,000)) in interest
of 1T EEIEH T AR QT (Foshan relation
to a proposed acquisition of 60% equity City Yi Mei
Wedding Photography Limited*) at a consideration
of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,931,000). As at 31 December 2019, the proposed
acquisition is still under progress.

Included in the balance of deposits classified as
non-current assets of the Group was a receivable
of approximately RMB64,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$75,655,000) lent to an independent
third party to construct a theme park located in Foshan
City. In return, the Group obtained the exclusive
operating rights and receive management fee income
once the theme park starts operating. During the
year, the management of the Group has estimated an
ECL of approximately RMB5,797,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,461,000).

H (&

sk : (#)
0] (#&)

#im REEEERERABZRE A BT
AEIAREEIRBRENKBREELESH I
TEEE R T ESE = 20234 - It L
B4t 75 BT A R RE AR AE R 8 T BEONRLE TS
18 #915,154,00078 7T » LA I B FIE 38 38 30 K 5%
EHREENEERRIEM -

(ii) R-E—tF+-A=t+—B8HMERK
BEBPEEBEEAASERDEENERE
AR # 20,000,000 7T (18 & A 49 22,343,000
L) o BRE TR AMEEA - 210% FF Rt
BERAR-Z—NE—AEE -R=-ZT—N
F+-—A=+-—"H &BOPBEARHEE-
BERAERECH —F AEETEREHTA
FE 2 EHEEBEL A1,000,000%8 7T °

(i) Aﬁ?’rﬂ»‘%.Z#mu@ﬁ}XZTﬁzf LR BIE
# A R 7,000,000 7T (48 & # #7,803,000
BL) (ZZE—N\F: /\Emz?ooooomcz
&%(*H #iﬁ7973000,%nz¢ ®) W

HmEHRILMREEY ﬁBE/D\TZ
so%ﬁx@é RE %AEMSOOOOOOE(H*
M #98,931,000/8 L) cR=ZT—NLF+=A
=+—H B2EkENEETR -

vy PEARAEBEZERDEEZRSEHBIE
EEFBUS - FEBLTEEIELER
Y U 7k I8 49 A R 64,500,000 7T (48 & 7
#975,655,000%8 7C) - fEAEIHHR - W E-ERQ
EMREYE ANEBEESEBREERK
EREBEWA - RFAR - AEBTIEBGE
HEEBEBRNAARKES797,0007T (HHE R
6,461,000/%75) o
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26.

27.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

) Included in the balance of deposits classified as
non-current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2019 was deposit of approximately RMB24,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,343,000) in relation
to a proposed acquisition of entire equity interest of a
company established in the PRC. As at 31 December
2018, the proposed acquisition is still under progress.
During the year, the management of the Group has
estimated an ECL of approximately HK$11,490,000.

(Vi) During the year, there are a number of other receivables
which individually were immaterial but having been long
outstanding for more than a year. The management of
the Group considered that those other receivables may
not recovered due to the current economic environment
both in the PRC and Hong Kong, and a full impairment
of approximately HK$11,291,000 was made for those
balances.

For identification purpose only

CASH AND BANK BALANCES/
BANK OVERDRAFTS

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks
and in hand and bank overdrafts.

Cash at banks earn interests at the floating rates based
on the daily bank deposits rates. Bank overdrafts
carrying interest at market rate which range from 0.75%
per annum below HKD Prime Rate to 1% per annum
over Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (2018: range
from 0.75% per annum below HKD Prime Rate to 1%
per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate).

At 31 December 2019, included in cash and
cash equivalents of the Group was approximately
HK$5,591,000 (2018: approximately HK$5,931,000) of
bank balances denominated in RMB placed with banks
in Hong Kong and the PRC and on hands, which are
not freely convertible into other currencies.

26. THAT K8 ~ $i2 4 B At W 3k
JH (&)

BaE : (#)

v) PEAEANEER-_T—N\F+=_A=+—
AZERBDEE RS EBBREOARE
24,000,000 7T 2 &% (8 & R 427,343,000 7
TRZIEE)  H R EERE BT BEEmK
VAR EHRE - RZT—N\F+=H
=+—8 ZRUWBNEET -RERN T
B E K TEHEEEEL A 11,490,0008 7T ©

RER  BFEFZHATEEEERHER
—FUENEMERZRE AEETEER
B BERFPEREEEANCERE %%
Hih U kA se R E - B xS B TE
H 2 ERE LY 11,291,000/8 7T °

. EHH

27. e RBATH B BATE XL

RebReFEHEARRBITLTFAREIN
KERITHES

RITRESTFRNFERERTHRITERF
KMEHZEE R B - RITET 2 FFI=
ENRBTHRERMNRFK075%ERERIT
BEFREIMB(CE—NF : NABLEE
BHERBOT5%EBBRITREFRENI1%)
RITI5F 5T 8 o

RZTBE—-NE+-A=1+—0 x£EEHR
PR ESEEEREUARBAERER
REBRFPRZHERITVRITESR L FER
©#95,591,0007% 7T (ZZF—/)\4F : 495,931,000
BIL) c ARETT BRI BAREME -
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28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. FEfT E 5 3k 16
The Group was granted by its suppliers’ credit periods AEFEEAHFESE TI0BEE0R (ZF
from 30 to 60 days (2018: 30 to 60 days). The following —N\F:308E60R)EEH - BNESHFIA
is the ageing analysis of trade payables based on RIBFZZAHANKRER>TET :
invoice date:
2019 2018
—E-hF AN
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#E T FAT
0 to 30 days 0ZF30H 1,382 699
31 to 60 days 31£60H 1,365 429
61 to 90 days 612 90H 1,070 469
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 14,724 920
Over 180 days #1800 H 17,531 17,462
36,072 19,979
29. OTHER PAYABLES AND 29. H: b JE A} 3K 1E K BE 5t E
ACCRUALS
2019 2018
—E2-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F# T FAT
Accruals FEsHE A 113,335 47,075
Receipts in advance TR IE 484 25
Other payables EH Al A IR 83,574 36,671

197,393 83,771
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2019 2018
—g-h%E —T-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Current liabilities REBAE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (note (a)) BB A (H3E (@) 541,190 -
Ms. Law Po Yee (note (b)) BE 7wt (M (o) 24,819 -
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong (note (c)) ok M 5T A (MFRE () 23,448 -
Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong (note (d)) 554 (Bt () - 3,500
Mr. Tse Young Lai (note (g)) FRE L E (W) - 590
589,457 4,090
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (note (a)) BB A (K 3E (@) - 527,969
Ms. Law Po Yee (note (b)) BE 7t (M (o) - 35,566
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong (note (e)) ok M T A (HFE () - 33,406
- 596,941
The loans from shareholders are repayable as follows: RENEZFERIATHRANESE -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTAT T
Carrying amount repayable: AR THRAEERZ
ARMEE :
Within one year —F R 589,457 4,090
More than one year, but not exceeding —F AL ETBBRE
two years - 596,941
More than two years, but not more than MFAEETBBRBAT
five years - -
589,457 601,031
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30. LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the loans from
Mr. Sin bear interest ranging from 5.00% to 15.00%
(2018: 6.00% to 15.00%) per annum, unsecured and
were repayable within one year.

The loan was unsecured and bore interest at 5.00% per
annum (2018: 5.00%) and was repayable within one
year (2018: two years).

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the loan was
unsecured and bore interest ranging from 8.00% to
12.00% per annum and was repayable within two years.

In the year ended 31 December 2018, the loan was
unsecured and bore interest at 15.00% per annum and
was repayable within one year.

In the year ended 31 December 2018, the loan was
unsecured and bore interest at 11.50% per annum and
was repayable within one year.

30. BB s iy Bk (&)

sk :

RNEBE_ZE—NE+-_A=+—BILEE "
REEFEENEREN F5.00%Z15.00%
(20184F : 6.00% Z= 15.00% ) FY F F| K5+ &
A BAR—FNEE -

ZE RS R IE5.00% W FEMEGE (ZF
—J\F 1 5.00%) RAR—F (ZF—/\F:
) NEE -

REBEZE-_T—NF+_A=+—HLFE "
ZE PR R L) T 8.00% = 12.00% K F
MEF B RBERMEREE -

REE-T—N\E+-A=+-AILFE
SRR R R 4RI 15.00% 5 8 R A
R -

REBEZ_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BLEFE"
ZEFREER RIRFNE11.50% 8 KA
R—FREE-
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31. BORROWINGS 31. 5 &
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT FAT
Current liabilities REEE
Bank borrowing — secured RITEE-FER
— Floating rate (notes (a)) —2 B (FE @) 12,128 12,392
12,128 12,392
Other borrowings — secured HMEE—FHT
(note (b)) (FF5E (b)) 81,780 81,780
Other borrowings — unsecured HMEE—mEH
(note (c)) (FF3E () 123,237 44,228
217,145 138,400
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE -G 6,956 10,388
Other borrowings — unsecured (note (c)) Hpth {8 & — 3K 17
(Bt &E () 2,939 44,271
227,040 193,059

The G 'sb ings are repayable as follows: .y e
e Group's borrowing re repay: W $%ﬁai S8 M/(THH’ZE'(W1E_

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F# T FHET
Carrying amount repayable: ARUTHRRAEERE
ARMEE -
Within one year —FR 217,145 138,400
More than one year, but not exceeding —FLA L ETBBRE
two years 9,895 54,659
227,040 193,059
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31. BORROWINGS (continuea)

32.

Notes:

(@)

The floating rate bank borrowings of the Group are
secured by the Group’s bank’s deposit of approximately
RMB2,000,000 and bears interest at 6.18% to 6.05%
per annum.

The other borrowings were secured by (i) the personal
guarantee executed by Mr. Sin, (i) share capital of
Glory Max Group Limited and EPL and bore interest at
13.00% per annum.

The other borrowings were unsecured and bore
interest ranging from 2.50% to 36.00% per annum
(2018: from 2.50% to 12.00% per annum). The other
borrowings were repayable within one year to two
years (2018: within the year to three years). Included
in other borrowings was amount of approximately
HK$50,160,000 (2018: HK$35,811,000) due to Mr.
Chow Kai Weng, the director of the Company.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The exposure of the Group’s lease liabilities are as

31. & (#)

BtsE -

@ AEERITEROFEUREENRITER
# AR 2,000,000 CEER - HEFME AT
F6.18% & 6.05% °

() HMEERUATSEAER ()EEEFL
# M AYE1R ¢ (i) Glory Max Group Limited &
RIPFHRRMBA - WERFE13.00%5H8 ©

) HAfEEAEEITERIZN T 2.50% % 36.00%
WEFEMEFB(ZTE—NF N F250% %
12.00% W EF|R) - HMEEER —FEM
FREEZE(ZCZ—N\F R=FR) - LM
BERERNAARESARKLLENKIELD
50,160,000 7T (Z =& — /\ 4 : 35,811,00078
TT) e

32. HE AR

AEEARAEREMT -

follows:
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FET
Current mED 13,502
Non-current el 16,261

29,763
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES (continuea) 32. HE Al
Present
Minimum value of
lease lease
payments liabilities
BREHENR HEEERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Minimum lease payment due: BIEEENRALAT B EAZIH
— Within one year ——%R 15,776 13,502
— more than one year but not more than ——F U EETBBARF
five years 10,202 2,468
— Over five years —RFE 46,781 13,793
72,759
Future finance charges KRB B EH (42,996)
Present value of lease liabilities HMEaBRE 29,763
Amounts due for settlement within one year — £ A 21| HA 45 & 1) 3B
(shown under current liabilities GIREBEREET) 13,502
Amounts due for settlement after one year — 1% BI| Hi 45 & () ZUE 16,261

The Group leases warehouse and office premises for
operation and these lease liabilities were measured at
the present value of the lease payment that are not yet

paid. All leases are entered at fixed prices.

FH

EET
A TA

AEEREBKEFZMEERELBAE
“EHEABERBEERN
FHERADMARIN - 2 AL ILEEER

EREHE %

2N
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33. R B R i

@ MELHARREEMNKMT

33. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION

Future finance lease payments arising from the leasing

of film studio is due as follows:

Minimum lease

payment Interest Present value
IR E R A8 RE
2019 2019 2019
—ET-NEF —E-NEF —ET-NEF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Not later than one year TER—F 11,595 1,857 9,738
Later than one year but not ER—FETNERRE
later than five years 7,632 7,355 277
Later than five years BRRSF 48,988 34,804 14,184
Balance at 31 December RZTE-N\F+=ZA
2018 i el = 68,215 44,016 24,199
The present values of future lease payments are AREERNHRESITE
analysed as:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Current liabilities - 9,738
Non-current liabilities = 14,461

24,199
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33.

34.

FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION
(Continued)
Finance lease obligation that are denominated in the

functional currencies of the relevant group entities are
set out below:

33. il AL AR (2)

NEREBEEREENHENTBHEEA
EEIIT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
RMB AR - 24,199
HK$ BT - -
= 24,199
BONDS 34. &%

New Issued Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company issued the bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$526,871,000
(2018: approximately HK$890,110,000) at par value
in accordance with the conditional placing and
underwriting agreement entered into between the
Company and the independent placing agents. The
bonds have a maturity from three months to 8 years
(2018: from three months to 8 years) from the dates of
issue and bear coupon interest ranging from 0% to 9.6%
per annum (2018: from 0.40% to 9.00% per annum),
accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. A default
rate ranging from 0% to 9.60% per annum (2018: from
0% to 9.60%) will be charged on any sum due and
payable under the Bonds from the due date to the date
of actual payment in full. The bonds were denominated
in HK$.

HRITES

BHE_Z—hE+_A=+—RBLEE"
RABREBEARR BB IRERIEFT LW
BRHUHEERBERE  FAEETAZE
¥ 5 49526,871,0008 L (ZE—/\F + &
890,110,000 ) WEH - ZEFEHF N ETT
AR =EAENFE (ZE—N\F: =@A
ENFE)HH BENTFTEF0%ENCK (=
T—NF:HFF040%%E900%)  FEFH
B2 WESFIRBRIMAF M E - K EE
THZEBEFNEMEBENSSE  BARD
HEEER 2SN AMKREF0%E9.60%
B (ZZE—NF: BF0%ZE9.60%) ELHFH =X
TRFE - ZEBEHFEITTAHE
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34. BONDS (continuea) 34. &% &)
New Issued Bonds (Continued) HRTES(E)
The movement for the year on the bonds was as REEANEHFNEIHNAT :
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#& T T
Balance at 1 January R—A—B2#&&% 1,023,319 719,920
Proceeds from issue of the bonds BITESPISRUE 526,871 890,110
Transaction cost allocated to the liability 2 Bt & B &85 B3 5 Ak A
component (24,302) (93,087)
Interest expense (note 9) FEZ i (FFzE9) 144,797 139,023
Interest paid during the year FRERFE (35,398) (126,246)
Repayment during the year FANEE (482,004) (506,401)
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=1+—Hz&#®% 1,153,283 1,023,319
Carrying amount repayable: AR THRAEERZ ZREE :
Within one year —F R 769,105 660,424
More than one year but not exceeding —F LA BT BIBMRE
two years 220,088 82,725
More than two years but not exceeding ~ M A _E{ET @A F
five years 91,612 188,348
More than five years AEE 72,478 91,822
1,153,283 1,023,319

The fair value of the Bonds at 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$617,072,000 (2018:
approximately HK$1,128,192,000). The fair value of
the Bonds are calculated using cash flows discounted
at rate on the borrowings rate ranging from 9.96% to
11.69% per annum (2018: from 7.11% to 9.11% per

annum) and are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

BEHn =

—h&+=-—A=+—8~2
@%’77,%617,072,000/%75 (ZZE—N\F: 4
1,128,192,0007 JT)
RIEEFRFENF9.96% £11.69% (ZZ
—NF EBFNTF711%2911%) BHIR 218
ERENE  WIARARBESHE 4 -

AN
/[_A\/L/

cfEHZ

AN
/&/b

BT HRA
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CB5

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of Lux
Unicorn Limited, the Company issued convertible bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$300,000,000
(“CB5”) on 15 April 2015. The CB5 has a maturity of 3
years from the date of issue and bears coupon interest
at 9% per annum, accrued daily and payable annually
in arrears. The conversion price of CB5, subject to
the anti-dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.18 per
conversion share. The CB5 was denominated in HK$.

The conversion price of the CB5, subject to the usual
adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion share. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB5 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount
of HK$300,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares from the date of issue of the CB5
up to and including the date falling on the 5th day
immediately prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB5 shall be entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly) by way of
allotment and issuance of new shares of the Company
at the conversion price on the due day of the interest
payment in lieu of payment by cash by giving not less
than 7 business days’ written notice prior to the due
date for payment of interest. Such interest conversion
arrangement is only applicable to the 9% per annum
interest payment. The Company may redeem the CB5
at any time prior to the maturity date in whole or any
part (in minimum amount of HK$300,000 or an integral
multiple thereof) at the principal amount of such CB5
thereof plus interest accrued thereon up to the actual
date of redemption by giving to the bond holder not less
than 10 business days’ written notice of its intention to
make such redemption.

35. Wl et fe

FLftURKRES

ERWEERBERARINE S KRE X7
R-ZE—RAFNA+TREBBEITASRES
300,000,000 LB AT R AR fE % ([ At AT i
REH]) - BRI AT B|BRESNEITHERE
FEFIH BFEREEXRRM%  FEEH
BR U ESFERPARIAARME - FRH
AMRESNLIREARTRILBARMN0.18%
T AR —MRREEFEMBRR - FRA
Al AR E S LAB TORHE o

ERHMAMBESNARERERLBERN
01887 HAX —MRABMRR - BFE DR
ARREFETEHEEEXINYAMER
B(BRZA)HE FATBERESFHAR
B8R A5 5 (HIE© AR 300,000%8 T3k H
TRER) AT 2R B LR

FRPARBESNFAEAGERIBNE
BRAARRELTIR7TEEXANEERE
Mo BRENBIHANERESBREN
BT ARBMFHROKAEAHNE (2EF%
) ARBIRES M - FBHBR TR E
RAREFENEI% IMHFE « AR AEB
AEFFKAEAZLTIPRI0EEXENER
BARTEABELERBLNTT ARXEH
FIEMRRREASTTRRESN KRS HEE
FEEZERBERARAINENE  BEO
EMHELFRARITREES (RESEAR
300,000 Lk KB BIEH) -
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(Continued)

CB5 (Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the CB5
was calculated using future repayments discounted
at an estimated discount rate of 11.28% per annum.
The residual amount of approximately HK$46,697,000
(being the difference between the fair value of the
CBb5 at issuance date and the fair value of the liability
component on initial recognition) is assigned as the
equity component and is included in equity heading
convertible bond equity reserve. The liability component
is subsequently stated at fair value, with changes
recorded in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

In May and July 2016, CB5 with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$84,600,000 and HK$35,400,000
were converted into 470,000,000 ordinary shares and
196,666,666 ordinary shares of the Company in total
at a conversion price of HK$0.18 each respectively.
In June 2015, CB5 with aggregate principal amounts
of HK$79,800,000 were converted into 443,333,333
ordinary shares of the Company in total at a conversion
price of HK$0.18 each. During the year ended 31
December 2016, Mr. Sin and four holders of CB5
offered to waive the accrued interest up to the date of
conversion of approximately HK$12,513,000.

CB5 was due to Mr. Sin as at 31 December 2017. As
at 31 December 2017, the principal amount of the CB5
was approximately HK$100,200,000.

CB5 matured on 14 April 2018. In accordance with
the loan agreement dated 9 March 2018 entered into
between the Company and Mr. Sin, the CB5 with
principal amount of HK$4,200,000 was settled by
the Company by way of loan from shareholder. The
Company also entered into a supplementary loan
agreement with Mr. Sin on 14 April 2018, pursuant
to which, the Company issued promissory notes for
the settlement of the CB5 with principal amount of
HK$96,000,000. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the CB5 was fully redeemed by the Company
by way of issue of promissory note and loan from
shareholder.
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

35. ARk 27 (2)

FRHTRRES (£)

ERAMATRBRESFEESINARENES
F11.28% WEEHTE RITIH R HERIMEAE o
Tl & B4 46,697,000/ 7T (BN Atk AT #2 %
BEHFRBETEBHENAABEREBERSRIL
HRENAAENEZRE) BRABERI D Rt
AT RBREFRSHENRSET -B8ESD
DEHEBERAAENE  AEEHNEEER
REM2EUE AT -

RZE—-—A"FRARELtA XoBHEE
84,600,000 % 7T & 35,400,000 % 7T K9 58 FL#t AT
BEEERLBESROISHETEBRAERN
7] & 470,000,000 % 3 i % & 196,666,666
BREmk N —_ZT—RFENA KL@EEH
79,800,000 LY 28 AL Al AR B H IR H IR B
TRk 0188 L8R AN N Al A £ 443,333,333
REER e RNEE T —AF+_A=+—
AEFE AEEREZEERATRERES
BEARIRAEEZHRBBNETFEY
12,513,000 7T °

RZE—+tFE+__A=+—H BaftaH
BREFREELEE-R-_BE—+LF+-A
=t—H FARATBRBREFHNASERY
100,200,000 % 7T ©

FRELATEBRESR - N\FNA+IEH
ElH - RIBEARAREES AT VABRAEZT
—N\NF=ZANBZERBZE  ARAFUKRE
B A& £ %8 54,200,0008 7T 2 5 AL
R ES YR T —/\FNA A H
GEEET—MERHRIBE  ARAIET
RN A £ € %8 496,000,000 % T 2
FRUATBERES HE-_T—N\F+_A
T HLEFE - FRUTERELSCD BB
AR BITELBZERKEREER TR
EHER -
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 35. Wl B A8 25 (4)

(Continued)
CB5 (Continued) ERMTRRES (£)
CB5
R
R ES
HK$'000
FHT
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-Z—-N\F—H—BOER 106,697
Fair value changes NIEZE 2,521
Transfer to interest payable HIBEEENFE (9,018)
Settled by way of loan from shareholder VAR SR & S As (4,200)
Settled by way of promissory note PO BB 41 (96,000)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZE-—\F+ZA=+—HHEH -
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-ZEBE-NF+ZA=+—HZ#&&
CB5
FHHL
AR E 5
HK$'000
FHET

Carrying amount repayable
Within one year

ARUTHRAEEZREE
—FR
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PN 1

On 15 April 2015, the Company issued promissory
note with principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the
“PN 1”) at par value in accordance with the sale and
purchase agreement dated 22 December 2014 entered
into between Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited, the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Sin
Kwok Lam, the non-executive Director (at the date of
issuance of PN 1). The PN 1 has a maturity of 3 years
from the date of issue and bear coupon interest at
9% per annum, accrued daily and payable annually in
arrears. The PN 1 are denominated in HK$.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the PN 1 was
calculated by discounting future repayments at an
estimated discount rate of 12.37%. Subsequently,
interest expense on the PN 1 was calculated using
the effective interest method by applying an effective
interest rate of 12.41% per annum.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =
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36. PROMISSORY NOTES

36. 7 IR

AHEEA

R-ZE—RAFNA+HA  ARQRAREBEEARQ
RIZEMNB AR EER AR HEIEHNTT
EERBMEETT Y ERA T —NF+ =
AZ+ZHB EEHE REEETEAZS
¥ /380,000,000 T 2 A H E2 1 ([F W E
B1)) (AR ERA1BITAR) « &K EERA
REITHERRRET = F R ZEIRFFIEI%
BRZF  WERESFHRIM - AR EREA
ThABTLETE ©

R HERE AL BRI AAETIRS
FTARIR R 12.37% BRI R REREHE - H
% AR BBEAFEABERF R EIRFERRE
12.41% st EF B ©
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36. PROMISSORY NOTES (continuea) 36. R (&)

PN 4 AARE4

On 14 April 2018, the promissory note with principal RZZE-NFEA+MAB  BRIEBEARFHE
amount of HK$104,640,000 (the “PN 4”) at par AEEFVBBHAZZT—/\FMOA+IA
value was issued to settle part of the principal and 2EFRHAEGS RABARTASESEAR
interest accrued on the CB5 in accordance with the 104,640,000 7T 2 & K 2 & ([E H EE4])
supplementary loan agreement dated 14 April 2018 NENETHIBREES 2SR RAR
entered into between the Company and Mr. Sin. The FEAE o B H ER AR BT AR T A(E
PN 4 has a maturity of approximately 15 months from AEIH - ZRIRFNEIR T AR WAR
the date of issue and bears coupon interest at 8% per HHIR2H &N

annum, accrued monthly and payable in full on the
maturity date.

The movement for the period on the PN 1 and PN 4 EHERA RAREBRIANEBAZEH 0T
was as follows:

PN 1 PN 4

AR EEA AHEE4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZT—N\F—A—BN#HEH 83,991 -

Issuance of promissory note BITERLER - 99,338

Effective interest expense (note 11) ERF B (MaE11) 3,209 7,139

Transfer to interest payables ERERMNFE (7,200) -

Settled by way of loan from shareholder — LABE R & k45 1< (80,000) -
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=_A=+—H

B A5 R - 106,477

Effective interest expense (note 11) ERF SR (HiE11) - 8,720
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=ZA=+—H

B 4 = 115,197
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Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax rates
applicable in the tax jurisdiction concerned.

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised
by the Group and movements thereon during the year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =
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37. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

37. 3 %€ B vH £ {5
L FE R L OB 0 0 R P
BB T 5 I OB T 4 2 BB o
T 51 75 7 56 ) 2 2 T OB 2 18
ERHED -

Revaluation of

properties

MESR

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2018 R-ZE—N\F—HF—H 165,629

Charged to property revaluation reserve RESHREEANDR (7,159)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—HK

—ZE-NF—H—H 158,470

Charged to property revaluation reserve R EEHFEEANR (58,970)

At 31 December 2019 RZE—-—NF+=ZA=+—H 99,500

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$665,135,000 (2018: approximately
HK$604,637,000) available for offsetting against
future profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Included in the estimated unused tax losses
are losses of approximately HK$294,053,000 (2018:
approximately HK$257,949,000) that will expire
within 5 years. Other estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$371,082,000 (2018: approximately
HK$346,688,000) may be carried forward indefinitely.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of these estimated unused tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

RBERR AEEBFARDABES
B #665,135,0008 L (=T — \F + 4
604,637,000 t) + 7] A{ERKEE LB ED
RAlZ KRR GEF o Fat RBAHBEEPH
518 49294,053,000/8 70 (ZZF — \F : 49
257,949,000 7T) A A F N EH - (g
HARB) A B8 4371,082,0008 T (=T — N\
£ 1 #7346,688,000/% 7T) Al R B & 4 - |
AR B S ) £ LA TEDRD - R 48 Bt R IR B 1R AR
RELEHIEEE -
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38.

39.

SHARE CAPITAL

—hE+ZA=+—RLFE

38. kA
Number of Shares Share Capital
R EE R

2019 2018

—E-hEF —NF

Notes HK$000 HK$’000
ik TER THET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each Gk EI{E0.17E T

Liak
Authorised: BE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HR
+=B=+--H 6,000,000 6,000,000 600,000 600,000

Issued and fully paid: BRETRARE

At 1 January ®n—A—H 4,517,160 4,514,160 451,716 451,416

Placing of shares B &R n (8) 428,770 - 42,877 -

Share issued upon exercise of  T{E BB EFTE1THY

share options & 15 2,240 7,000 224 300

31 December A+-A=+t—H 4,948,170 4,517,160 494,817 451,716

Note: B 5E -

(@  On 15 March 2019, the Company have successfully @ RZZE-—NF=ZA+HB AQFRKI AR
placed 428,770,000 shares at placing price of HK$0.26 EEFMK0.26 8 TH & 428,770,000 i % 17 °
per share.

RESERVES 39. Gkt

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 131 of the consolidated financial
statements.

The special reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the shares of
the Company issued in exchange for the shares of the
acquired subsidiaries under the reorganisation.

The contributed surplus account was designated by
the Company within the meaning of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda which represented (i) the entire
amounts standing to the credit balance of the share
premium account of the Company as at 30 June 2010;
(i) the transfer of the share premium arising from capital
reduction on 29 September 2010; and (i) the offset
with the accumulated losses in full up to 31 December
2010.

AEEAFERBEFENHFBERELEE
FENIREU SRR FE 1N ANGAERE
EEXE

B Bl (7 FE PR B T 1B 2 R AL () B0 TN (E B AR
N RN E B R EAT AR I B A B R
BITHBRMMEEMENEZRE

ARBFIEENERESE (TERERE
—NN—FRAE) B AR TR & ERR
TE-ZTFERNAZTHMNERZBELES )
A-—Z—ZFALA-_TNBERAEIBAES
R HERERE M) REEEEE —_T—
EFE+ A=+ B REAEIE-
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COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =
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40. OPERATING LEASE

40. R M B R

FREFEREEA

RBEHR AEERBETIIHBELERE
BUTREORERE N FAE - BIHER

non-cancellable operating leases which approximately i
fall due as follows:

2018
—E—)\F
HK$'000
FET
Within one year —F R 11,427
In the second to fifth years inclusive EFE_EZERF (BEERERT) 46,128
Over five years BBEAF 91,488
149,043

The HRL and its subsidiaries leased two pieces of land
located near Xigiao mountain in Foshan, the PRC,
under operating leases of 20 years commencing from
3 October 2010 and renewable for another 20 years
automatically. One piece of land had been leased since
2010 and recognised as finance lease obligation in
2011 as disclosed in note 33. Lux Unicorn leased three
pieces of land also located near Xigiao mountain in
Foshan, the PRC, under operating leases of 18.5 years
commencing from 1 November 2013 and renewable
for another 20 years automatically. The Group also
leased premises under operating leases which are run
for an initial period of three years. None of these leases
include contingent rentals.

ERNEWNBARREBLAERE LA ISP
B@ILEEILORIEL - —2F+
BAZHEAH-_+F AJEHER_T+F-
BN EESSFATIEE AP~ E =T —
TEREHERR - —— FHRAREMR
EAE BBREBECEHEHBAINA AR
FILEELN =t AT —=F+—
A—BRRAEHI18SF AIFBEMH -+ F-
AEBNMBELCERELAME  ZEAE
YZEBH=F ZEHERTLEXAES -
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41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

—hE+ZA=+—RLFE

41. BAR &M

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had the following —NEFE+ZA=1+—8 XxEEEMU
capital commitments: TEARASE :
2019 2018
—E-hF —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT T
Contracted but not provided for: DETAVB R B -
Construction of properties LIESEE 78,389 63,514
Authorised but not contracted for: BHEEERRTA -
Construction of properties (Note) YRR (M FE) 334,411 341,686

Note: Capital commitment for construction in properties
related to capital commitment for construction of film
studio and hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised
amount was approved by the Directors according to
the land lease agreements signed between Lux Unicorn
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation
to the leasing of lands for development of tourism and
related entertainment business and hotel operations.
The completion of constructions and commencement
of operations of the projects shall be within three and
four years respectively from the signing of the lease
agreements.

42. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group participates in employee social security
plans as required by the regulations in the PRC. The
Group also participates in the Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme to which all qualified employees of the
Group in Hong Kong are entitled. The assets of the
retirement benefit schemes are held, separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of the
trustees. The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of social security schemes operated by
the relevant local government authorities. The pension
plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant group companies. The amounts charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represent contributions payable
by the Group at the specified rates according to the
respective plans. The only obligation of the Group in
respect of the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the specified contributions.

P )32 AR A AR B o L L B AR
WREENEAFARAEN - B RERARD
ACRAT 2 2 BHEAR) R BHLMSE
8 BB 9L L L b0 R B 32 75 A T AR AR
532 75 KO S 75 T 26 2T 0 £ MO TR B 4338
EECHAETLE - AHERBHRIRE
STH 153 B H A 5= 4 2 I 4E PO TR 4%
NS -

42 38 Pk At 3

AEBERBHFEEZRZAELERBEHER
Bit 8l - AEET2EFEANRAEERETE
ZHEBEGERER ZABIMEATEEE - R
KENFSHZEERANEB ZEERERA
FrEflcEEDRIBA RTPBEMBRARZ
BEREHENBIHBER SRR
QZWE°EWﬁﬂZ§%Xﬁ%EE&H

MEBARZHK REGBRaEEME2E
WaER ARz %EF%ZK’EIMETF SR B

TE LR AT 2 K o AN B B B R IRAE A A
- BERFREEHRK -
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had share options
schemes for employee compensation as set out below.

(a)

Post initial public offering share option scheme

The post initial public offering share option
scheme (“Post-IPO Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by a resolution of the
sole shareholder dated 22 July 2002 (the
“Effective Date”). Major terms of this scheme are
summarised as follows:

(0

(i)

(iii)

The Post-IPO Option Scheme enables
the Company to grant share options to
selected persons as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group.

The participants of the Post-IPO Option
Scheme include any employee, director,
advisor and consultant, supplier, customer
and shareholder of any member of the
Group as well as any provider of financial
assistance to any member of the Group.

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will be
offered for acceptance for a period of 14
days from the date on which the offer is
granted.

Share options may be granted on such
terms and conditions in relation to their
vesting, exercise or otherwise as the
board of directors of the Company may
determine, provided such terms and
conditions shall not be inconsistent with
any other terms and conditions of the Post-
IPO Option Scheme. The grantees are
not required to hold any share options or
any shares allotted pursuant to any share
options for any minimum period.

43. DA % B 1 ) 1F 5K 22 5

n=

E-NF+A=+—H AEEAT

7 RlE B W R eV B A g AT 8 -

(a)

BEADRBREKRRET

BRARBREBERETSE ((BERAR
BREBREFEDE-_ZTT_F+H
“HtZB(AEMBDE-BRRORER
BRI - %A 81 = BB
LI

) BRAFBREBRETSELR
DA FRPE AN TR BB E
ERBEEHAEEFELTRE
BB

i) BRAFRBREBERETS2HE
ERRAEEIMKE RARNE
MEE  EE BEEAEXER -
HER TP RBRR  UEAAR
SEERKE A RRHI B E B
WAL e

(i) HEEAREMBREZZFEAR
RABZF1ETT - BREEEB
ARRHEZEBSEF14RAT
LABE 4 o

vy BEEARBEAIAEARAFAESES
BEETRHEBRENER 1THEX
H At 75 T #) f6R SR B2 AR 1 T 4
HEZFERRGEBARERA
B 48 M 12 B8 RCRE A 81 (T Ho At
R R MR — B e AR ABAR
THRENREFBRFEEM
8 B HE SRR R (T () 5 A48 AT B 2
HIRL D ©
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Post initial public offering share option scheme
(Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

The subscription price for the shares
under the Post-IPO Option Scheme will be
determined by the board of directors of the
Company and notified to each grantee and
will be at least the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the share option, which
must be a business day, (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Post-IPO Option
Scheme and other share option schemes
must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Post-IPO Option
Scheme and any other share option
schemes must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at 17 October
2002, amounting to 49,219,623 shares (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company
may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit
at any time subject to prior shareholders’
approval. However, the Scheme Mandate
Limit as renewed must not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of the
aforesaid shareholders’ approval.
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(a)

ERLHARKERESE (E)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

RIFERAFRRRERZEE
RERNDOZEE HHARQF
EFESETIMERARA M
ZEBEIARUNT=ZENES
F o @QRBERERLBHS(BAR
BER)BRMORBRZAERRER
PRERU T B - (o) B L B HAT
T &% B RO RS H#R
ERMMTFHETE: K@)k
[ERER

ES)iS - WNUNGEE ST
R HEMBERESE DR R
RATREH) P A 317 £ 50 BB B
EITEMAIEHTHRMDEA -
REZTEBRBIEEHTRMH
30% -

EREE XA BREERE
B Je AF fa] B At B AR 4 T B X
RO FT7B BB AR M 1T (50 T AT RE B 1T
WD EE  aETEBHEB=-F
E_FE+ AT EARBITRMON
10% (B149,219,623 %) ([ &t &%
HEMREE]) - ARBRNBLIMER
AL 18 - O] BB B 5B T AT &I % A
PREE - AT+ B 3M1E MR B3 4
PR 28 115 RB 80 ST Tt AR 3R BE
EHEBEITRMA10% -

285



286

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

HEREXEREERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Post initial public offering share option scheme
(Continued)

(viii)

The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted under the Post-IPO Option
Scheme to each grantee (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue from time to time.
Any further grant of share options to such
grantee which would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all share options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the
date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the shares in issue,
must be subject to shareholders’ approval
with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

A share option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO
Option Scheme at any time during the
period notified by the board of directors
of the Company to each grantee provided
that the period within which the share
option must be exercised shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant of the
share option.

The Post-IPO Option Scheme remains
valid for a period of 10 years commencing
on the Effective Date. In addition, the
Company may, by ordinary resolution in
general meeting or the board of directors of
the Company may at any time terminate the
operation of the Post-IPO Option Scheme.
Share options which are granted during the
life of the Post-IPO Option Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of issue.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company,
the Post-IPO Option Scheme was terminated on
29 September 2010.

43. DAy 7 B M 0 AF ik 22 5 (42)

(a)

BEARNRRREBRETS (2

(viil

RAER+ @A BERREE X
N AR R R T 8 R B oK
BARLOBERE (BECTRER
) R AT 150 WO s A i) JE 1T 2 1T 35 7T
Mg FETORMNER T5HE
BARDEITRMODM% © WAZ
FEBRAE-SREBRESS
HRBEZEE SR A HA
TEAME(BEZA) BEE
FTREXRTZAERANAER
Pt (BREITE  EFE&AR
TT1E BV B AL ) 27T T 31T Ko
TEROOKROAHXEESETRND
1% A £ - BIBZA i R HEAE -
ABERAREBEANLBARE

oEs
X 7=

BEREURARAREZSEM
BAR A H AR R E R
NGEENEES g IR -i]
T ETERRENIEAS
R BRER L B AR +4F -

BRARBEREBRETS AL
MEARFGTFEFRBR U K
RAAEBRERRAS BB ER
RERLAAAARRAEETGHER
BB RN F R IR R A At &
HEE - N BE R AFRBRIZER
REET 1B B IR 6 BB AR AT
RIB RSN BT TIRRAEE T IATTIE

RERARBBRRF A E LRIBROR

BR

A
EES

C BRAFRBIL B R S

BERZE—ZTFNAFNBERILE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

New share option scheme

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company,
a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
was approved on 29 September 2010. Major
terms of this scheme are summarised as follows:

(0

(i)

(iii)

The purpose of the New Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional incentive
to selected person and to promote the
success of the business of the Group;

The participants of the New Scheme
include any employee of the Company or
any subsidiary of the Company, a director,
a shareholder, a supplier, a customer
or any subsidiary of the Company; an
agent, adviser, consultant, strategist,
contractor, sub-contractor, expert or
entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any
valuable services to Company or any of its
subsidiary; a holder of any securities issued
by Company or any of its subsidiary;

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will be
offered for acceptance for a period of 14
days from the date on which the offer is
granted;

No offer of a New Share Option which is
capable of or open for acceptance shall be
made after the expiry of the exercise period
pursuant to the New Scheme;
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(b)
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

New share option scheme (Continuea)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

The subscription price for the share under
the New Scheme will be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of making the offer of grant of a new share
option but in any case the subscription
price must be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of the offer of grant, which must
be a Business Dayj; (i) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five Business Day immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of the shares;

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted under the New Scheme and any
other schemes in aggregate not exceeding
10 per cent of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 28 June 2019 (2018: 28
June 2018), amounting to 4,948,170,452
shares (2018: 4,517,161,222 shares) (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company
may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit
at any time subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting provided
that such renewed limit shall not exceed
10 per cent of the Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of such limit;

The total number of New Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of
the New Share Options granted to each
grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding Share Options) in any
12 month period shall not exceed 1 per
cent of the relevant class of securities of
the Company in issue. Further New Share
Options may be granted to such grantee,
which, if exercised, would result in such
grantee becoming entitled to subscribe
for New Shares in excess of the limit, by
obtaining approval of the Shareholders in
general meeting with such grantee and his
associate(s) abstaining from voting;

43. DAy 7 B M 0 AF ik 22 5 (42)

(b)

HBRETE (2)

)

(vi)

(vii)

B THOROREESHES
ERIREESREFTBRERS 2D
BEET HREECERDNMNRD
BETII=EFNEaE  ()RH
RIEEZRLEH(MEALER)

G EERERATROUS
B (MR EBERZ2F L EH
AAEE 2B AEBHREARE
KT FHU T E (i) 1D
mE :

BEF A8 AT A st 2 T
RO AEBREETEmA T
BANBRHESE  AXTEBRBE
AKRERZZE—NFNAZ+TN
H(ZZ—N\F: ZZE—N\F<A
ZHNB)BEEITRAN10% - B
4,948,170,452 /% (=& — )\ %F :
4,517,161,222 %) ([ 81 HE R
) o KRR AT ERE KRS HK
A SR AL BB B B AT B IR ERR 58 -
MR B R B NS BBR L EZ
REBHEZHITRDEI10%

KRR+ A HERE R AR
ABB R ERE (BEEITE
B R ARITEBRE) BITHE
B & RKTEITHH R MBS
NEBBEARRBEBEARD T
EHFA1% © fi A — B AR A —
FEREMBERE MZEHER
RETERSERZB2ARASR
RRBEBURENIHEL - A
ARBRAERIG R R E &
BHEBEAREBHEA LT VARE

LEE -
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

New share option scheme (Continuea)

(vii)  The share options may be exercised in
whole or in part by the Participant at any
time during the exercise period, i.e. not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant New Share Options pursuant
to the New Scheme, by delivering to
the Company a notice duly signed in a
form approved by the Board (together
with payment of the exercise price in
full in respect of each New Share to be
subscribed for) and delivery of the New
Share Option certificate for amendment or
cancellation; and

(ix)  The New Scheme will remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on the
date on which the New Scheme becomes
unconditional. The Board may amend any
of the provisions of the New Scheme or
withdraw or otherwise terminate the New
Scheme at any time but no alterations
shall be made to the advantage of any
Participant unless approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting. All New
Share Options granted prior to such
termination and not then exercise shall
continue to be valid and exercisable subject
to and in accordance with the terms of the
New Scheme.

Issued of shares under specific mandate in
relation to advisory service of financial adviser

During the year, the Company has appointed
Oriental Patron Asia Limited (“OPAL”), as the
financial adviser to the Company to advise on
and assist in a potential financial restructuring
as to improving the Company’s financial position
charging an advisory fee of HK$50,000,000.
On 26 August 2019, the Company and OPAL
agreed that the advisory fee is to be paid in the
form of issuing and allotting 250,000,000 newly
issued and fully paid-up shares, such shares shall
be issued and allotted to OPAL simultaneously
with the new shares to be issued to the Scheme
Creditors under the Scheme upon its completion.

The Group recognised a total expense of HK$
21,695,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 in this respect.

43. DAy 7 B M ) AF ik 22 5 (42)

(b)

()

HBRETE (2)

(vii) 22 E2E AT R TTE B (AR Rt &)
R AR EREN A SRR
HB10F) A BB BRA DA
EREREZGHENTAZE
RENEANCERMKTRABNE
BRI N 2 BATEREFUR)
A 32K 325 B P R A RT =K
AR ATTEE R BPEER D BEAAE
K

(x) et BN EKSESEEZ A
EEH10FABEN - EEF AR
& RT3 &t BB A5 3 - s E
SIAE A 5 AR I # L&D M RR
FEBERNBERAS LM E B
RIS R A AR (E (] 2 8
EWMER -MBEERRLAER
Hh B B i SR 7T 5 T P AU
BEAN WXBRNFETEOEK
RN ATARAR 5% S IR TT A

FRSRUBREERARE 2 RESHR
ERITRG

RAFE ARG EEmEESMER
AR ([REDRM ) BARA R ISER
LABE BB E A B B S AR 0 M AT BE AT Y
WIS EARBEEFLIHEE#ET - T
FA % 2 A 50,000,000 - R-ZE— N
FENAZ+B > AARERAETMNE
= DA% 77 N R 3% 250,000,000 P& FT 2 1T
FEBEGRRMOEAINEMRER -
ZER M AR EARIEZ S R EEAE
TR RIS T R AR B TR G o

ANEFGHREBEE-_ZT-NAF+=8
—t+—HIEFE®RLFM%T21,695000
BT e
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3 X -
43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 43. Vet 2 B E W A sk 22 B ()
TRANSACTIONS (continuea)
The following table discloses details and movements TEBEEHE T - NFERT-N\F+=
of the Company’s share options held by the directors, A=+ HILFERESZ 658K EEURK
eligible employees and other participants of the Group REBEMBEEMBENRARBRIEZ
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018: HERED
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
Option type 2019 the year the year the year 2019
R=B-N% R=B-N%
-f-H t=A=+-H
BREER I RATHE RERRH RERTTHR RER XA e
Post-IPO Option Scheme EVINGE T
e E 4,073,680 - - (4,015,501) 58,179
New Scheme Hirdl 270,410,579 - (2,240,000)  (13,698,168) 254,472,411
Total st 274,484,259 - (2,240,0000  (17,713,669) 254,530,500
Exercisable atthe end of the year AR A[17{% 274,484,259 254,530,590
Weighted average exercise price~~ IEFIS77(E(E HK$0.41 % 7T - HK$0.25%7T  HK$551E7T  HK$0.25/ETT
Note: The following share options under the New Scheme Mist: ATHAETHNERERBEE_ZTNF
were exercised during the year ended 31 December +—R=t—BI-FEETF:
2019:
For the year ended 31 December 2019 RBE-Z-IF+-A=+—HLEFE
Share price
immediately
Number of Share price at before the date
Date of options granted Shares Exercise date exercise date of exercise
BT
BB R B RHEE TEBRH TEBHRE B 5 A0 # B 18
16 May 2017 2,240,000 22 March 2019 0.25 0.35

—E—+tFRHA+KHE 2,240,000 —ZE—hAF=A=+=H 0.25 0.35




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 4 Bt %5 3§ & ff =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

43. DAy 7 B M ) AF ik 22 5 (42)

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Annual Report 2019
ZER-NER

Number of share options
BhREHE

Qutstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at

1 January during during during 31 December

Option type 2018 the year the year the year 2018

RZE-N\F RZE-N\F

= +-A=1-18

BIRERR MATR RENE M RERTTR RERKH HATR
Post-IPO Option Scheme BRDRARKE

EREL 2 12,096,325 - - (8,022,645) 4,073,680

New Scheme iital 281,292,987 - (3,000,000) (7,882,408) 270,410,579

Total Bt 293,389,312 - (3,000,000) (15,905,053) 274,484,259

Exercisable at theend of the year ~ RERA 1T 293,389,312 274,484,259

Weighted average exercise price BT E HK$3.3178 7T - HK$0.257%7T  HK$316/ET  HKS041/ETT

Note: The following share options under the New Scheme s UTHAETHERERBE_ZE—N\F

were exercised during the year ended 31 December

2018:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

TZRA=+—HIEFERETE

RBE-Z-NF+-A=+—-HLFE

Share price

immediately

Number of Share price at before the date

Date of options granted Shares Exercise date exercise date of exercise
RETHE

BB IR B A RHOBE TEEH THEBHRE B Hi AT R (B
16 May 2017 3,000,000 12 January 2018 0.37 0.37
—E—tFHA+HE 3,000,000 ZZE—NF—A+=H 0.37 0.37
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43.

44.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the number of shares
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the share option scheme was
274,484,259 (2018: 274,484,259) representing
approximately 6.1% (2018: 6.1%) of the Company’s
issued shares capital at that date. The weighted
average remaining contractual life was 1.39 years (2017:
4 years).

Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant.

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in notes 8, 11, 29, 33 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered
into the following transactions with related parties:

43. DAy 7 B M 0 AF ik 22 5 (42)

WoZE—AFE+-_A=+—8B RER#ET
ST EEEEMNARITEERENRDEE
B274,484,2591) (— 8 — )\ 4 : 274,484,259
7)) MERRAFREBMEEITIRAE H46.1%
(ZZ—N\F :61%) - MEFHAKBTEOF
RA139F (ZT— L9 1 45F) °

PR BRERN R L B REHEE -

44. BT R

Bk 2 B ARG EES 11 20 - 33 X367
BB AREERMB N T RS -

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FiET

Interest paid to directors BENEEFE 2,574 2,281

Interest paid to shareholders ERREFE 58,246 53,309
Compensation of key management personnel TEEE ASNRH

The Directors consider that they are the only key
management personnel of the Group and details of their
compensation are set out in note 15.

EERA NERAEHZEIEEEAR
BEH B2 FBEHERE5
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45. RECONCILIATION OF 45. il S B i A £ 2 IR
LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE - &

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFVAEEREEHELEABEZE
arising from financing activities, including both cash BREE® &#iﬁi MAEMNEE - @EEE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing FFEEXBEERER E E KR ARKBEERE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future BESBEAR K SEGREHEIRERAIRE
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated EEMIEERENEHA ﬁ f& o
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Finance
Loans from lease Convertible  Promissory
shareholders  Borrowings  obligations Bonds bond note Total
BE i
RRINER #E  HERE &% R&s  AREE &t
(note 31) (note 32) (note 33) (note 34) (note 35) (note 36)
(W&s1) (WS  (WEss)  (WiFs4) (W) (i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FiEn Tin Thn Tin AR TiEn Thn
At1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-H 504,060 221,202 22,631 719,920 106,697 83,991 1,658,501
Financing cash flows BERENE (35,041) (40,380) (82 164376 - 88,673
Finance costs recognised ERDRENA 53,309 13,775 1839 139,023 - 10348 218204
Fair value change DrEEY - - - - 2,501 - 2501
Transfer to other payables and accruals BB ZEMERNFER
BN (5,402) (1411) - - 9,018) (7,200) (23,031)
Settled by way ofloan form shareholder ~ MR EZ A& 84,200 - - - (4,200) (80,000} -
Settled by way of promissory note NRSERRE ﬁ - - - (96,000 99,338 3338
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEENRZRTE
differences %) (121) 11 - - - 211)
A 31 December 2018 and RZE-\E+ZA=1-H
1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 601,031 193,059 24199 1,023,319 - 106,477 1,948,085
Financing cash flows HEBLRE 2,843 24,169 3,333 (10,904) - - 19,441
Finance costs recognised ERABERE 58,245 30,376 2,287 144,797 - 8,720 244,425
Transfer to other payables and accruals ~ EATEMERFER
JESTEE (72,614) (20,085) - (3,929) - - (96,628)
Effect of foreign currency exchange HNEERERTE
differences (48) (479) (56) - - - (583)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA=1-H 580,457 221,040 29,763 1,153,283 - 115197 2,114,740
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46. MAJOR NON-CASH
TRANSACTIONS

—hE+ZA=+—RLFE

46. ERIFBER Y

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the CB5
with principal amount of HK$4,200,000 was settled by

way of loan from Mr. Sin (Note 35).

i During the year ended 31 December 2018, the CB5 i

with principal and accrued interests amounted of
HK$96,000,000 and HK$8,640,000 respectively,
settled by the issuance of promissory note with principal
amount of HK$104,640,000 (Note 35).

47. DIVIDEND

RBEE-_ZT—N\F+_A=+—H1t EA
HE AT HR AR (& 5 14 AR (8 32 AR € 4,200,000 7 7T A
B AR E R (MFESs5) -

REE-_Z—N\F+-_A=+—HIt 5
AR ESFHREERNS RESFE D F
96,000,000 7% 7T & 8,640,000 7 7T 38 18 3£ 1T A
& & #8 5 104,640,000 7% 7T 2 & 5 E I 4
(Mi3£35) °

47. BB

No dividend has been proposed or declared by the

Directors for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:

Nil).

?Tﬁ%ﬁi_ FAERBRE (ZF—

EE2-AFTRA=+—BIEFE &
NNE R o
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48. ¥ I & 35 0H

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE - &

48. EVENT AFTER THE

REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed in the elsewhere of the consolidated

BERAMBHRRAEMMITAEEEIN A

financial statements, the Group has following event after % EGFEUTRERMESEE
the reporting period:
Impact of Novel Coronavirus Outbreak to the Group FRAERASREEARENYE

Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus
(“COVID-19”) outbreak has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment in
China.

In response to the precautionary policies and measures
implemented by the Guangdong provincial government
to deter the spread of COVID-19 in the PRC, the
operation of the film studio and the hotel has been
temporarily suspended since 24 January 2020 and 29
January 2020 respectively and resumed operation with
effect from 16 May 2020.

BT _ZF-ANUR - FEAEBKES
(fCOVID-19)) B B# B AEBEFBEMLE
R RBEINTEERE -

BEFEERE NN ABIECOVID-197EH B2
JETMEREVA T BUR A8 i - R OB R
MWEEEHABE - T_TF—A_+HmHARK
TECEFE-A-+HBAREE IR -Z
“EFERATABMESEE-

Any further changes in economic conditions for the FH It 5] B 7R £ B A B RO B9 (RT3 — 20 b
Group arising thereof may have impact on the financial BRE R EARAEBMNY K ELE RNz E! M‘k

results of the Group, the extent of which could not be
estimated as at the date of these financial results.

49. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 26 June 2020.

49.

XEAH WEEAGETERE -

it v B4 B

HEZZ-—NFTZA=T—HLEFENLRE
Aﬁ?ﬁ%i&i’%ﬁﬁ_v_ FRAZTRNBE
EESHERM o
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES fil

OF THE COMPANY

50. A 2 ] B B 851K Dt e

2019 2018
SeId - \F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB kB 1 2
Investments in subsidiaries MEARZ&RE 882 882
883 884
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposit and other FERRIE - ZeRk
receivables Ho b R UL SR IE 16,988 28,929
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL BT B A m e 1,611,484 2,087,764
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEE 255 9,217
1,628,727 2,125,910
Current liabilities BB
Other payables and accruals Hoqth fE 5118 R EET B 101,610 30,259
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGRS 19,399 19,272
Loans from shareholders IR By B 3R 583,879 4,090
Borrowings EE 149,700 92,408
Bonds L 769,105 660,424
Promissory note A ER 115,197 -
1,738,890 806,453
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE (B EEFE (110,163) 1,319,457
Total assets less current liabilities EEHEBERRBERSE (109,280) 1,320,341
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Loans from shareholders PR E B R - 596,941
Borrowings BE - 41,074
Bonds &% 376,414 362,895
Promissory note A ER - 106,477
376,414 1,107,387
Net (liabilities)/assets (BB BEZFE (485,694) 212,954
Capital and reserves XK i#E
Equity attributable to owners of KAEEE AEERE
the Company
Share capital LN 494,817 451,716
Reserves i (980,511) (238,762)
Total equity S (485,694) 212,954
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 50. A2 ] i) B 5 IR D e R K
POSITION AND RESERVES Wt )
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

The Company’s statement of financial position was ARARIZHBRABREBESERA =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of ZFERNAZTAABHRERTETE IHT
Directors on 26 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf NEERRESSHEE
by:
Chow Kai Weng Cheng Wang Chun
AR R, BR
Director Director

EF EF
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 50. A< 2> w) iy B 5551k Ol ik &
POSITION AND RESERVES i (2)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves RPN REED
Convertible Share
Share Capital bonds equity ~ Contributed options  Accumulated
The Company premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
TaRES
YN ROBE  EARE  ERRE  EBHER BRERE  ZiER i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin ThT Tirx i Tirn T Thr
Balance at 1 January 2018 R=3-N\E-A-Riks 803,714 0 ST 4TI 51878 (@048 142047
Share issued upon exercise of PBRERETNRD
share options 781 - - - (344) - 437
Lapse of share options EREXT - - - - (9,622) 9,622 -
Extinguishment of convertble bond WEMRARETEERES
bythe way of issuance of promissory AR TBEES
note to substantial shareholder - 5302 (15,597) - - 16,597 5302
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - (87448 (387,448
RZE-\ETZA=1-H
Balance at 31 December 2018 ke 804,4% 5217 - 76,471 4912 (1166917) (208762
Balance at 31 December 2018 and RZE-\ETZA=+-HBEk
1 January 2019 —3-hE-A-Riks 804,495 521 - TR M912 (1166917 (238762
Share issued upon exercise of PBRERETNRD
share options 583 - - - (257) - 326
Placing of shares it 61,914 - - - - = 61,914
Equity-settled share-based payment NEEEEERERY
expenses - - - - 21,695 - 21,695
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - - (13,973) 13973 -
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - (825684  (8250684)
RZF-NETZA=T-H
Balance at 31 December 2019 ighe33 866,992 5211 - 76471 49317 (1,978,628)  (980,511)
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 50. A 2 v B 1 85 1R Bl e K

POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a
result of capital reorganisation and represents the entire
amounts standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company as at 30 June 2010 and the
credits arising from capital reduction for eliminating or
setting off the accumulated losses of the Company
from time to time. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay dividend, or make
a distribution out of the contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that: (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or (i) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result
of the reorganisation and represents the excess of the
combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange thereof.

it i (&)

FRANRELE ()

ARABNEHBRDERANSAMmMESE - B
ARAR-E—ZEFRA=THNRNEE
FREVER 28 MR HR AT E AR - A
HEREHEARBR TR R EE - RIER
RE-NN—FREDE ARRNEMAEH
FRAEDIR - AT - WA SBBEMEE: ()&
NRTRE RN EEMEHRTERIOKMEE
SHAFH D IRERTRE AR BB E  KiA
REAEENAEREAGEEAMIRNERER
HEe BTRAERDEEROEM  AIARQ
ATBEEHART T IRIRM RS HIEH
DK °

ARARWERNFHBIIEAEEMES - BT
BHBARNAHEEFESLARTES
REMBETHORAREEND °
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MBERE

FINANCIAL RESULTS S % 36 4
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
LN —T—)\F —ET—+F —T-—XF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FHET FET FHET
Revenue WA 182,092 153,837 221,372 57,827 40,038
Loss before income tax PR AT E 1B (511,957) (415,558) (193,533) (327,092) (264,834)
Income tax expense Frisfif = - - - -
Loss for the year FREE (511,957) (415,558) (193,533) (327,092) (264,834)
Attributable to: PAT &G -
Owners of the Company AR FIHA A (658,493) (493,616) (193,529) (327,091) (264,828)
Non-controlling interests ~ JEH2 Rk % (775) @ 4 (1) 6)
(659,268) (493,618) (193,533) (193,533) (264,834)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND G- AlERRES
EQUITY
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hEF —E-N\F —T—+F —T—RF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET FET FHET T
Total assets BEBE 2,025,151 2,358,431 2,617,586 2,377,447 2,448,510
Total liabilities BfEARE (2,456,434) (2,213,256) (1,977,155) (1,737,469 (1,518,128)
(431,283) 145,175 640,431 639,978 930,382
Equity attributable tothe AR BHEA A
owners of the Company ~ [E{L#EZS (430,740) 144,943 640,197 639,740 930,143
Non-controlling interests ~ FE{% Az (543) 232 234 238 239
(431,283) 145,175 640,431 639,978 930,382
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